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12 31 12 31

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

(Roan) @

(ROAE)
@

Tierl
Tierl

165,766 157,231 154,159 145,545 124,839
(2,642,310) (2,506,262) (2,457,294) (2,319,987) (1,989,934)
45,376 42,878 41,786 41,740 41,454
(723,293)  (683,475)  (666,069)  (665,336)  (660,777)

44,513 42,566 41,629 41,158 40,692
(709,537)  (678,502)  (663,566)  (656,059)  (648,630)
863 312 157 582 762

(13,756) (4,973) (2,503) 9,277)  (12,146)
436,661 399,638 379,224 317,740 259,677
(6,960,376) (6,370,230) (6,044,831) (5,064,776) (4,139,251)
48,935 48,935 48,935 48,935 46,787
(780,024)  (780,024)  (780,024)  (780,024)  (745,785)
6,066,714 5,677,691 5,931,050 5,122,292 4,138,815
(96,703,421)(90,502,395) (94,540,937) (81,649, 334) (65,972, 711)

8.21 7.45 7.04 6.49 5.55
(131) (119) (112) (103) (88)
0.88 0.84 0.85 0.88 0.87
(14) (13) (14) (14) (14)
102,316 54,074 218,811  (20,835) 34,150

(1,630,917)  (861,940) (3,487,847) (-332,110) (544,351)
(144,573)  (133,695) (176,451) (142,554)  (48,285)
(-2,304,494)(-2,131,098) (-2,812,629) (-2,272,311)  (-769,663)
74,042 39,445 110,123 154,229 44,394
(1,180,229)  (628,753) (1,755,361) (2,458,410)  (707,640)
376,009 337,915 385,356 226,364 228,375
(5,993,583) (5,386,365) (6,142,575) (3,608,242) (3,640,298)

56,415 56,724 58,023 56,489 50,735

0.77% 0.74% 0.76% 0.90% 1.07%

® 11.36% 11.63% 12.58% 14.26% 16.77%
8.62% 8. 49% 8.64% 9.12% 8.93%

9.43% 9.34% 9.65H 9.17% 8.99%
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cITIC 1987 cITIC
cITIC cITIC
1985 1987

cITIC 800
(1)2005 cITIC CITIC
(2)2006 11 16  CIFH cITIC

2006 11 22 cITIC BBVA BBVA
®) 2006 12 31
(4)2007 27
(5)2009 10 23 CIFH 70.32%
(6)2011
25.786
5,273,622,484 2,480,360,496 46,787,327,034
31,905,164,057 14,882,162,977
)
1.00 2,462,490,897
4.84
2014 12 16 2014 2014
2014 2015 30
4.84 5.55 2,462,490,897 2,147,469,539
1501428 2015 12 31 11,918,455,941.45
11,888,695,194.53
2016 20 2,147,469,539
48,934,796,573
34,052,633,596 14,882,162,977 cITIC
cITIC
(8)2016 350,000,000
48,934,796,573 350,000,000 34,052,633,596

14,882,162,977 350,000,000
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2018
0.20% 81.787
52.25%
22.23% 12.941
2018
35,000 630,000 10
8,600 50
6,000
73]
5.14% 54.956
35.11% 9.14%
36.622 62.91% 0.52
30.815
52.94% 311 41.45%
1.06
88.3176 22.65%
500,000 735,000 25.11%
CITIC Red
12.4023 7.5488 30.2332
23.14% 25.42% 22.13%
4.8943 205.074
5,706 10,000

2,507
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14..00%

38/410



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 DO0000O00o0o00b0OoO0Odnoo(Es9d)
oOoOooodn

@
@
©))
® ®)
ciTic 139 (6) 65.37%
2018 12 31
CIFH 39 7508 100%
1801-4
89
CNCB
0,
21 2106 1,889 99.05%
28 2801
200 51%
777
cimic CBD 4,000 100%
2-310
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56,415
52,976 3,439
11,127 41,359 3,929 11,365
20.15% 39,868 70.67% 5,182
9.18% 1,418

11
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2018
2018 GDP
6.6% CPI 2.1% 3.5%
% 18.6
0.5
19
PBOC RRR
CBIRC
CBIRC
M2
182.67 136.3 200.75
8.1% 13.5% 9.8%
2018-2020
4.6%
44.51 5.4%
165.77 90 92.41%
16.97 2018 11.25
46.94
158% 2.8%
389 6.9%
12.9% 3.61 6.1% 3.62
13,900
630,000
41.1% 2.6
9.0% 37.25 1.7
61.1% 15.3% 13.6
49.6%
193.2
21.8%
CITIC CITIC
CITIC 625.843
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CNCBI CNCB 221.279
PBOC RRR 40.242
142.729 RRR
73.309 28.723
2.441 67.00%
1.314 20.99%
413
) 413 13
13
2.78 43.29%
227.8 155.0

CITIC
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4.57% 44.513
2018 2017 %
165,766 157,231 8,535 5.43
104,772 99,645 5,127 5.15
60,994 57,586 3,408 5.92
(52,600) (48,913) (3.687) 7.54
(58,233) (55,787) (2,446) 4.38
54,326 52,276 2,050 3.92
(8,950) (9,398) 448 4.77)
45,376 42,878 2,498 5.83
44,513 42,566 1,947 4.57
2017
5.43% 165.766
63.2% 36.8%
%
2018 2017 2016
63.2 63.4 68.8
36.8 36.6 31.2
100.0 100.0 100.0
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5.127 5.15% 104.772
2018 2017
(%) *)
3,405,578 165,608 4.86 3,064,369 141,336 61
@ 1,142,526 49,474 4.33 1,625,937 61,462 .78
456,515 7,049 1.54 490,041 7,633 .56
353,672 10,675 3.02 339,891 9,263 .73
38,077 987 2.59 36,910 1,068 .89
5,396,368 233,793 4.33 5,557,148 220,762 97
3,526,276 66,254 1.88 3,346,853 53,190 .59
842,701 29,778 3.53 1,089,966 39,902 .66
496,358 22,416 4.52 459,737 19,171 17
271,306 8,937 3.29 196,804 6,151 .13
57,115 1,623 2.84 92,397 2,691 91
496 13 2.62 490 12 45
5,194,252 129,021 2.48 5,186,247 121,117 .33
104,772 99,645
(&) 1.85 .64
® 1.94 .79
2018
2017
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2018 2017
15,730 8,542 24,272
(18,273) 6,285 (11,988)
(523) (61) (584)
376 1,036 1,412
34 (115) (81)
(2,656) 15,687 13,031
2,853 10,211 13,064
(9,050) (1,074) (10,124)
1,527 1,718 3,245
2,332 454 2,786
(1,027) (41) (1,068)
- 1 1
(3,365) 11,269 7,904
709 4,418 5,127

0.15 1.94%

0.21 1.85%

233.793 13.031 5.90%
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24.272 17.17%
165.608 341.209
0.25
2018 2017

(0 (%)

1,199,731 54,522 4.54 1,138,694 47,935 4.21

2,205,847 111,086 5.04 1,925,675 93,401 4.85

3,405,578 165,608 4.86 3,064,369 141,336 4.61

2018 2017

0 (%)

1,886,203 95,562 5.07 1,852,573 89,053 4.81

177,579 8,645 4.87 91,921 4,004 4.36

1,341,796 61,401 4.58 1,119,875 48,279 4.31

3,405,578 165,608 4.86 3,064,369 141,336 4.61

11.988 19.50% 49.474
483.411
0.584 7.65%
7.049
33.526
1.412
15.24% 10.675 0.29
81
7.58% 987 0.30
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7.904 6.53% 129.021
0.15 2.48%
13.064 24 .56% 66.254
179.423 0.29
2018 2017

(%) (%)

1,389,757 40,952 2.95 1,303,396 32,833 2.52

1,505,852 13,408 0.89 1,507,450 12,571 0.83

2,895,609 54,360 1.88 2,810,846 45,404 1.62

386,994 11,201 2.89 311,517 7,169 2.30

243,673 693 0.28 224,490 617 0.27

630,667 11,894 1.89 536,007 7,786 1.45

3,526,276 66,254 1.88 3,346,853 53,190 1.59

10.124 25.37% 29.778
247.265
3.245 16.93% 22.416
0.35
36.621
2.786 45.29%
8.937 74.502
1.068
39.69% 1.623 35.282
3.408 5.92% 60.994
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2018 2017 %
45,148 46,858 (1,710) (3.65)
6,519 6,583 (64) (0.97)
9,046 3,757 5,289 140.78
@ 1 ©) (200.00)
282 387 (105) (27.13)
60,994 57,586 3,408 5.92
1.710 3.65% 45.148
2.203 7.23% 2.693
30.82%
745 11.72%
2018 2017 %
32,656 30,453 2,203 7.23
6,044 8,737 (2,693) (30.82)
5,613 6,358 (745) (11.72)
4,839 4,534 305 6.73
1,269 1,215 54 4.44
318 390 72) (18.46)
50,739 51,687 (948) (1.83)
(5,591) (4,829) (762) 15.78
45,148 46,858 (1,710) (3.65)
5.225
15.565
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3.687 7.54% 52.60
0.66
30.71%
2018 2017 %
29,599 27,416 2,183 7.96
9,255 9,104 151 1.66
12,047 10,733 1,314 12.24
50,901 47,253 3,648 7.72
1,699 1,660 39 2.35
52,600 48,913 3,687 7.54
%) 31.73% 31.11% 0.62
") 30.71% 30.05% 0.66
58.233 2.446
4.38%
2018 2017 %
47,753 50,170 (2.417) (4.82)
3,034 4,212 (1,178) (27.97)
@ 1,074 947 127 13.41
@ (23) 32 9 (28.13)
6,008 295 5,803 1,967.12
(50) an 27 (35.06)
347 272 75 27.57
58,233 55,787 2,446 4.38
2017
448 4.77% 8.950
1.51 16.47%
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6.85% 6,066.714
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
% "
3,608,412 59.5 3,196,887 56.3
(101,022) 1.7 (90,903) (1.6)
3,507,390 57.8 3,105,984 54.7
@ 1,588,416 26.2 1,448,319 25.6
(3.354) ©.1) (3,021) ©.1)
1,585,062 26.1 1,445,298 25.5
3,881 0.1 2,341 -
538,513 8.9 568,300 10.0
274,326 4.5 296,419 5.2
10,784 0.2 54,626 1.0
@ 146,758 2.4 204,723 3.6
6,066,714 100.0 5,677,691 100.0
2017 12 31
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12.87% 3,608.412
57.8% 3.1
97.3%
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
()

3,511,892 97.3 -

96,520 2.7 -

3,608,412 100.0 3,196,887
140.097 9.67% 1,588.416

2018 12 31 2017 12 31

(%) (%)
944,623 59.5 730,982 50.4
189,176 11.9 121,547 8.4
228,502 14.4 268,247 18.5
178,068 11.2 126,794 8.8
40,763 2.6 60,347 4.2
7,168 0.4 1,356 0.1
116 - 139,046 9.6
1,588,416 100.0 1,448,319 100.0

53/410



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 DO0000O00o0o00b0OoO0Odnoo(Es9d)
oOoOooodn

2018 12 31 2017 12 31
(%)
308,872 19.4 -
773,178 48.7 -
503,659 31.7 -
2,707 0.2 -
1,588,416 100.0 1,448,319
213.641 29.23% 944.623
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
(%) )
207,254 21.9 146,627 20.1
491,368 52.0 314,813 43.1
118,121 12.5 130,509 17.9
125,796 13.3 137,879 18.7
2,084 0.2 1,154 0.2
944,623 100.0 730,982 100.0
2018 12 31
/ 7/ %
4,371 20/08/2029 5.98% -
4,289 18/02/2021 2.96% -
3,993 06/07/2028 4.04% -
3,758 04/03/2019 2.72% -
3,500 20/12/2021 3.79% 0.41
3,497 28/04/2020 4.20% 0.41
3,081 27/02/2023 3.24% -
2,997 08/03/2021 3.25% 0.77
2,790 07/01/2019 2.77% -
10 2,498 22/11/2021 3.25% 0.29
34,774 1.88
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3.881
65.78% 2.759 130.69%
JSC Altyn CITIC ai
30

2018 12 31 2017 12 31
2,759 1,196
1,122 1,145
3,881 2,341

2018 12 31 2017 12 31

1,845,632 6,106 5,974 1,641,988 2,553 2,312
2,595,674 24,826 24,501 3,347,855 62,030 62,368
59,464 1,059 1,171 51,586 868 257
4,500,770 31,991 31,646 5,041,429 65,451 64,937

2018 12 31 2017 12 31
2,928 2,449
- 2,429 1,931
- 499 518
(725) (400)
- (449) (80)
- (276) (320)
2,203 2,049
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2017 / 2018
12 31 O na
@ 90,903 7,002 47,753 (46,938) 2,512 101,232
® 3,021 973 1,074 (689) 30 4,409
® 1 261 23) - 4 243
3,946 1,024 3,034 (3,606) (4,398) .
2,201 133 6,008 (1,182) 4,729 11,979
402 4,155 (50) - 36 4,543
100,474 13,548 57,886  (52,415) 2,913 122,406
400 . 347 %) (15) 725
400 . 347 %) (15) 725
100,874 13,548 58,233 (52,422) 2,898 123,131
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6.62% 5,613.628
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
% "
281,580 5.0 237,600 4.5
3,616,423 64.4 3,407,636 64.7
893,230 15.9 875,602 16.6
120,280 2.1 134,500 2.6
548,328 9.8 441,244 8.4
) 153,787 2.8 168,676 3.2
5,613,628 100.0 5,265,258 100.0
208.787 6.13% 3,616.423
0.3 64..4%
2,903.914 29.716 1.03%
712.509 179.071 33.57%
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
(%) (%)
1,521,684 42.1 1,651,180 48.5
1,382,230 38.2 1,223,018 35.8
86,739 2.4 28,092 0.8
2,903,914 80.3 2,874,198 84.3
262,960 7.3 234,961 6.9
449,549 12.4 298,477 8.8
712,509 19.7 533,438 15.7
3,616,423 100.0 3,407,636 100.0
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
(0 (%)
3,251,691 89.9 3,053,751 89.6
364,732 10.1 353,885 10.4
3,616,423 100.0 3,407,636 100.0

2018 12 31 2017 12 31
(0 ()
13,018 0.4 12,361 0.4
880,790 244 806,528 23.7
883,353 24.4 823,925 24.2
648,245 17.9 619,598 18.2
483,987 13.4 478,097 14.0
373,770 10.3 378,958 11.1
82,789 2.3 62,311 1.8
250,471 6.9 225,858 6.6
3,616,423 100.0 3,407,636 100.0
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OooooOodd
2018
2017 12 31 48,935 34,955 58,977 (11,784) 105,434 163,121 12,795 412,433
4,544 (939)  (9,502) (235)  (6,132)
2018 48,935 34,955 58,977  (7,240) 104,495 153,619 12,560 406,301
1 44,513 863 45,376
2 12,509 ¢Y)) 12,462
3
3,343 3,343
4 4,210 (18,312) (294)  (14,396)
2018 12 31 48,935 34,955 58,977 5,260 108,705 179,820 16,425 453,086
12.87% 3,608.412 1.77% 0.09
157.98% 11.46
2.80% 0.04
1,881.125
23.278 1.25% 1,484.490
252.906 20.54%
41.14% 135.341
6.909 3.487
0.34 0.07
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
0 (%)
1,881,125 52.13 49,122 2.61 1,857,847 58.12 42,213 2.27
1,484,490 41.14 14,906 1.00 1,231,584 38.52 11,419 0.93
242,797 6.73 0 0.00 107,456 3.36 16 0.01
3,608,412 100.00 64,028 1.77 3,196,887 100.00 53,648 1.68
199.636 2,067.080 1.14
57.28% 76.548
1,298.535 2.23 35.99%
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
(0 Q)
806,153 22.34 708,164 22.15
492,382 13.65 513,823 16.07
1,658,485 45.96 1,510,366 47.25
408,595 11.32 357,078 11.17
3,365,615 93.27 3,089,431 96.64
242,797 6.73 107,456 3.36
3,608,412 100.00 3,196,887 100.00
411.525 12.87% 3,608.412
1,123.293 784.722 549.491
31.13% 21.75% 15.23%
16.06% 13.53% 11.94%
42.675 66.65%
9.825 0.66
2.797
3.34
€y
&)
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
(%) )
™ 1,123,293  31.13 25,050 2.23 967,864  30.29 15,225 1.57
784,722  21.75 9,146 1.17 691,183  21.62 9,672 1.40
549,401  15.23 7,679 1.40 493,118  15.42 6,029 1.22
433,143  12.00 7,136 1.65 389,152  12.17 7,809 2.01
463,100  12.83 8,479 1.83 421,810  13.19 10,705 2.5
75,682 2.10 5,068 6.70 67,609 211 2,271 3.36
178,981 4.96 1,470 0.82 166,151 520 1,937 1.17
3,608,412  100.00 64,028 1.77 3,196,887  100.00 53,648 1.68
312.923 295.005
16.85% 3.71
27.46%
16.43% 3.42% 1.55%
53.89% 4.799 2.183
2.14 2.99
@
@)
1.320 0.627 0.621
0.227 0.88 0.83
0.08 0.09
0.905 0.165
1.19 0.11
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
0 (%)

295,005 8.18 21,642 7.34 324,029 10.14 16,843 5.20
312,923 8.67 1,082 0.35 333,055 10.42 855 0.26
151,391 4.20 12,863 8.50 193,818 6.06 10,680 5.51
151,038 4.19 2,001 1.38 152,851 4.78 771 0.50
208,922 5.79 267 0.13 179,441 5.61 432 0.24
79,086 2.19 1,158 1.46 77,878 2.44 2,063 2.65
282,699 7.83 2,042 0.72 221,786 6.94 1,421 0.64
72,938 2.02 1,310 1.80 70,523 2.21 683 0.97
13,366 0.37 0 0.00 18,566 0.58 0 0.00
313,757 8.69 6,667 2.12 285,900 8.94 8,465 2.96
1,881,125 52.13 49,122 2.61 1,857,847 58.12 42,213 2.27
242,797 6.73 0 0.00 107,456 3.36 16 0.01
1,484,490 41.14 14,906 1.00 1,231,584 38.52 11,419 0.93
3,608,412 100.00 64,028 1.77 3,196,887 100.00 53,648 1.68

2018 12 31 2017 12 31 2016 12 31

)
(@) 10 2.44 2.25 2.71

10 @ @ 50 14.49 16.88 16.40

10 10
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2018 12 31
(%) (%)
A 14,243 0.39 2.44
B 12,417 0.34 2.13
C 9,484 0.26 1.63
D 8,849 0.25 1.52
E 7,182 0.20 1.23
F 6,966 0.19 1.19
G 6,800 0.19 1.17
H 6,364 0.18 1.09
6,200 0.17 1.06
6,000 0.17 1.03
84,505 2.34 14._49
10 84.505 2.34%
14.49%
CBRC
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
() D)
3,459,343 95.87 3,074,855 96.18
85,041 2.36 68,384 2.14
26,141 0.72 21,931 0.68
30,779 0.85 25,157 0.79
7,108 0.20 6,560 0.21
3,608,412 100.00 3,196,887 100.00
3,544,384 98.23 3,143,239 98.32
64,028 1.77 53,648 1.68
384.488
95.87% 0.31 16.657
2.36% 0.22
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64.028 10.380
0.09 1.77%
@ 90
@
G
O]
2018
73.324
2018 12 31 2017 12 31 2016 12 31
) 2.53 1.96 2.09
) 48.27 35.16 28.94
(%) 73.53 46.05 55.37
%) 41.91 32.05 43.67
D) 1.63 1.45 1.58
1.63% 0.18
20
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
(%) )
3,511,853 97.32 3,105,363 97.14
&)
1-90 37,301 1.04 32,842 1.03
91-180 13,181 0.37 13,207 0.41
181 45,987 1.27 45,475 1.42
96,559 2.68 91,524 2.86
3,608,412 100.00 3,196,887 100.00
o1 59,168 1.64 58,662 1.84
@ 21,588 0.60 23,245 0.73
5.035 96.559
0.18 1.04% /
90 1.64% 0.20
1.657 21.588 0.13
2018 12 31 2017 12 31

7,002 -

97,905 75,543

1 47,753 50,170

@ @ (86)

(46,938) (35,691)

2,441 1,467

101,154 90,903

101.154
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97.905
3.249
157.98% 2.80% 11.46
0.04
47.753 2.417
(€D 90
@
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
- 393,851 427,561
- 158,813 195,746
- 92,924 88,772
- 40,029 72,360
- 434,590 310,315
1,120,207 1,094,754
12,934 13,614
5,356 7,385
473,399 460,646
1,611,896 1,576,399
48.242 102.316
10.878 144 .573

34.597 74.042
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2018 )
102,316 89.21
17,850 (96.55)

196,044

91,758

)

(450, 950) 23.36
(144,573) 8.14
1,396,004 38.60
(1,535,459) 35.69
74,042 87.71
922,161 6.87
(815,230) 1.72
(21,837) 23.38
(14,395) 18.52

IFRS
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30%

2018 %)
4,988 49.0
31,991 (51.1)
10,790 (80.2)
1,600,163 -
- 308,872 -
- 778,238 -
- 510,346 -
- 2,707 -
3,881 65.8 JSC Altyn CITIC
ai
115,358 48.7
31,646 (51.3)
4,920 (44.5)
5,013 529.8
/ 5,269
9,046 140.8 1.
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(57,886) -

(347) -
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2018 2017
(D) (D)) D) D)
87,184 52.6 24,244 44.6 87,080 55.4 20,743 39.7
57,139 34.5 15,732 29.0 54,353 34.6 20,283 38.8
18,057 10.9 13,744 25.3 11,080 7.0 8,764 16.8
3,386 2.0 606 1.1 4,718 3.0 2,486 4.7
165,766  100.0 54,326  100.0 157,231 100.0 52,276 100.0
2018 12 31 2018
(©) @
) () Q)
2,445,696 40.5 2,084,629 37.1 25,144 46.3
1,184,230 19.6 1,191,150 21.2 10,980 20.2
812,520 13.5 800,478 14.3 8,020 14.8
1,255,616 20.8 1,228,822 21.9 6,532 12.0
594,775 9.8 596,075 10.6 4,134 7.6
539,071 8.9 524,880 9.4 (229) 0.4)
97,329 1.6 106,680 1.9 (3,537) (6.5)
338,573 5.6 282,868 5.0 3,282 6.0
(1,224,270) (20.3)  (1,201,970) (21.4) - -
6,043,540 100.0 5,613,612 100.0 54,326 100.0
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2017 12 31 2017
@ @
%) (D) (D)
2,300,101 40.7 2,466,613 46.8 27,022 51.7
1,288,981 22.8 1,135,639 21.6 3,323 6.4
916,081 16.2 820,311 15.6 4,402 8.4
1,228,113 21.7 1,079,757 20.5 8,884 17.0
626,587 1.1 565,919 10.7 3,456 6.6
574,942 10.2 483,560 9.2 1,39 2.7
94,618 1.7 86,047 1.6 47 0.1
307,796 5.4 266,293 5.1 3,746 7.1
(1,681,353) (29.8)  (1,638,889) (31.1) - -
5,655,866 100.0 5,265,250 100.0 52,276 100.0
2012 CBRC
0.82 12.47% Tierl
0.09 9.43% Tierl 0.13
8.62%
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31 (D) 2016 12 31
Tierl 403,354 366,567 10.04 342,563
Tierl 441,122 403,378 9.36 382,670
583,392 502,821 16.02 475,008
4,677,713 4,317,502 8.34 3,964,448
Tierl 8.62% 8.49% 0.13 8.64%
Tierl 9.43% 9.34% 0.09 9.65%
12.47% 11.65% 0.82 11.98%
2018 12 31 2017 12 31 ) 2016 12 31
6.37% 6.18% 0.19 5.47%
Tierl 441,122 403,378 9.36 382,670
6,928,004 6,527,276 6.14 6,994,025

(@) [2015]

IR

http://www._citichank.com/about/investor/financialaffairs/gglzb/
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117

38

7,053

146
1,255
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33

1,410
58
5,534

CNCBI

73/410

oOoOooodn

38
2,054

JSC



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 DO0000O00o0o00b0OoO0Odnoo(Es9d)
oOoOooodn

€))
2018 12 31
@ ()
49,284,796,573
(€Y
@ 34,052,633,596 14,882,162,977 350,000,000
2018 12 31
1.00 48,934,796,573
100.00 350,000,000
)
49

@)
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®3)

2013 12 31 31,905,164,057 31,905, 164,057
508,568

2014 12 31 31,905,164,057 31,905,164,057
508,568

2015 12 31 31,905,164,057 31,905,164,057
508,568

2016 20 2,147,469,539 2,147,469,539 )

34,231

2016 12 31 34,052,633,596 34,052,633,596
542,799

2017 12 31 34,052,633,596 34,052,633,596
542,799

2018 12 31 34,052,633,596 34,052,633,596
542,799

(1)2016 20 2,147,469,539
48,934,796,573 2,147,469,539

2013 12 31 14,882,162,977 14,882,162,977
237,222

2014 12 31 14,882,162,977 14,882,162,977
237,222

2015 12 31 14,882,162,977 14,882,162,977
237,222

2016 12 31 14,882,162,977 14,882,162,977
237,222

2017 12 31 14,882,162,977 14,882,162,977
237,222

2018 12 31 14,882,162,977 14,882,162,977

237,222
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@
2016 11 350,000,000, 0 @)
2016 12 31 350,000,000, 0
2017 12 31 350,000,000, 0
2018 12 31 350,000,000, 0
€))
0 2016 10 21 100.00 350
2016 11
“)
178,541 148,559
29,982
®)
% 2018 12 31
() (%)
CITIC 31,988,728,773 65.37
HKSCC 12,126,027,439 24.78
199
2,147,469,539 4.39
55
1,114,065,677 2.28
28
47,376,291,428 96.82
(DCITIC
(2)HKSCC HKSCC
G3)CITIC CITIC cITIC CITIC
CITIC 65.97%
32,284,227,773 28,938,928, 294 3,345,299, 479
cITIC 65.37% 31,988,728,773

28,938,928,294 3,049,800,479
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31 10

2018 12 31

) ) )
- 43,860,000  12.53 - - -

- 38,430,000 10.98 - - -

005L  FH002
- 38,400,000  10.97 - - -
005L  CT001
- 30,700,000  8.77 - - -
- 30,700,000  8.77 - - -
- 30,700,000  8.77 - - -
- 21,930,000  6.27 - - -
- 15,350,000  4.39 - - -
- 10,960,000  3.13 - - -
- 8,770,000  2.51 - - -
- 8,770,000  2.51 - - -
@
@
005L  FH002 005L CT001
10
®)
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10%

50%

2018 12 31 1.5%
2018 12 31

GAAP IFRS

CBIRC % Tierl % Tierl %

3.80%

2016 10 26

54
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2007 27 2007 27
@
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
6.22 7.35 5.36 5.42 6.71
87 103 75 76 94
3.62 4.41 4.03 4.69 4.63
50 62 56 65 65
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
8.19 10.50 7.52 7.35 8.14
131 167 120 117 130
3.57 5.41 5.15 5.79 5.37
57 86 82 92 86
@

2018 2018 2018 2018 10 2018 11 2018 12
5.03 5.08 5.06 4.97 5.04 5.01
70 71 71 69 70 70
4.66 4.82 4.63 4.71 4.85 4.66
65 67 65 66 68 65

2018 2018 2018 2018 10 2018 11 2018 12
6.27 6.03 6.06 5.97 5.94 5.73
100 96 97 95 95 91
5.71 5.72 5.65 5.57 5.63 5.37
91 91 90 89 90 86
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20 20%

2019 24
2018 12
31
LI Qingping CITIC
1962 10 CITIC
CITIC
CIFH CITIC
CITIC ai
2016 20
2014
2016
2014 2014
2013
CITIC CITIC
2014 CITIC
2015 12 CITIC CITIC
CITIC 2017
12 CITIC 2015
CIFH 2014
CITIC
2017 CITIC ai
2009 2013
2009 2009
2007 2008 12
1984
2007
30
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2018
CAO Guogiang 2018 CITIC
1964 12 2018 CITIC
2015 12 2018
2015 2018 CITIC
2018
2017 12
2016 10
2013
12
2015 12 2018
2009 10 2016
CIFH CNCBI 2005 12 2014
CNCBI
2010 2015 10
2006 2010
2005 2006
1992 12 2005
1988 1992
PBOC
30
2018 2014
FANG Heying) 2014 11
1966 2017
2019 CNCB
CNCBI CIFH
2013 2015
2014
2007 2013
2003
2007
1996 12 2003
1996 1996
12
1992 12 1996
1991 1992
12
20

82/410




EDINETOOOO
00000000000 DO0000O00o0o00b0OoO0Odnoo(Es9d)

ooooodo
2016 11
HUANG Fang 2015 11 2013
1973 2011
2010 10
2011
1992 2010
2016 2018
WAN Liming 12
1966 2011 11 2018 11
2009 12 2011 11
2007 2009
12
1996 2007
1996 1996
1988
1996
30
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2016
HE Cao
1955
1979
2002
2013 2002
Tierl
2009
2009 2010
2014
12
13 2007
2012
20
1979 1986
1987
2004
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2016
CHEN Lihua
1962

21

1999 2001

2005 2006

1983 1988
1998
1999 2000

European Journal of
Operational Research Proceeding of Workshop
on Internet and Network Economics
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2016 12 2017
QIAN Jun
1970 2014 2017
EMBA/DBA/EE
2013 12 2016 12
Review of Finance 2013
2017
EMBA
2009 2013
2000 2013
2000 2006
2006 2013
2011 2013 Haub
2011
Frontiers of Economics in China
2007 2009
2007 2008
MIT
2002
1988 1991
1993
2000
American Economic Review Journal of
Finance Journal of Financial Economics
Journal of Financial and Quantitative Analysis
Journal of International Economics
China’ s Great Economic Transformation
Emerging Giants: China and India in the World
Economy China’ s Emerging Financial Markets:
Challenges and Opportunities Global
Perspectives of Rule of Law
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2018
YAN Lap Kei lIsaac 1984
1960 10 1987 KPMG
1988 KPMG
1989
1993
1998

2000 2017 KPMG

KPMG

CSRC
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2018
LIU Cheng 2008
1967 12 2018
2004 12
2008
2003 2004
12
1995 2003
1989
1995
2001
2019
DENG Changging 2014 11 2019
1973 2016
2019
2009 2014 11
2007 2009
2000
2007
WANG Xiuhong 2003 12 2015
1946 10
2004 10 2010 12
2003 2004
1997
2003
1994 1997
2016
JIA Xiangsen) 2010 2014
1955 2008
2010
1983 12 2008
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ZHENG Wei)
1974 1988
1999
2016
2016
2017
2018 11
1999 2000
2018
CHEN Panwu) 2014 12
1964 2015
2018 2005
2014 11
2012 10 2014 11
1994 2005
2011
ZENG Yufang) 2008 2011
1970 12 2003 12 2008
2001 2003 11
1998 12 2001
1996 1998
11

89/410



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 DO0000O00o0o00b0OoO0Odnoo(Es9d)
oOoOooodn

( )
FANG Heying)
1966
2014
GUO Danghuai) 2014 11
1964 2013 2014
2010 2013
2006 2010
2005 2006
2001 2005
2000 11 2001
CITIC
1999 2000 11
1986
1999
30
2015
YANG Yu 2015 12
1962 12 CITIC
2011
2015
2006 2011
1982 2006
30
2017
MO Yue 2015 10 2017
1959 10 CITIC
2010 2015 10 CITIC
2007
2010 et
2000 11 2007
1997 2000 11
1984
1997
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2017 2017 11
HU Gang 2014 12
1967 2018 2015
2018
2014 2017
2013 2014
2005
2013
2000 2005
1997 10
2000
1993 1997 10
1993
1989 1993
10
2019
XIE Zhibin 2015 2019
1969
2012 2015
2014
2015
2011
2012
2001 10 2011
1991 2001 10
2017
YAO Ming 2014 10 2018
1960 2014 10
2013 2014
2004 2013
1999 2004
1996 10 1999
1995 1996
1993 1995 924
1991 1993
1984
1991 924
20
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2017
LU Wei 2019
1971 10 2018 JSC Altyn
2017 CITIC ai 2016
2016 10 2019
2013 2016 10
2013
2013
1997 2013
2001 2002
1994 1997
20
2018 20 2016
LU Jingen
1969 2012 11 2016
2007
2012 11
2006
2007
1999 2006
1994
1999
20
EMBA
2018 20 2014
L0 Tiangui
1972 10 2017
2014 2019 2003
2014
1993 2003
1993 2003
25
CIA
@
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9 9,046 144,193 3,757 59,887
10 [6H) (16) 1 16
282 4,495 387 6,169
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36 37,453 597,001 57,843 922,017
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68,403 1,090,344 14,730 234,796
3,159 50,354 (9,442) (150,505)
42,501 677,466 10,896 173,682
14,712 234,509
43,837 698,762 116,178 1,851,877
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17,850 284,529
503,423 8,024,563
(19,990) (318,641) (183,284) (2,921,547)
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1,154 18,395 52 829

320 5,101 178 2,837
(1,535,459)  (24,475,216) (1,131,592) (18,037,576)
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(815,230)  (12,994,766) (801,447) (12,775,065)
(21,836) (348,066) (17,699) (282,122)
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31,785 506,653 (40,176) (640, 405)
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102 11

6 89

29,599 27,416
4,972 4,899
1,830 1,818
1,112 993
458 524

485 498

398 372
9,255 9,104
1,699 1,660
12,047 10,733
52,600 48,913
20 2017 18
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2017

5,000,001
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2018 12 31

12

10,000,000
15,000,000

2017

12 31

2018

2017

20,089 21,235
18,452 19,789
1,438 1,418

39,979 42,442

12 31

2018

2017
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32)
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(69)
@
1,018
272
an
295

5,617
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3,034
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999
75
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57,886
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12 31
2018 2017
12,680 15,249
561 487
46 104
35(c) (4,337) (6,442)
8,950 9,398
25 16.5
12 31
2018 2017
54,326 52,276
13,581 13,069
(286) (325)
274 259
(3,353) (3,097)
(1,209) (301)
(67 (207)
8,950 9,398
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2018

@

15
*

65

an

83

(8)

10)

(10,877)
149
2,686

)
13,300
149
(3,409)

)
173

(33)

2,209

(2,583)
®

12,379

(10,634)

12,462

(10,642)

25(a)

25(a)
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2018 2017 12 31
49 2016 12 31
2018 1,330
2017 1,330
2018 12 31
12 31
2018 2017
44,513 42,566
1,330 1,330
43,183 41,236
48,935 48,935
0.88 0.84
18
2018 2017
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
6,188 6,740
() 399,797 462,743
() 128,424 89,288
() 2,816 4,083
) 1,288 5,446
195
538,708 568,300
() PBOC
2018 12 31 PBOC 12 2017 12
31 15 12 2017 12 31 15
2017 12 31
2018 12 31
2017 12 31
PBOC
() PBOC
( ) PBOC
() PBOC 2015 31 PBOC
20
12 PBOC 2017
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2017 11
19
@
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )

44,318 73,832
21,028 17,557
65,346 91,389
31,984 26,187
1,783 6,774
33,767 32,961

114
99,227 124,350

37 D)
99,153 124,350

®
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )

) 65,023 67,370
22,256 45,629
11,834 11,351
34,090 56,980

114
99,227 124,350

37 )
99,153 124,350

( ) 2018 12 31 1,343 2017 12 31

1,676
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )

13,680 15,320

113,351 119,065

127,031 134,385

48,421 37,685

48,421 37,685

873

176,325 172,070

37 (165) @
176,160 172,069

2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
112,284 66,564
63,168 105,506
873

176,325 172,070

37 (165) @
176,160 172,069
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2017 12 31
( )

@) 38,728
©) 19,400
2,001

60,129
©) 5,775
65,904

2017 12 31
( )

705
4,039
2,722

30,098
37,564

1,063
101
1,164
38,728
668
36,788
1,272
38,728

2017 12 31

19,400
19,400
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2017 12 31

606
53
2,523
3,182

2,593

5,775

659
5,116
5,775

22(c)

2018 12 31 2017 12 31

¢ 22(c))
8,385 96 8 9,799 123 18

1,837,247 6,010 5,966 1,632,189 2,430 2,294
2,595,674 24,826 24,501 3,347,855 62,030 62,368

58,644 1,048 1,170 51,586 868 257

820 1 1

4,500,770 31,991 31,646 5,041,429 65,451 64,937
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( ) ( )
1,921,744 1,868,273
2,033,875 2,751,469
542,276 418,881
2,875 2,806
4,500,770 5,041,429
®
2012 CBIRC
2018 12 31 20,158
2017 12 31 70,217
©
23
@
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
3,402 28,417
6,428 26,209
9,830 54,626
958
6
10,794 54,626
37 O
10,790 54,626
®
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
58
©

2018 12 31 2017 12 31
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2017 12 31
( )
13,543
11,138
9,508
2,400
36,589
37 (3,946)
32,643

2018 18 19 20 23 25
26

25
@
2018 12 31
( )

1,833,171
146,414
47,817

2,027,402

643,407
442,493
203,853
194,737

1,484,490

8,338

3,520,230

37 (101, 100)

3,419,130

137
96,383

96,520

21

3,515,650

37 (132)
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2017 12 31
( )

1,812,589

107,456

45,258

1,965,303

505,305

333,719

226,545

166,015

1,231,584

3,196,887

37

(28,930)

(61,973)

(90,903)

3,105,984

2018 12 31
)
) ( ) ( ) ( )
3,353,529 92,949 65,414 3,511,892 1.81

7,592 727 19 8,338
(31,940) (22,788) (46,372) (101,100)
3,329,181 70,888 19,061 3,419,130
96,520 96,520
3,425,701 70,888 19,061 3,515,650
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cC»
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3,143,239 11,393 42,255 3,196,887 1.68
(52,997) (8,976) (28,930) (90,903)
3,090,242 2,417 13,325 3,105,984
2018 12 31
( )
37,648
27,766
65,414
(46,372)
19,042
2017 12 31
( )
24,360
17,895
42,255
(28,930)
13,325
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)
9,221 9,602 1,977 493 21,293
9,284 8,292 6,639 627 24,842
16,428 13,339 12,008 2,367 44,142
2,457 1,959 1,752 114 6,282
37,390 33,192 22,376 3,601 96,559
2017 12 31
( y ¢ ( ) ( ) ( )
)
6,739 7,624 767 424 15,554
8,543 9,741 8,814 1,466 28,564
14,168 13,614 11,886 363 40,031
3,392 2,201 1,620 162 7,375
32,842 33,180 23,087 2,415 91,524
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25
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
11,826 14,182 6,920 9,952
9,866 11,626 10,233 11,371
7,863 9,140 8,365 9,066
18,262 20,606 19,740 22,501
47,817 55,554 45,258 52,890
(1,001)
(429)
(100)
@
(1,003)
46,287 44,254
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2018 12 31

(

189,176
71,920
52
26,486
16,713
116
4,461

308,872

381,688
228,502
151,582

11,406

773,178

37

8,430
(3,370)

778,238

)

491,015
12,644

503,659

6,687

510,346

37

(1,039)

2,707

1,600,163

99,095
CITIC

2018 12 31
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2,630 498,130 500,760
77 5,529 5,606
2,707 503,659 506,366
37 (1,039) (1,039)
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( )

475,246
122,411
400,793
126,144

1,124,594

16,121
433,910
2,084
11,707

463,822

15,117

1,603,533

37 (3,370)

1,600,163

39,541
1,104,876
455,746

1,600,163

©

2018 12 31

( ) «( ) «( ) «( )
768,136 3,882 1,160 773,178

8,422 8 8,430
37 (2,680) (152) (538) (3.370)

773,878 3,738 622 778,238

503,334 104 221 503,659

6,686 1 6,687

510,020 105 221 510,346

1,283,898 3,843 843 1,288,584
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( )

@) 469,843

(b) 40,947

1,356

©) 744

© 612

(d) 119,518

26

631,690

@
2017 12 31
( )

245,368
72,171
31,985
78,084

427,608

13,635
18,535
1,151
8,914

42,235

469,843

23,590
429,769
16,484

469,843

(®)

2017 12 31
( )

38,391
1,436

1,120

40,947
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©
2017 12 31
( )

927

145
284

1,356

284
70
1,002

1,356

@
2017 12 31
( )

118,925

263
330

119,518

118,925
593

119,518
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2017 12 31
( )

55,105
54,246
88,774
18,133
216,258

325

3

328
216,586

37

216,586

273
209,985
6,328

216,586

212,530
206,202

2017 12 31

( )
268,247
139,020
126,794
534,061
37 (2,943)
531,118

61(@( )
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30
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
) 2,759 1,196
(b) 1,122 1,145
3,881 2,341
@
2018 12 31
CITIC aiBank
Corporation Limited
CITIC 70.0 40
)
JSC 70.5
50.1
)
( ) CITIC 20 2017 11 18
CBIRC CITIC 2018 14
14
() 2018 JsC 50.1
2018 12 31 2018 12 31
( ) ¢ )« ) ) )
CITIC 35,924 32,701 3,223 1,295 (484)
JsC 7,928 7,191 737 349 195
2017 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
CITIC 9,970 8,262 1,708 30 (291)
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
3,229 1,400
1,196
1,829 1,400
74) (204)
8
12 31 2,759 1,196
®
2018 12 31
CIAM 46 2,218
ZAFS 26.25 1,000
BFAE 20 500
2018 12 31 2018 12 31
) ) I ¢ ) ( ) ( )
CIAM 1,631 149 1,482 (718) (768)
ZAFS 884 884 5 5
BFAE 499 47 452 3 (30)
2017 12 31 2017 12 31
) I ¢ ) ( ) ( ) I )
CIAM 2,412 236 2,176 181 (251)
BFAE 581 98 483 1 (14)
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
1,489 1,183
1,145 1,111
306 190
(368) (81)
(10) 8
11
49 (72)
12 31 1,122 1,145
31
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
CIFH () 16,570 16,570
CNCB NGB () 1,577 1,577
() 102 102
CFLL () 4,000 4,000
22,249 22,249
2018 12 31
CIFH () 7,503 100 100
CNCB
1,889 99.05 0.71 99.76
)
200 51 51
)
CFLL () 4,000 100 100
( ) CIFH
CIFH 100 CIFH  CITIC
cBI 75
( ) CNCB 1984
CNCB
CNCB 99.05 CIFH CNCB 0.71
CNCB 99.76
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2018
2018
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2018 12 31
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) )
295 305
35 30
93 (18)
20 (22)
443 295
) ( ) ( ) )
21,313 1,078 11,018 33,409
1,157 210 1,466 2,833
(514) (663) (1,177)
(102) (1,041) (1,143)
31 59 90
21,885 1,288 10,839 34,012
(4,497) (7,582) (12,079)
(674) (1,156) (1,830)
9 492 501
229 610 839
(16) 42) (58)
(4,949) (7.,678) (12,627)
16,816 1,078 3,436 21,330
16,936 1,288 3,161 21,385
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2017

2017

2017
2017
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12 31

12 31
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( ) 2018 12 31
1,078

34

12 31

2018 12 31

35

2017 12 31

OooooOodd
( ) ) ) ( )
17,468 470 10,359 28,297
3,933 608 877 5,418
1) (130) @77)
(41) (88) (129)
21,313 1,078 11,018 33,409
(3,949) (6,514) (10,463)
(568) (1,250) (1,818)
115 115
20 67 87
(4,497) (7,582) (12,079)
13,519 470 3,845 17,834
16,816 1,078 3,436 21,330
2,859
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) )

849 914
47 (65)
896 849

2017 12 31

2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) )

23,174 21,825
(16) ®)
23,158 21,817
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2018 12 31

2017
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
/( / /( /
( ) ( ) ) ( )
95,710 23,729 68,409 17,060
(9,944) (2,526) 12,357 3,078
7,430 1,857 6,248 1,562
238 114 402 125
93,434 23,174 87,416 21,825
(86) (16) (48) ®)
93,348 23,158 87,368 21,817

2,720 2017 12 31
) ) I ) ) I ¢ )
17,060 3,070 1,562 125 21,817
3,020 (2,588) (10) 422
3,633 404 298 2 4,337
(3,430) ®3) (3,433)
16 2 ®) 15
23,729 (2.542) 1,857 114 23,158
13,165 (261) 721 (939) 12,686
3,899 645 838 1,060 6,442
2,686 3 2,689
©) 4

17,060 3,070 1,562 125 21,817
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36
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
@ 10,833 10,521
(b) 2,205
3,534 4,740
2,356 2,030
© 2,203 2,049
1,679 1,546
1,632 26,313
985 1,023
871 1,315
993 1,024
C) 10,162 7,282
37,453 57,843
@
)
4,436
©
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
2,429 1,931
499 518
2,928 2,449
37 (725) (400)
2,203 2,049
2018 12 31

2017 12 31
(D
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2018 12 31
12 31
C ) )
( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) )
19 60 11 3 74
20 165 [€H) 1 165
23 37 (33) 4
4,970 3,034 (3,606)  (4,398)
25 97,905 47,753  (46,938) 2,512 101,232
26
3,044 999 (689) 16 3,370
950 75 14 1,039
2,334 6,098 (1,182) 4,729 11,979
45 4,557 (50) 36 4,543
114,022 57,886  (52,415) 2,913 122,406
400 347 () (15) 725
400 347 ) (15) 725
2017 12 31
12 31
C ) )
( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) )
19 34 (32) @
20 9 6) 1
24 3,906 4,212 (3,977) (195) 3,946
25 75,543 50,170 (35,691) 881 90,903
27 162 (69) (15) 78
28 2 @
29 1,756 1,018 169 2,943
2,360 567 (364) 38 2,601
83,772 55,864 (40,032) 868 100,472
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
208,427 170,801
565,387 611,011
773,814 781,812
4,242 16,142
57 53
4,299 16,195
4,151
782,264 798,007
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
58,681 43,172
47,239 28,733
105,920 71,905
9,197 5,690
241
115,358 77,595
@
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
PBOC 93,151 88,063
25,911 46,321
1,000
120,062 134,384
218 116
218 116
35
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2018 12 31

58
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
33,809 52,415
86,471 82,085
35
120,315 134,500
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
1,516,861 1,645,002
262,960 234,961
1,779,821 1,879,963
1,382,230 1,223,018
449,549 298,477
1,831,779 1,521,495
4,823 6,178
33,188
3,649,611 3,407,636
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
163,066 195,308
21,757 24,941
6,234 9,289
109,627 108,830
300,684 338,368
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42
2018 12 31
12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
@) 8,635 22,660 (20,909) 10,386
(b) 34 2,453 (2,456) 31
©) 44 102 (111) 35
125 6 (34) 97
8,838 25,221 (23,510) 10,549
2017 12 31
12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
@ 8,673 23,253 (23,291) 8,635
(b) 32 2,377 (2,375) 34
© 35 11 @ 44
79 89 (43) 125
8,819 25,730 (25,711) 8,838
a
2018 12 31
12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
7,553 17,818 (15,915) 9,456
28 1,469 (1,452) 45
1,400 (1,398) 2
10 1,300 (1,302) 8
955 416 (566) 805
75 196 17) 54
14 61 (59) 16
8,635 22,660 (20,909) 10,386
2017 12 31
12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
7,483 18,594 (18,524) 7,553
49 1,324 (1,345) 28
1,121 (1,121)
19 1,291 (1,300) 10
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1,060 378 (483) 955
48 497 (470) 75
14 48 (48) 14
8,673 23,253 (23,291) 8,635
®
CITIC
2018 12 31
2017 12 31 2018 12
31 757 2017 12 31
662
©
43
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
VAT 3,342 4,175
1,570 4,668
8 15
4,920 8,858
44
2017 12 31
( )
28,097
7,311
3,551
364
39,323

2018 38 39 40 41 46
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45
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
4,543 402
470 394
5,013 796
37
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
394 244
220 152
@
(144)
12 31 470 394
46
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
@) 80,296 94,571
(b) 118,450 68,448
CBI ©) 5,520 5,280
(d 2,752 2,849
) 341,310 270,096
4,155
552,483 441,244
(@ 2018 12 31
2018 2017
12 31 12 31
2013 11 8 2018 11 12 5.20 15,000
2017 17 2020 17 4.20 50,000 50,000
2017 24 2020 24 4.40 2,993 2,993
2015 21 2020 25 3.98 7,000 7,000
2015 11 17 2020 11 17 3.61 8,000 8,000
2017 12 14 2020 12 14 3.24 4,814 4,555
2017 12 14 2020 12 14 2.88 2,063 1,952
2017 12 14 2022 12 15 3.34 3,783 3,579
2017 12 14 2022 12 15 3.13 1,719 1,627
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2025
2027
2024
2028
2028

) 2010

) 2012

) 2014

) 2018

) 2018

(©) 12

)

)

2020
2024

6.

6.

10

28

21

26

13

10 22

31

875

00
2019

CBI

300

500

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

OOOodOodn
80,372 94,706
(76) (90)
(45)
80,296 94,571
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
() 11,500 11,500
() 19,983 19,981
() 36,972 36,967
) 30,000
() 19,995
118,450 68,448
4.30 2020 28
4.30
5.15 2022 21
5.15
6.13 2019 26
6.13
4.96 2023 13
4.96
4.8 2023 10 22
4.8
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
) 3,465 3,341
) 2,055 1,939
5,520 5,280
2010 24 CBI
2013 11 CBI
4.718
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(e) 2018 12 31

4.00

47

( ) 2018 12 31

48

12 31

CBI

5.35

341,310

9,162
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2.05 2.26
2017 12 31 270,096
2.80 4.86 2017 12 31
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
13,829 13,545
11,010 6,667
) 9,162 6,306
5,818 4,278
1,579 1,616
1,383 4,872
741 636
10,539 7,996
54,061 45,916
2017 12 31 6,306
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( )
34,053 34,053
14,882 14,882
48,935 48,935
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
48,935 48,935
48,935 48,935
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49
3.80 100 350 35,000
3.80
100 35,000 200 2016 10
2018 12 31 34,955
Tier Tier
62 3.8
1.30
CBRC No.56 [2012])
)
7.07
CBIRC Tier
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
436,661 388,002
401,706 353,047
34,955 34,955
1,330 1,330
2018 12 31 1,330 2017 12 31
1,330
2018 12 13
400 100 2019 30
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51

42

52

12 31

53

12 31

1.5

MOF
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00000000000 DO0000O00o0o00b0OoO0Odnoo(Es9d)

ooooooo
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ( )
58,896
81
58,977
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ( )
58,636
55 341
58,977
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ( )
27,263
3,920
31,183
50
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ( )
73,911
340
74,251
2018 12 31
2018 12 31
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54
@
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
52 4,206 3,920
53 4 340
12 31 4,210 4,260
2019 26 2018 4,206
1.5
2018
(b) 2018 25 2018 12,772
10 2.61
(c) 2018 27 2018 10 26 1,330
3.8 3.80
(d) 2019 26 2018 12 31 10 2.30
11,255
2018 12 31
(e) 2018 12 31 200 2017 12
31 141 56 2017 12 31 53
2018 12 31
55
2018 12 31
CBI 2014 22 2016 29 2018 11
8,492 Tier
7.25
2014 300 2019
5.627
22 22
4.25
2016 500 2021
3.107
10 11 10 11
7.10
2018 500 2023
4.151
11 11
CBI
CBI
2018 12 31 289

2017 12 31 290
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2017 29 CIFH 100 CBI
CBI 100 CIFH CBI 75
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
6,188 6,740
128,423 89,288
88,801 110,898
124,923 79,078
27,674 51,911
369,821 331,175
376,009 337,915
@
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
4,521 14,926
35,508 57,434
40,029 72,360
393,851 427,561
434,590 310,315
158,813 195,746
92,924 88,772
1,120,207 1,094,754
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®
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
370,529 351,475
CBIRC
150
©)
)
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
5,356 7,385
( ) 2018 12 13
50
2018 12 31
@
2018 12 31
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
3,489 2,876
2,776 2,892
2,340 2,306
3,063 3,418
1,266 2,122
12,934 13,614
)
2018 12 31
271 2017 12 31 748
2018 12 31 220
2017 12 31 152 45
Q)
MOF PBOC
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
11,101 11,492
MOF
@
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
2017 12 31
58
@
)
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
439,272 407,755
33,955 52,780
172 111
473,399 460,646
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
12
() 2018 12 31
1,335 2017 12 31 1,668
®)
23
2018 12 31
2017 12 31 2018 12
31 2017

12 31
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
640,227 791,555
640,229 791,556
65(c) 65 (b)
65(b)

65(b)
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2018 12 31

( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) )
53,087 52,250 27,170 (27,735) 104,772

19,982 (32,360) (18,247) 30,625
73,069 19,890 8,923 2,890 104,772
11,609 32,999 618 (78) 45,148
)) 2,506 4,250 8,516 574 15,846
87,184 57,139 18,057 3,386 165,766
(1,049) (552) (640) (701) (2,942)
(19,675) (25,560) (3,486) (937) (49,658)
(42,216) (15,295) (187) (188) (57,886)
(347) (347)
35 35
(642) (642)
24,244 15,732 13,744 606 54,326
(8,950)
45,376
1,394 769 851 1,089 4,103

2018 12 31

) ( ) ( ) ( ) )
2,328,330 1,155,488 1,488,115 1,067,726 6,039,659
118 3,763 3,881
23,174
6,066,714
3,046,177 1,538,976 716,638 311,821 5,613,612
16
5,613,628
1,027,283 92,924 1,120,207

194/410



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

OooooOodd
2017 12 31

( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
56,534 43,899 20,671 (21,459) 99,645

16,442 (23,724) (17,572) 24,854
72,976 20,175 3,099 3,395 99,645
13,285 32,866 702 5 46,858
» 819 1,312 7,279 1,318 10,728
87,080 54,353 11,080 4,718 157,231
(995) (432) (554) (830) (2,811)
(20,691) (23,747) (1,552) (112) (46,102)
(44,651) (9,891) (210) (1,035) (55,787)
30 30
(285) (285)
20,743 20,283 8,764 2,486 52,276
(9,398)
42,878
3,309 1,981 1,953 1,157 8,400

2017 12 31

( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2,447,930 1,022,133 1,292,692 890,770 5,653,525
131 2,210 2,341
21,825
5,677,691
3,075,264 1,272,327 784,837 132,822 5,265,250
8
5,265,258
784,439 310,315 1,094,754
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2018 12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
26,679 17,920 14,234 16,865 17,332 2,334 3,504 5,904 104,772
(3,327) (300) 6,477 (2,907) (5,703) (489) 6,578 (329)
23,352 17,620 20,711 13,958 11,629 1,845 10,082 5,575 104,772
3,047 2,756 4,571 1,603 1,603 341 29,788 1,439 45,148
(i) 991 216 638 112 103 26 12,979 781 15,846
27,390 20,592 25,920 15,673 13,335 2,212 52,849 7,795 165,766
(515) (266) (375) (342) (419) 127) (704) (194) (2,942)
(7,404) (5,628) (7,581) (5,066) (5,062) (1,194) (14,892) (2,831) (49,658)
(8,378) (6,669) (11,366) (6,131) (8,000) (4,419) (11,821) (1,102) (57,886)
(113) © (66) (83 ©) (67) (347)
35 35
(288) (354) (642)
10,980 8,020 6,532 4,134 (229) (3,537) 25,144 3,282 54,326
(8,950)
45,376
331 1,017 171 144 311 42 1,641 446 4,103
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2018 12 31
) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
1,184,230 812,520 1,255,616 594,775 539,071 97,329 2,442,818 337,570 (1,224,270) 6,039,659
2,878 1,003 3,881
23,174
6,066,714
1,191,150 800,478 1,228,822 596,075 524,880 106,680 2,084,629 282,868 (1,201,970) 5,613,612
16
5,613,628
189,531 133,112 125,076 140,766 77,284 10,914 427,397 16,127 1,120,207
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2017 12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
16,386 14,398 7,764 14,662 14,345 2,375 24,542 5,173 99,645
( ) 4,129 2,191 12,649 (158) (2,061) (576) (15,987) 187)
20,515 16,589 20,413 14,504 12,284 1,799 8,555 4,986 99,645
4,150 3,689 5,724 1,940 1,945 302 27,564 1,544 46,858
i) 647 3 702 204 99 25 7,108 1,571 10,728
25,312 20,650 26,839 16,648 14,328 2,126 43,227 8,101 157,231
“72) (289) (412) (333) (386) (104) (640) (175) (2,811)
(7,555) (5,379) @,717) (5,067) (4,996) (1,233) (11,288) (2,867) (46,102)
(13,962) (10,580) (9,826) (7,792) (7,550) (742) (4,103) 1,232) (55,787)
30 30
(204) (81) (285)
3,323 4,402 8,884 3,456 1,396 47 27,022 3,746 52,276
(9,398)
42,878
3,193 198 347 1,161 301 38 2,987 175 8,400
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2017 12 31
) ( )« ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
1,288,981 916,081 1,228,113 626,587 574,942 94,618 2,298,905 306,651 (1,681,353) 5,653,525
1,196 1,145 2,341
21,825
5,677,691
1,135,639 820,311 1,079,757 565,919 483,560 86,047 2,466,613 266,293 (1,638,889) 5,265,250
8
5,265,258
198,104 158,719 154,949 161,686 85,618 13,277 304,020 18,381 1,094,754
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2018 IFRS
ECL
ECL
12 ECL 12
ECL
ECL
ECL
ECL ECL

POCI

ECL

ECL
IFRS ECL
@
1
15 2
3 30
90
90

@ii)

90

ECL

202/410



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

oOoOooodn
)
12
PD 12
LGD
LGD
LGD
12
EAD 12
PD ECL
PD
LGD EAD
ECL
)
ECL
ECL
PD
PD
ECL 12 ECL
ECL ECL
ECL
ECL GDP
2018 ECL
GDP 5.70 6.82
2.78 16.69

3.70 3.85
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ECL
12 ECL
ECL
)
ECL
2018 12 31 10 10
28.68
10 10
21.66
12 ECL ECL
ECL
ECL 12 ECL
2018 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )

53,070 1,790 54,860
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2018 12 31 2017
12 31
( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) )
532,520 532,520 561,560
99,153 99,153 124,350
176,159 1 176,160 172,069
61,380
31,991 31,991 65,451
10,790 10,790 54,626
32,643
3,425,701 70,888 19,061 3,515,650 3,105,984
308,872 308,872
773,878 3,738 622 778,238
510,020 105 221 510,346
2,707 2,707
510,790
216,586
531,118
17,440 2,191 4,667 24,298 47,972
5,545,661 76,922 24,572 343,570 5,990,725 5,484,529
1,114,830 5,257 120 1,120,207 1,094,754
6,660,491 82,179 24,692 343,570 7,110,932 6,579,283
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ECL
2018 12 31
) 2,713,135 683,890 60,616 3,457,641 (31,940) 3,425,701
414 9,373 83,889 93,676 (22,788) 70,888
65,433 65,433 (46,372) 19,061
671,939 104,619 776,558 (2,680) 773,878
3,890 3,890 (152) 3,738
1,160 1,160 (538) 622
493,858 16,162 510,020 727) 510,020
105 105 0) 105
221 221 (310) 221
3,879,346 818,039 144,505 66,814 4,908,704 (105,509) 4,804,234
)
( ) ( ) ( )
2018 3,036,736 92,227 67,933
(84,271)
11,115
73,156
() 495,119 (10,215) (28,961)
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2018 12 31
2018
()
2018 12 31
)
)
2018
)
()
2018 12 31

(

(

)

)

(

)

EDINETOOOO

OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

OooooOodd
(46,937)
10,057 549 242
3,457,641 93,676 65,433
( ) ) )
1,064,552 347 45
(8,430)
3,875
4,555
227,172 (236) (2,528)
(689)
3,280 9 2
1,286,574 3,995 1,385
( ) ) )
30,664 24,674 42,565
(1,870)
515
48,640
4,702 (1,838) (1,337)
(1,540) (625) 1,107
(46,937)
116 62 2,334
32,072 22,788 46,372
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( ) ( ) ( )

3,953 10 31

(239)

144

1,843

370
) (703) (341)
(689)
26 4
3,407 154 848

ECL
LGD ECL
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ( ( (
) ) ) )
312,923 8.7 273,640 333,055 10.4 272,486
295,005 8.2 140,199 324,029 10.1 141,571
282,699 7.8 177,013 221,786 6.9 134,207
208,922 5.8 106,882 179,441 5.6 87,763
151,391 4.2 89,064 193,818 6.1 103,102
151,038 4.2 76,331 152,851 4.8 79,120
79,086 2.2 31,980 77,878 2.4 31,442
72,938 2.0 40,669 70,523 2.2 32,688
13,366 0.4 2,721 18,566 0.6 5,399
313,757 8.6 128,377 285,900 8.9 120,153
1,881,125 52.1 1,066,876 1,857,847 58.0 1,007,931
1,484,490 41.0 1,000,203 1,231,584 38.6 859,513
242,797 6.7 107,456 3.4
8,338 0.2
3,616,750 100.0 2,067,079 3,196,887 100.0 1,867,444
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ( ( (
) ) ) )
1,123,293 31.1 426,447 967,864 30.3 428,764
784,722 21.7 507,327 691,183 21.6 443,504
549,491 15.2 448,719 493,118 15.4 390,394
463,100 12.8 296,286 421,810 13.2 265,898
433,143 12.0 269,765 389,152 12.2 231,120
75,682 2.1 51,582 67,609 2.1 44,403
178,981 4.9 66,953 166,151 5.2 63,361
8,338 0.2
3,616,750 100.0 2,067,079 3,196,887 100.0 1,867,444
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )
806,154 708,164
492,382 513,823
2,067,079 1,867,444
1,658,484 1,510,366
408,595 357,078
3,365,615 3,089,431
242,797 107,456
8,338
3,616,750 3,196,887
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
) ( )
21,588 0.60 23,245 0.73
18,748 0.52 19,859 0.62
2018 12 31
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2018 12 31
) AAA AA A A
371,368 114,370 11,693 265 497,696
108,816 8,664 7,016 124,496
178 29 1,666 1,873
26,995 181,031 4,569 23,595 9,591 245,781
55,240 48,675 10,047 7,230 6,254 127,446
228,392 228,392
178,019 178,019
969,008 352,769 27,975 38,106 15,845 1,403,703
2017 12 31
C () ARA AA A A
257,551 48,565 8,440 375 314,931
127,848 609 128,457
3 1,151 1,154
8,506 160,311 3,986 15,953 6,734 195,490
9,014 96,367 23,018 15,138 5,187 148,724
402,922 305,243 36,595 32,075 11,921 788,756
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )

16,650
300,089
89,831

153,510

303,386

77,165

406,570 534,061
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2018 12 31
CcC»
( ( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) )

1.54 538,708 17,047 521,661
2.22 99,153 114 94,039 5,000
3.38 176,160 873 129,236 46,051
2.59 10,790 10,790
4.86 3,515,650 8,635 1,577,525 918,215 996,066 15,209

308,872 225,164 28,057 26,624 20,915 8,112
4.711 778,238 8,541 67,972 181,186 388,840 131,699
3.80 510,346 8,529 42,830 73,607 288,337 97,043

2,707 2,707
126,090 124,208 1,711 171
6,066,714 395,818 2,473,821 1,250,854 1,694,158 252,063
3.29 286,430 68,350 218,080
3.54 782,264 4,151 553,283 224,660 170
3.49 115,358 241 83,859 31,224 34
962 962

2.84 120,315 35 110,790 9,490
1.88 3,649,611 20,940 2,605,686 647,223 375,730 32
4.52 552,483 4,155 98,144 247,974 95,260 106,950

106,205 104,823 1,382

5,613,628 135,307 3,521,494 1,378,651 471,160 107,016
453,086 260,511 (1,047,673) (127,797) 1,222,998 145,047
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2017 12 31
CC»
( ( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) )
1.56 568,300 23,810 544,490
2.21 124,350 120,240 4,110
3.07 172,069 87,328 84,741
2.89 54,626 54,626
4.25 531,118 38,907 196,646 86,330 141,352 67,883
(@) ) 4.61 3,105,984 370 1,391,782 799,622 900,054 14,156
(@) ) 3.28 916,521 123,246 138,729 117,223 386,946 150,377
204,723 178,407 9,383 16,933
5,677,691 364,740 2,543,224 1,108,959 1,428,352 232,416
3.13 237,600 41,500 196,100
3.75 798,007 2,812 623,409 171,781 5
2.85 77,595 39,440 38,123 32
2.91 134,500 121,677 12,823
1.59 3,407,636 14,605 2,647,574 503,511 241,939 7
4.17 441,244 199,063 88,880 116,353 36,948
168,676 163,769 2,393 2,514
5,265,258 181,186 3,675,056 1,013,732 358,297 36,987
412,433 183,554 (1,131,832) 95,227 1,070,055 195,429
2018 12 31
42,289 2017 12 31 43,660
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
100 (11,435) (1,409) (6,328) (1,229)
100 11,435 1,409 6,328 1,229
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2018 12 31

) ( )
525,321 12,668 535 184 538,708
64,670 23,757 2,429 8,297 99,153
123,262 41,291 9,137 2,470 176,160
9,832 958 10,790
3,263,386 122,573 109,773 19,918 3,515,650
287,997 18,146 2,729 308,872
775,749 2,489 778,238
429,671 50,766 23,970 5,939 510,346
2,340 155 212 2,707
121,762 1,858 515 1,955 126,090
5,603,990 274,661 149,300 38,763 6,066,714
286,430 286,430
777,789 2,582 131 1,762 782,264
101,094 14,139 125 115,358
962 962
120,097 218 120,315
3,283,244 205,993 138,905 21,469 3,649,611
531,768 20,715 552,483
93,020 3,626 7,625 1,934 106,205
5,193,442 248,235 146,786 25,165 5,613,628
410,548 26,426 2,514 13,598 453,086
1,004,799 95,187 12,862 7,359 1,120,207
33,795 (38,861) 22,205 (14,261) 2,878
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2017 12 31
) ( )
551,528 15,956 650 166 568,300
83,703 25,650 8,411 6,586 124,350
133,686 28,356 6,703 3,324 172,069
54,626 54,626
531,118 531,118
2,880,887 106,687 103,638 14,772 3,105,984
846,759 46,739 18,687 4,336 916,521
199,761 1,904 1,618 1,440 204,723
5,282,068 225,292 139,707 30,624 5,677,691
237,600 237,600
769,690 15,103 349 12,865 798,007
66,913 10,411 253 18 77,595
134,384 116 134,500
3,053,751 201,668 128,314 23,903 3,407,636
421,420 19,122 702 441,244
159,456 1,966 3,381 3,873 168,676
4,843,214 248,386 132,999 40,659 5,265,258
438,854 (23,094) 6,708 (10,035) 412,433
938,064 117,615 20,124 18,951 1,094,754
(20,790) 9,158 21,489 7,532 17,389
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
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2018 12 31
)
) ) )« ) ) ) )
134,917 1,288 402,503 538,708
65,701 28,245 5,207 99,153
129,317 46,843 176,160
10,790 10,790
7,117 585,723 952,830 910,098 1,022,976 36,906 3,515,650
30,418 43,589 29,476 8,115 197,274 308,872
68,375 182,641 394,010 132,878 334 778,238
31 39,437 75,556 295,308 99,920 94 510,346
2,707 2,707
34,630 17,382 12,238 28,655 180 33,005 126,090
242,396 909,687 1,320,192 1,657,547 1,264,069 672,823 6,066,714
80 68,350 218,000 286,430
319,576 236,910 225,607 171 782,264
84,099 31,225 34 115,358
962 962
110,823 9,492 120,315
1,880,088 746,341 647,718 375,432 32 3,649,611
98,205 247,992 97,354 108,932 552,483
50,170 16,677 16,827 6,554 4,419 11,558 106,205
2,250,876 1,361,405 1,396,861 479,511 113,417 11,558 5,613,628
(2,008,480) (451,718) (76,669) 1,178,036 1,150,652 661,265 453,086
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2017 12 31
cC»
) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
96,481 3,523 1,923 466,373 568,300
69,392 50,819 4,139 124,350
400 86,928 84,741 172,069
54,626 54,626
504 196,142 91,944 174,645 67,883 531,118
12,973 495,684 769,740 862,643 919,143 45,801 3,105,984
1,114 96,202 124,076 417,814 155,248 122,067 916,521
69,662 47,606 55,520 12,831 7,357 11,747 204,723
250,526 1,031,530 1,132,083 1,467,933 1,149,631 645,988 5,677,691
41,550 196,050 237,600
240,616 385,586 171,800 5 798,007
39,440 38,123 32 77,595
121,677 12,823 134,500
1,982,218 670,433 513,039 241,939 7 3,407,636
199,063 88,880 116,353 36,948 441,244
68,746 42,866 40,546 6,506 1,430 8,582 168,676
2,291,580 1,500,615 1,061,261 364,803 38,417 8,582 5,265,258
(2,041,054) (469,085) 70,822 1,103,130 1,111,214 637,406 412,433
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2018 12 31
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) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
134,721 1,621 6,608 402,503 545,453
67,502 29,625 5,326 102,453
134,633 57,838 192,471
10,795 10,795
8,797 620,238 1,042,464 1,197,180 1,536,250 40,738 4,445,667
35,039 47,703 31,114 88,205 200,776 402,837
74,135 201,371 418,337 163,300 5,880 863,023
31 43,751 97,680 375,381 145,474 11,941 674,258
2,406 2,406
34,630 17,381 12,239 28,655 180 33,275 126,360
245,681 967,218 1,471,229 2,050,667 1,933,409 697,519 7,365,723
80 64,769 226,130 290,979
573,392 662,179 485,918 31,575 1,753,064
89,065 40,706 34 129,805
962 962
110,983 9,483 155 120,621
1,880,996 760,404 679,534 429,917 40 3,750,891
98,780 306,786 180,166 108,932 694,664
50,171 16,677 16,827 6,554 4,419 11,558 106,206
2,505,601 1,802,857 1,765,384 648,367 113,425 11,558 6,847,192
(2,259,920) (835,639) (294,155) 1,402,300 1,819,984 685,961 518,531
(56) 44 128 23 139
1,194,286 1,244,844 48,220 2,487,350
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(802,726) (1,243,629) (48,151) (2,094,506)
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2017 12 31
)

) ( )« ) ( )« ) ( )« )

96,481 5,348 7,820 466,373 576,022
69,392 51,126 4,353 124,871
400 87,275 88,704 176,379
54,664 54,664

504 198,785 104,126 207,422 83,377 594,214
14,928 527,401 851,330 1,121,708 1,373,413 48,140 3,936,920
1,114 103,323 145,063 470,191 171,707 122,117 1,013,515
69,662 47,606 55,520 12,831 7,357 11,747 204,723
252,481 1,075,528 1,256,916 1,812,152 1,635,854 648,377 6,681,308
42,083 203,230 245,313

240,617 391,400 178,750 6 810,773
39,494 38,166 33 77,693

122,362 13,009 135,371

1,983,354 682,437 541,013 271,799 8 3,478,611
200,312 100,698 135,496 40,673 477,179

68,746 43,151 40,277 6,491 1,430 8,582 168,677
2,292,717 1,521,239 1,115,143 413,792 42,144 8,582 5,393,617
(2,040,236) (445,711) 141,773 1,398,360 1,593,710 639,795 1,287,691

9 (85) (295) 17 (354)

1,185,850 1,750,876 27,070 3 2,963,799

(1,185,464) (1,749,920) (26,861) (2,962,245)
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2018 12 31
393,851 393,851
427,681 6,909 434,590
83,905 68,354 6,554 158,813
7,033 15,578 17,418 40,029
90,634 2,290 92,924
1,003,104 93,131 23,972 1,120,207
2017 12 31
427,490 71 427,561
310,315 310,315
113,575 81,171 1,000 195,746
86,600 2,172 88,772
18,718 24,784 28,858 72,360
956,698 108,198 29,858 1,094,754
) PBOC
)
)
@
IT
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CBIRC

CBIRC

2013 2012 CBIRC

CBIRC 2018

Tier Tier
8.50 9.50 11.50
Tier Tier
7.50 8.50 10.50
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CBIRC
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
Tier 8.62 8.49
Tier 9.43 9.34
12.47 11.65
Tier
48,935 48,935
58,977 58,977
5,269 (11,784)
34,450 31,183
74,255 74,251
179,820 163,121
4,422 3,872
Tier 406,128 368,555
Tier
(896) (849)
(1,878) (1,139)
Tier
Tier 403,354 366,567
Tier () 37,768 36,811
Tier 441,122 403,378
Tier
Tier 104,515 60,842
37,122 37,255
634 1,346
583,393 502,821
4,677,713 4,317,502
( ) 2018 12 31 Tier 49

55
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2018
12 31

2017 2018 2017
12 31 12 31 12 31
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778,238 778,779

216,586 212,530
531,118 533,669
2,813 2,849 2,752 2,849
82,091 94,571 80,625 94,131
126,269 73,728 126,041 76,246
341,310 270,096 335,475 265,071

2018 12 31
) )« ) )
2,109 501,890 274,780 778,779
2,752 2,752
80,625 80,625
5,642 120,399 126,041
335,475 335,475

2017 12 31
)« ) ( )« )
897 211,633 212,530
92,967 440,702 533,669
2,849 2,849
94,131 94,131
5,531 70,715 76,246
265,071 265,071
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(®)
() () ()
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2018 12 31
137 137
96,383 96,383
2,815 62,319 6,786 71,920
4,879 178,451 5,846 189,176
16,713 16,713
116 116
540 3,921 4,461
26,486 26,486
64,506 421,783 4,726 491,015
662 11,982 12,644
295 2,412 2,707
8 6,098 6,106
24,825 1 24,826
1,048 1,048
11 11
73,705 819,750 50,294 943,749
962 962
12 5,962 5,974
24,500 1 24,501
1,170 1,170
1 1
974 31,633 1 32,608
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) ) )

( ) ) ( DN ¢ )
2017 12 31

3,480 35,248 38,728
2,000 1 2,001
177 19,223 19,400
198 5,577 5,775
2,552 1 2,553
62,030 62,030
868 868
48,906 420,925 12 469,843
189 119,259 70 119,518
104 40,843 40,947
26 26
744 744
53,798 708,551 84 762,433
2,311 1 2,312
62,368 62,368
257 257
64,936 1 64,937
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2018 12 31

2017
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( ( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) ) )
45,535 4,850 237 1 50,623 () ()
194 (40) 1 155 () ()
102 [©) 93
8,549 1,700 2,185 12,434
(11,105) (1,926) () (13,032) 1 1
39 39
(18) 1 (€H) (18)
43,155 4,726 2,412 1 50,294 [€)) [€))
( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
1 2 13 83 99 ) ()
(€Y} ) O} 1 1
(€H) ® )
1 1 12 70 84 [€H) ()
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@
() CITIC
65.37 CITIC
() CITIC CITIC
2015 12 31 2,147,469,539  CNTC
CNTC 2016 17 2016
24 CBIRC
2015 4.68
2,292,579,000
2016 17 16 CBRC
2016 11 29
2,320,177,000 4.74 2017 10
2,446,265,000
4.999
0.06 27,216,400
2018 25
®
2018 12 31
)
) ( ) ( )
244 4 63
1,240 2
(445) (869) an

(32)
(1,398)
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2017 12 31
)
( ) ( ) )
337 46
1,573 8
(597) (407) 1)
9 11
(940)
2018 12 31
)
( ) ( ) )
10,645 14,363
(258) 417)
10,387 13,946
5,364
310
4,258 4,318
1,547
60
3,881
10,941
25,710 178 1,201
24
37,496 41,756 17
2,503
1,222
1,828 452
72
45,729 6,641
18,514 12,540
707
52,986 9,638
7,950
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2017 12 31
)
( ) ( ) ( )
16,556 875
172) 12)
16,384 863
7,000
418
14
123 1
390
2,341
10,104
16,205 178 266
2,800
6
69,094 17,362 75
107 21 1
72
1,979 13
618 190
7,695 1,500
2,130 6,446
496 450
7,793 867
1,710

CNTC

2018 CNTC
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0.40 2017
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( ) ( )

11,751 13,495

24,141 20,134

2,693 2,860

38,585 36,489
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€))
2018 12 31
2018 12 31
( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) )
116 116 116
228,502 228,502 228,502
26,486 151,582 178,068 178,068
1,289 39,846 61,994 103,129 103,129
189,176 189,176 189,176
217,067 419,930 61,994 698,991 698,991
2017 12 31
( ( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) )
26 139,020 139,046 139,046
268,247 268,247 268,247
126,794 126,794 126,794
34,234 16,877 51,111 51,111
2,001 119,518 121,519 121,519
2,001 34,234 136,421 534,061 706,717 706,717
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2018 12 31

2018 12 31
2,628
2,258

2018 12 31

31 70,488

44,605 2017 12

2017 12 31 72

2018 12 31
202,167 C

©

66

175,601

2018 12 31
2017 12 31

865

79
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1,058,907

2017
620

5,536
2017

31 25,901

,372
13,435

ITIC

40
227,518

127,271
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2017 12 31 1,132,676

2,271 2017

1,613

63,500 2017 12
2018 12 31
68,144

2017 12 31 44,233

198,892 2017 12 31

2018 12 31
2017 12 31

©

192,665
7,197 2017 12 31

897 2017 12 31
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2018 12 31
2017 12 31
34,853

2018 12 31

48,330
2017 12 31

©

(

)
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
( )
533,393 564,105
78,758 102,139
4,988 3,348
144,364 149,511
59,976
26,571 61,795
10,790 54,626
31,674
3,285,963 2,886,685
293,542
777,883
449,350
2,242
579,623
216,586
531,118
25,008 23,445
20,956 20,594
1,301 1,135
22,458 21,605
33,108 51,249
5,710,675 5,359,214
286,350 237,500
782,768 799,259
71,482 34,088
962
25,784 61,236
120,095 134,384
3,397,318 3,181,070
9,508 8,024
4,086 8,153
38,395
4,944 796
541,053 430,176
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44,800 38,131
5,289,150 4,971,212
48,935 48,935
34,955 34,955
61,359 61,359
5,167 (9,782)
34,450 31,183
73,370 73,370
163,289 147,982
421,525 388,002
5,710,675 5,359,214
(9,782) 31,183 147,982 388,002
4,478 (939) (8,442) (4,903)
(5,304) 30,244 139,540 383,099
42,057 42,057
10,471 10,471
10,471 42,057 52,528
4,206 (4,206)
12,772) 12,772)
(1,330) (1,330)
5,167 34,450 163,289 421,525
1,737) 27,263 124,557 368,702
39,196 39,196
(8,045) (8,045)
(8,045) 39,196 31,151
3,920 (3,920)
(10,521) (10,521)
(1,330) (1,330)
(9,782) 31,183 147,982 388,002
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a
2018 12 31 :
( ( ( ( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ( ) ) ) ) )

)
600 652 132 184 1,568

. (Q)
Cao Guogiang ) 233 229 104 63 629

Huang Fang )

Wan Liming )
He Cao 300 300
Chen Lihua 300 300
Qian Jun 300 300
Ying Liji 82 82
Liu Cheng 467 451 47 99 1,064

Deng Changqing )
Wang Xiuhong 300 300
Jia Xiangsen 300 300
Deng Wei 300 300
Cheng Pusheng 360 2,373 164 178 3,075
Chen Panwu 440 2,327 179 184 3,130
Zeng Yufang 330 2,457 117 329 3,233

2018

Chang Zhenming )

Shu Yang ) 225 225
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Wu Xiaoqing w) 225 225
Wang Lianzhang w)
Zhu Gaoming w)
Sun Desheng 900 1,124 222 209 2,455
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2017 12 31
(GE@D))
)

Sun Deshun 900 1,112 351 233 2,596
Zhu Gaoming
Huang Fang
Wan Liming
Chang Zhenming
Wu Xiaoqing 300
Wong Luen

300

Cheung Andrew

He Cao 300
Chen Lihua 300
Qian Jun 300
Cao Guogiang 700 658 297 219 1,874
Wang Xiuhong 300 300
Jia Xiangsen 300 300
Zheng Wei 300 300
Cheng Pusheng 340 2,418 261 202 3,221
Chen Panwu 430 2,191 281 211 3,113
Zeng Yufang 320 2,344 94 340 3,098
Shu Yang
2017
Zhu Xiaohuang )
Wen Shuping ) 145 806 24 47 1,022
Ma Haiqing ) 70 539 85 68 762
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) Cao

) Chang Zhenming
) Shu Yang 20
) Cao Guogiang

) Wu Xiaoging

) Sun Deshun

) Zhu Xiaohuang
) Wen Shuping

Guogiang Huang Fang

2018
18
2018
Wang Lianzhang
2018
2017
Ma Haiqing 2017

Wan Liming

CNTC

Zhu Gaoming
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Deng Changging
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2018 12 31

2018 12 31 2017 12 31

2018
2017
70
(a) 2019 400,000,000
100
2019 2025

(b) 2019 26
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Chapter 10 Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income

For the pear ended 71 December 20018
{Am ouris in milions of Renminb! onles othermwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

Motes 016 2017
Interest income 233793 220,762
Interest expense (129,021) (121.117)
Met Lnterest come [ 104,772 99,545
Fee and commission income 50,739 51587
Fee and commisslon expense (5,591) (4.829)
Met fee and commbsslon lncome T 45, 148 éﬁ,ESE
Met trading gain 8 6519 6,383
Met gain from investment securities 9 9,046 3757
Met hedging (loss)fgain 10 (1) 1
Crther operating income ZRZ IET
Dp:n:in; lhcoimne 165, TH6 157231
Oiperating expenses 11 (52,600) (48.913)
Oyperatlng profit before Impaltment 113, 166 108,318
Impairment losses on
— Loans and advances to customers — (50,170)
— Others — (3.517)
Total lmpalrment losses 12 - (55.787)
Credit impairment losses 13 (57,886) —
Impairment losses on other assets 14 (347) —_
Revaluation gain on investment properties 35 )
Share of loss of assoclates and joint ventures (642 {HS:I
Profit before tax S, 320 52276
Income tax expense 15 (8.950) (2.398)
Profit for the Year 45,376 42,878
Met profit atttbutable to
ENAl'thy holders of the Bank 44,513 42,566
an-controlling interests Ah3 312
Profit for the year 45,376 42.E7B
Other comprehensive lncome, net of tax 16
Items that will not ke reclassified to profit or loss
(met of tax):
— Het rJ:.n.n.Eﬂ on the measurement of defined
benefit plan 7 (&)
— Pair value changes on financial investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income 11 —
— Fair value changes on transfers from owner-occupied
property to investment property 65 —
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profic or loss
{met of tax):
— Oither comprehensive income transferable to
profit or los under squity methad {10} (9
— Fair value changes on a efor-sales
financial assets — {E,ﬂ‘iﬂj
— Pair value changes on financial assets ar fair
value through other comprehensive income 10,040 —
— Impairment allowance on financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income 140 —
— Exchange difference on translating forelgn operations 1,209 (2.583
Other comprehenshve lncome, net of tax 16 12,462 {10
Total mmpr:hm:h: lacoime for the yeak 57,838 32256
Total comprehenstre Income atttibuate to:
Equity haol of the Bank 57,022 31,524
Mon-controlling interests 816 312
Earnlngs per share attrlbutable to the ordinaty
shareholdets of the Bank
Basic and diluted earnings per share (RME) 17 .88 084

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.
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Chapter 10 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Asae 31 December 2018
{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi pmless otharmise stated)

31 December 31 December
Moes 018 2017
Aszers
Cash and balances with central banks 18 538,708 568,300
Deeposits with banks and non-bank financial institutions 19 99,153 124,350
Precious metals 4,988 3,348
Placements with and loans to banks and non-bank
financial institutions 20 176, 160 1720680
Financial assets at fair value through profic or loss Z1 —_ 55904
Dierbvative financial assets 23 31,991 55451
Financial assets held under resale agreements 23 10, 790 54526
Interest receivables 24 — 32,0543
Loans and advances to customers 25 3,515,650 3,105.984
Financial imvestments 26 1,600, 163 —
— at fair value through profic or loss 308,872 —
— ot amartissd cost TTR23R —
— at fair value through other comprehensive income S10, 36 —
— designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income 2,707 —
Available-for-sale financial assets 7 — 631600
Hdd-ra-mn.ru.dty Investments 2B j— 216,586
Investments classified as recetvables 29 — 531,118
Inwvestments In associates and jolnt ventures 30 3,881 2,341
Imvestment properties 32 443 295
Pmp:rtjr, p]nnl: and equipment 33 21,385 21,330
Intangible assers LATS 1.139
Goodwill 34 896 849
Dieferred tax assets 33 23174 21,825
Other assets 36 37,453 57.843
Total asseis o, 066, 714 SE77H0L
Liabilites
Borrowings from central banks 2EG, 430 2A7T SO0
Dq:!mitl from banks and non-bank financial institutions 3B TR, 264 Tog007
Placements from banks and mon-bank financial institutions a9 115,358 TT595
Financial Habilities at fair value through profic or loss 962 —
Dierbrathve financial liabilicies 22 31,646 54837
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 40 120,315 134 500
Dieposits from customers 41 3,649,611 2,407 B35
Accrued staff costs 437 1, 549 8838
Taxes payable 43 4,920 8858
Interest payable 44 — 49,323
Provisions 45 5013 796
Diebt securities lsmaed 46 552,483 441,244
Dieferred tax labilities 35 16 8
Orher liabilities 47 54,061 15916
Total liabllitles 5,613,628 5,265,258
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Chapter 10 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continucd)

As ar 31 December 2018
{Amomrty in millions of Renminbl onles othermwise sated)

31 Drecember 31 December
Motes ZD1E 2017

Equlty
Share capital is 48,935 48,933
Preference shares 49 3,955 34,933
Capital resenve 50 SE97T 58,977
Orther comprehensive income 1 5, 069 (11.784)
Surplus resenve 52 34,450 31,183
Genenl reserve 53 T4 255 T4:231
Fetained earnings 54 170,820 163,121
Total equlty attHbutable to equlty holders of the Bank 430,081 399,638
Mon-controlling interests 33 16,425 12,795
Towl equlty 453,086 412,433
Total labilities and equiny i, D, 7 16 RG77.691

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directos on 26 March 2019.

L1 Qimgplng Fang Heylng Li Pelzla Company stamp
Chaivperssn Ewecutive Directer, Vice President dmad Cremerad Mamager of
Chisf Fimaneoial Officer Findnee Depariment
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Chapter 10 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the pear ended 31 December 2008
{Amonmts in milives of Renminh orless othermise stated)

Ty airbatable io equity lnblre e Rt Fancusndbi liren
£ 3 (odiiy  Cicbet ryadir
Tur Mo Capiul  coprvbeisins fuphs Gl Rewied wpy Lt Tnd
Ko phl e Ihire [ [0 rein mihp bles btz iy
B Dinenler ¥7 By MR W (LM NI ML L3 T BH MR
Clangyin scrmming iy o] - - - i [LE] - g a5 - AL
Rox] Janry 110 o MER W A Mad MEL e L1 L i
f Bepk " T
i) (kder combei income I£ - - - - - - i - uk
Totd comprebense inmmt - - - 1150 - - i mr ] fam
() Courbacin by wou- oo g shubaldeny fi - - - - - - - - 1M MY
M ol i
—hppogicinn s v ! - - 4¥6 - he - -
— hppropinine mgrnd reem ] - - - - i H -
= Tisilend diachorinn # mctinuy tharrbolis
ol lok # - - - - - - imm - - lum
— Diriend diachorinn w prdevo hubolden
ol lok - - - - - - L3 - - ax
— Diridend diackorinn & wn-mvoeliie bz - - - - - - - ] - Bl
— Diriend dirachorinn  acherouity
mmen bollew i - - - - - - - - () L]
R Dogenler HE Y M e B WD M I i L]
Eopiny ol i oquiy bobdews o e sk Konmonlive bt
(dn ey Ok iy
Ko ogitd durs ] iz e ] [T balden kel oy
K] 1] LT I 1 [y TH RN DA 13 e
1 Beepoke - - - - - - e n M i
- r T T
Totd compoelensie incme - - - (LT - - e il M b5 ]
(6 Gorbin e cobogbubdin T e
W s ppnpicin
— Nppeopri cines tn o ph e i - - - = LA = it} = -
—hpopinie ol mem il - - - - - W ey -4 - -
— Diridend dirachorinn n mtinuy thanrboliy
b ok # - - - - - - finay . = i)
— Diridend dirachorinn  prfevoy ool
olbelek - - = = - - (LI - - 1
— Diridend dirachorinn w wa-omonlivg b - - - = = = = & = ]
— Diriend diachotinn & scherouiy
innmen bl B = = - - - - - - m 1
do a3 Diommler X7 LT T I T

The accompanying noves form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Chapter 10 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the pear ended 31 December 2018
{Amomrty in millions of Renminbl onles othermwise sated)

Year ended 31 December

201E 2017
Oyperating activitles
Pofit before tax 54,320 52276
Adjustments fon
— revaluation gain/(loss) on imvestments, derivatives and investment
propertles 2,825 1. 434)
— imvestment gain (7,897 {14006
— net ]Duurl:gﬂn} on d:l.lpmnl of Propertys, pln.u.t and equipment,
intangible assets and other assets (363 a
— unrealised foreign exchange lossd(gain) B (415)
— credit impairment losses 57,886 55,515
— impairment losses on other assets 34T 72
— depreciation and amortisation 2,942 2,811
— interest expense on debt securities lssued 21416 19,171
— dividend income from equity imvestment (320 {ITE:I
— income wx paid (15,875) {14,521)
Subtotal 116,295 112,500
Changes I operatlng assets and Habiltles:
Diecrease in balances with central banks GE, 403 14,730
Diecreasel (increase) in deposits with banks and non-bank financial
institutlons 3,159 (9.442)
Diecrease in placements with and loans to banks and non-bank financial
institutions 42,501 10,896
Diecrease in financlal assets at fair value through the profic or loss — 14,712
Dlecrease in fnanclal assets held under resale agresments 43,837 118,178
Increase in loans and advances o customers {450, 950) (363.544)
Dlecrease in invesiments in fnancial assets held for trn.dlng purposes 17,850 —
Diecpzase in investments classified as receivables — 503423
Dlecrease in d.cpc:ll': from banks and mon-bank financial institutions [ 19, D) (195,284,]
Increase in bormowings from central banks 43,980 33,550
Increasel{decrease) in placements from banks and non-bank financial
instltutions 36,480 (4,921
Increase in financial liabilities at fair value through profic or loss 958 —
Dﬂmﬂ.ld'(in:rﬂ.u:l in financial assets sold wnder r:pu.rd:.nu agreements {14,229 14,162
Increasel{decrease) in deposits from customers 19, 044 (215.583)
Dhecrease in other operating assets 721 405
Increase/{decrease) in other operating liabilities 11,257 (7.798)
Subtotal (13,973 (58.426)
Met cash flows from operatlhg acthvlties 102,316 54,074
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Chapter 10 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

For the pear ended 31 December 2008
{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi pmless otharmise stated)

¥ear ended 31 December

Motes 2018 2017

Investing acthvitles
Proceeds from disposal and redemption of imvestments 1., 36, DD 1,007 237
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment,

land use rights, and other assets 1,154 52
Cash received from equity Investment Income 310 178
Payments on acquisition of investments (1,535,459 (1:131,592)
Payments on acquisition of equipment and other assets (4,754 (7.980)
Met cash paid for acquisition of associaves and joint wentwres 30 (1,838) (1.590)
Net cash flows used I lnvestag activitles (144,573 (133.695)
Financlag activitles
Cash received From share capital lssued — 7847
Cash received from debt securities Issued 46 922,161 BE2,890
Cash received from other equity instruments issued 55 333 —
Cash paid for redemption of debt securities issued (B15,230) (BO1,447)
Interest pald on debt securities issued (21,836) (17.699)
Dividends paid (14,396) {12,146)
Net cash flows from Anancihg activitles 74,042 39,445
Net Increase/(decrease) In cash and cash equibralents 31,785 (40, 176)
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January 337,95 33356
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents &, 309 (7.265)
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 36 376,009 FA7915
Cash Aows from operatlng activitles Includes
Interest received 220,101 226,761
Interest pald (113,272) {101,237)

The accompanying noves form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Chapter 10 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear ended 31 December 2018
{Amomrty in millions of Renminbl onles othermwise sated)

Corporate information

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited (the "Bank™ or *CHMCE™) is a joint stock company incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC” or *Mainland China™ on 31 December 2006, Headquartered in Beijing, the
Bank’s registered office is located at Mo.9 Chacyangmen Beidajie, Dongcheng DHstrict, Beijing, China. The Bank listed
its A shares and H shares on Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limived, respectively on 27 April 2007,

The Bank operates under financial services certificate Mo, B000H1 11000001 issued by the China Banking Insurance
Regulatary Commission (the "CBIRC™, originally named China Banking Regulatory Com missicn), and unified social
credit code Mo, 911 100001018907 25E issusd 'b}r the State Administration of Indu:tqr and Commerce of the PRC.

The principal activitles of the Bank and its subsidiaries (collectively the “*Group™) are the provision of corporate and
personal banking services, conducting treasury business, the provision of asset management, finance leasing and other
non-banking fnanclal services.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group mainly operates in Mainland China with branches covering 31 provinces,
autonomous regions and municlpalicies. In addition, the Bank’s subsidiaries have operations in Mainland China, the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Begion of PRC ("Hong Kong™ and other overseas countries and reglons.

Far the purpose of these consolidated financial statements, Mainland China refers to the PRC excluding Hong Kong,
the Macau Special Administrative Reglon of the PFRC ("Macau™ and Taiwan. Overseas refers to countries and regions
other than Mainland China.

The consolidated financlal starements were approved by the Board of Diirectors of the Bank on 26 March 2019.
Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The consclidated financial statements for the year ended 31 Diecember 2018 compriss the Bank and its subsidiaries,
associates and jolnt ventures,

(a) Accounting year

The accounting year of the Group is from 1 January to 31 December.

(b} Functional currency and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Bank is Renminbi ("BMB™). The functicnal currencies of overseas subsidiaries
are determined in accordance with the primary economic environ ment in which they operate, and are translated
inte Renminbi for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements according to Note 4(bj(ii). The
consalidated financial statements of the Group are presented in Renminbi and, unless otherwise stated, expressed
in milliens of Renminbi.
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Chapter 10 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear ended 31 December 2008
{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi pmless otharmise stated)

3  Statement of compliance

These consclidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("TASE”), and the disclosure
requitements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). These consolidated financial statements also comphy
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Steck Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by financial
assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through profic or loss and at fair value
through other comprehensive income, and imvestment properties, which are carded ar fair walue.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFR.Ss requices the use of certain critical accounting estimates.,
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The
areas Imvolving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial smtements are disclosed in Mote 5.

{a) MNew and amended standards adopted by the Group in 2018

The Group has adopted the Following new or amendments to the Intemational Financial Reporting Standards
{("IFR3s"), Issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“LASE”), that are mandatorily effective for
the CLUITEnT yenr and relevant to the Grm.l.p.

IFRES 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Amendments to [AS 28 IASE Annual Improvements 2014 — 2016 cycle
Amendments to [AS 40 Transfer of Investment oo perty
International Financial Reporting Foreign Currency Transactions

Interpretations Commiteee 22 ("TFRIC 227) and Advance Consideration

The new accounting policies of IFRS @ — Financial Instruments and their impacts are disclosed in Mote 3(c)
Changes in accounting policies. The adoption of the other new standards and amendments do not have a
significant impact on the openting results, comprehensive income, or financial position of the Group.

(bl Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not besn :11:10]:!::1:[ before

their effective dates by the Group

The Group has not adopted the following new and amended standards and new interpretarions thar have been
issued but are not yet effective.

Effective for annual

petiods beginnlng
on of after
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019
Amendments to [FRS 9 Prepayment Features with Megarive Compensation 1 January 2019
Amendments to [FRS 3, IASE Annual Improvements to [FRSs 1 January 2019
IFRS 11, IAS 12 and IAS 23 2015 — 2017 Cycle
Amendments to [AS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2019
Amendments to [A5 19 Employee Benefits’ Regarding Plan Amendment, 1 Jamuary 2019
Curtailment or Settlement
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Chapter 10 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear ended 31 December 2018
{Amomrty in millions of Renminbl onles othermwise sated)

3  Statement of compliance (Continued)

{b) Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not been adopted before
their effective dates by the Group (Continued)

IFRS 16: Leasas

IFRS 16 addresses the definition of a lease, recognition and measurement of leases and establishes principles
for reporting usehal information to users of fAnancial statements about the leasing activities of both lessees and
lessors. The standard replaces IAS 17 "Leases’, and related interpretations.

IFRS 16 noow requires lessees to recognise a lease liability reflecting future lease payments and a dght-ofuse
asset for virmally all lease contracts, unless the underlying asset is of low value or the lease is short-term, in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of the right-
of-use asset and interest on the lease Hability in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, and also
classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into principal portion and an interest portion for presentation in
the consolidated statement of cash fAaows.

The impact of IFRS 16 will mainly ke the accounting treatment of the Group as a lessee. The dght-ofuse
asset and the lease liability reflecting hature lease payments will be recognised by the Group in the consolidated
statement of financial position except for those the commitment s of low value or is shor-term, or those
commitment arrangement which is not qualified as lease under IFRS 16.

Faor the lessor, IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in LAS 17. Accordingly.,
a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those two opes
aof leases differently.

The Group apply the standard from its mandatory adoption date of 1 January 2019, The Group apply the
simplified transition approach and will not restate comparative amounts for the year prior to first adoption. As
a lessar or lessee, there will be no significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

TFRIC 23 — Ifnﬁu'tl.l.ntram Income Tar Treatments

In June 2017 the [ASE issued IFRIC 23 — Uncertainty over Income tax treatments to clarify how to apply the
recognition and measurement requirements in IAS 12 when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. The
adoption of this interpretation does not have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 9 — Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

In Ocrober 2017, the IASE amended IFRS 9 by lssuing Prepayment Features with Mepative Compensation. As
a result of those amendments, particular financial assets with prepayment features that may result in reasonable
negative compensation for the early termination of the contrace are eligible to be measured at amortised cost or
ar fair value through other comprehenshve income. The adoption of this amendment does not have a significant

impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
Amendments to IFRS 3, [FRS 11, JAS 12 and [48 23 Hﬂﬁnﬂul{fmpﬂmts}ﬂ‘]’j - 2017 Cp:ﬁ.-

The IASE Annual Improvements 201 52017 Cycle include a number of amend ments to various [FRSs, including
the amendments to IFRS 3 — Business Combinations, the amendments to IFRS 11 — Iuinr.’-m.u.g\em.cnt, the
amendments to LAS 12 — Income taxes and IAS 23 — Bomowing Costs. The adoption of the amendments does
not have a significant impact on the Group’s consclidated financial statements.
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Chapter 10 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear ended 31 December 2008
{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi pmless otharmise stated)

3  Statement of compliance (Continned)

{b) Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not been adopted before
their effective dates by the Group (Continued)

Amendments to [AS 28 — Lonpg-term [nterests in Associates and Joint Venrures

On 12 October 2017, the IASE issued amendments to [4S 28 — [mvestments in Associates and ]ﬂlnl‘ Wentures
to clarify that company’s account for long-term Interests in an associate or joint venture to which the equicy
method is not applied using [FRS 9. The adoption of the amendments does not have a significant impace on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to [AS 19 - Emplopee benefits’ reparding plan a dment, curtadment or set t t

On 8 February 2018, the IASE issued amendments to [AS 19 — Employee benefits’ regarding plan amendment,
curtallment or settlement to require an entlty to determine the amount of any past service cost, or gain or loss
on settlement by measuring the net defined benefic liability before and after the amendment, using current
assumptions and the fair value of plan assets at the time of the amend ment. The adoption of the amendments
dees not have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

i) Changes in accounting policics

The Group has adopted the revised IFRS 15 — Revenue issued by the IASE in May 2014 and the corresponding
principles to prepare the consolidated financial statemnent for fiscal year 2018, The adoption of the above standards
dees not have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial starements.

The Group has adopted IFES 9 — Financial Instruments issued by the IASE in July 2014 with a date of
transition of 1 January 2018, which resulted in changes in accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts
previously recognised in the consolidated Anancial statements. The Group did not eady adopt any of IFRS 9
in previous periods.

Ms permitted by the transitional provisions of IFRS 9, the Group elected not to restate companative figures. Amy
adjustments to the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities ar the date of transition were recognised
in the opening retained earnings and other reserves of the current pericd.

Conssquently, for notes disclosures, the conssquential amendments to International Financial Reporting Standand
7 “Pinancial Instruments: Disclosares” (IFRS 7) have also only been applied to the current period. The comparative
period notes disclosures repeat those disclosures made in the prior year.

The adoption of IFRS 9 has resulted in changes in the Group’s accounting policies for recognition, classification
and measurement of financial assets and Anancial Habilities and impairment of financial assets. [FRS 9 also
significantly amends other standards dealing with financial instruments such as IFRS 7.

Further details of the specific IFRS 9 accounting policies applied in the current period are described in Mote 4 (c).
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Chapter 10 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear ended 31 December 2018
{Amomrty in millions of Renminbl onles othermwise sated)

3  Statement of compliance (Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
i) (Jassifiation and measurement of financial instruments

The measurement category and the carrying amount of financial assets in accordance with [AS 39 and
IFRS 9 ar 1 Jamuary 2018 are compared as follows:

LUK ] [FRS %
] A5 38 Canylng 1S 131 Catrplog
Financkd et Mewsrementcatgguey anount Moo tement caiegery  Finnclal asaers s
Cah and badanees with ol bk Amwdiined st FLI Amortked ot Cah ool hdarwes wich eeainal baaks SEE 0
Cleposics with banky ol aoaback  Amweiived st L4150 Amortieed i DCleposis with basks wad san haok fowaid 124280
finanrdl initwtions imtintian
Pucemens with und bag ivhusks  Amwdived cosi I7LEY Amoribed o Placemens with acd baans i ook and it
and man-huek Francid wriogan wobak bl iwintia
Birancinl assets of fii abue ibowgh Binoochl werwai FVIL 60,110 Finsorsl sey o FVPL Bioancial inssimenin %
profic oc sz Financtal wsen 5775 Fimocsl s 5
deignai ed e FVPL designuied ax FVPL
Deriraive frascid imers Funarr'sl gy B3451  Fonunrial umery Dherivaives Francial msers B3
Aol Fadl
Fimncial assets held under enle Anwdived st WY Amortied o Bicanciul assets held ooder revde wgpeemenn 589
e
[oeenst rrehables Anwdived st 2441 Amortied ot [oeerest rceinables 1545
Lot 1o sdvances ip cuniamen Axwdised et LI Amortied ot Lomms 1nd bz i cumiamen A[800E]
Finorsl am b1 ]
Fadl
185 7 [FiG 9
L5 19 185 3 Caipylay 1FRS IFRS 9 Cabiylg
Fioanckd ety W apewent caieguey sk Mesimni cakpery Fionaiscil maas s
el lorad frascid anets Fumorsd gees w VOO 63040 Fiouorsl ames o BT Francid weenmenn 18547
Anoitied rax 103
Faxmncial wree o FVO0 RNy
Fiouocsl wvery dmiguaied & FVOCT 1143
Hed io- ooy tevtmenn Amectived cni 1658 Fiouorsl s o ATL Faancid wmssimenis 115
Anmtied rax 1 EE
[rvesimenes caifed w Ayeoiised et $,1L0 Fiouorsl soes e FYTL Faancid wmssimenis 16337
recinibly Anotied rax urH
Farancial wme o B0 iR
(Dher Franrial nowr Lwwetised et EIL] Amortied cox Oiher fimncsl e 15413
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Chapter 10 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear ended 31 December 2008
{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi pmless otharmise stated)

3  Statement of compliance (Continned)

i) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
i) Reconcillation afﬂjmtafﬂnlndlfpaﬂhn bahnces from [AS 39 &0 [FRS 9

The Group performed a detailed analysis of its business models for managing financial assets and anahysis
of their cash fAow characteristics. The following table reconciles the carying amounts of financial assets,
from their previous measurement catepory in accordance with TAS 39 to their new measurement categaries
upon transition to [FRS 9 on 1 January 2018:

[AS 39 [FES 9
P amount Camying amount
4] December 2017 Bedmsificaion  Bemessirements 1 Januacy 2018
Cash and balances with cencral banks
Amariised cost 568,300 — — H68. 300
Depasits with banks and nen-bank
Amariised cost 124,350 — 60) 124250
Macemencs with wnd lnans oo banks and
non-bank financial instinucions
Amactised cost 172,059 — (164) 171,905
Derivative financial assets
Ar fair value through profic or los 63451 — — ehA51
Finandal asees held under cesale
agreements Amaortised cost 4,626 — )] .58
Interest receivahles
Amartised cost 32,643 [L64) (1024) 2545
Loans and achances to cuzomers
Amortised cost 3,105,084 (5.908) 16595 303,051
Ar fair value through other
comprehemsive income = Son0d % p L]
Toal 3,105,984 — 7 ) 3,098,984
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Chapter 10 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear ended 31 December 2018
{Amomrty in millions of Renminbl onles othermwise sated)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(&}  Reconciliation of statement of Bnancial position balances from IAS 39 to IFRS 9 (Con tinged)

145 30 IFRS @
Carrying amoun Camying amount
31 December 2017 Redamificarion R 1 ]'mu]' . i) |-
Financial aseets at fair valoe choough
profic or los
Ar fair valoe chrough prfit or los 0,129 [6,12%) — —
Diesignared at hir value theough profe
or Leas 5775 (57731 - -
Financial invesxmencs
At fair valoe through pmbit or los — 3% — [
Diesignared & hir value theough profc
or loss — &5 — 658
Total 65,904 . - 65504
Hrailable-for-sale financial asets
Ar fair valoe chrough ccher
mmprd:m.m: inome 31,500 [Ejl...ﬁﬁﬂ] = =
Financial invesxmencs
Ar fair valoe chrough pmfit or los — 131,442 105 131,17
Amortised cost —_ 100451 j122 w5573
Ar fair valoe chrough ceher
comprehengire income — 93,152 Iy a9
Diesignared & hir value thoough ocher
comprehengire income = 55 = (7551
Tetal £31,680 — 254 636,544
Held-to- maturity imvestments
Amortised cost 216,586 [216,585) — —
Financial investments
Ar fair valoe chrough pmfit or los — 11,620 535 12,155
Amortued cost — 204,968 [1:[1}] 04 EES
Total 216,586 = 455 217,041
Invesments dassified as receivables
Amorised cor 531,118 (53L,118) — —
Financial investments
Ar fair valoe chrough pmfit or los — 178,507 5,414 153 521
Amortued cost — ITHT 24 317,51
Ar fair valoe chrough ccher
comprehensire income — 25od 415) MEm
Total 331,118 — 5023 534,141
Other Anancial assets
Ameatised cost 26,313 —_ (500) 25813
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Chapter 10 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear ended 31 December 2008
{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi pmless otharmise stated)

3  Statement of compliance (Continned)
i) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
[iIT]] Reconcillation afimpuimﬂtlﬂammhﬁnﬁeﬁm JTAS 39 e [FRS @

The following table reconciles the prior pedod’s closing impairment allowance measured in accordance
with the [AS 39 incurred loss model to the new impairment allowance measured in accordance wich the
IFRS 9 expected loss model ar 1 January 2018:

Allowance and Allewance and
provEions proTisions
wnder [AS 35 Bedasification Bemean remeenis under [FRS 7
Depeosits with banks and non-bank
Financal insteutiom —_ —_ 6l &
Macemenes wich and loans to banks and
nen-bank financial institcions 1 — 164 165
Financial assets held under resale
1greements — — L1 37
Interest receivables 1,545 — 1,024 4,970
Loars and advances to cust omers
— Ameetied cos 90503 — 6595 57898
— Ar Fair malwe through ocher
comprehemsive income — — 7 7
Available-for-sale financial amen ] (78) = =
Invesrments clamified @ receiables 043 [2.943) — —
Finandal investments
— Amectied cost —_ 2,684 30 3044
— Ar fair value chrough other
comprehemive incame — ki 13 a5
Okher financial assets 2,601 = 133 174
Subrotal 100,472 = 9,393 LS
O balance sheet coedit assece 433 = 4155 4557
Toeal 100,874 = 13,548 114,422

{iv] Financial assets that have been reclssified to the amortised cost category

Far financial assets that have been reclassified to the amortised cost category, the fallowing table shows
their fair value as at 31 Diecember 2018 and the fair value gain or loss that would have been recognissd
if these financial assets had not been reclassified as part of the tansition o IFRS 9.

31 December 2018

Reclassified into amortised cost
From avallable—for—sale financial ul:l:lﬂ.‘\s 59} reclassified to financial assets
ar amortised cost (IFRS 9)

Fair vahues as ar 31 Diecember 2018 93,836
Fair value gain that would have been recognised during the year if the
financial assets had not been reclassifiad 3,856
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Chapter 10 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear ended 31 December 2018
{Amomrty in millions of Renminbl onles othermwise sated)

4 Summary of significant accounting policies

{a) Consolidated financial statements
i) Business combinations involving en terprises under common control

A business combination imvolving enterprises under common control is a business combination in which
all of the combining enterprises are ultimately controlled by the same pargy or paries both before and
after the business combination, and that contmol is not transitory. The assets and liabilities assumed are=
measured based on their carrying amounts in the financial statements of the acquiree ar the combination
date. The difference between the carrying amount of the net assets acquired and the consideration paid
for the combination {(or the total face value of shares issued) Is adjusted against share premium in the
capital reserve with any excess adjusted against retained earnings. The issuance costs of equity or debt
securities as a part of the consideration for the acquisition are included in the carrying amounts of these
equity or debt securities upon initial recognition. Other acquisition-related costs are expensed when
incurred. The combination date is the date on which cne combining enterprise obtains control of other
combining enterprises.

(&}  Bunness combinations not invalvi tities under o contral

TEE

A business combination involving entities not under common control is a business combination in
which all of the combining entities are not ultimately controlled by the same party or parties before
the business combination. Where (i) the aggregate of the acquisition date fair value of assets transferred
{including the acquirer’s previcusly held equity interest in the acquiree), liabilities incurred or assumed,
and equity securities issued by the acquirer, in exchange for control of the acquires, exceeds (i) the
acquirer’s interest in the acquisition date fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the difference
is recognised as goodwill (Mate 4(1)). IF (i) is less than (ii), the difference is recognised in the consalidated
statement of profit or loss for the cucrent pericd. The issuance costs of equity or debr securities as a part
of the consideration for the acquisition are incladed in the carrping amounts of these equity or debt
securities upon initial recognition. Other acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Any difference
between the fair value and the carying amount of the assets transfecred as consideration is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The acquires’s identiflable asset, liabilities and contingent
liabilicies, if the recognition criteria are met, are recognised by the Group ar their acquisition date fair
value. The acquisition date is the date on which the acquirer obtains control of the acquiree.

For a business combination not imwolving enterprises under common control and achieved in stages, the
Group remeasures its previously-held equicy interest in the acquiree to its fair value ar the acquisition
date. The difference between the fair value and the carrylng amount is recognised as investment income
for the current perod; the amount recognised in other comp rehensive income relating to the previoush-—
held equity interest in the acquire will be reclassified to profit or loss.

(&§i] Consolidated financial statements

The scope of consolidated financial statements is based on control and the consclidated financial statements
comprise the Bank and its subsidiaries, as well as structured entities controlled by the Group. The Group
conerols an entity when It is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When assessing whether
the Bank has power, only substantive rights (held by the Bank and other parties) are considered. The
financial statements of subsidiaries are Included in the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control ceases.

Mon-controlling interest Is presented separately in the consalidated statement of financial position within
owners’ equity. Profic or loss and total comprehenshee income attributable to non-contolling equity holders
are presented separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
When the amount of loss for the current period atcributable to the non-controlling interest of a subsidiary

exceeds the non-controlling interest’s portion of the opening balance of equiny holders® equity of the
subsidiary, the excess is allocated against the non-contmolling interests.
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Chapter 10 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear ended 31 December 2008
{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi pmless otharmise stated)

4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

{a) Consolidated financial starements (Continned)
{iif] Consolidated financial state men ts ( Continued)

When the accounting perod or accounting policies of a subsldiary are different from those of the Bank,
the Bank makes necessary adjustments to the financial statements of the subsidiary based on the Bank’s
own accounting period or accounting policles. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows, and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidared
Amancial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated only limiced
to the extent thar this is no evidence of impairment.

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting perod, through a business combination imvalving
enterprises under common control, the financial statements of the subsidiary are included in the consolidared
Amancial statements as if the combination had occurred at the date the ultimate controlling party frst
obtained control. Thersfore the opening balances and the comparathve figures of the consclidated financial
statements are restaced.

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting period, through a business combination not involring
enterprises under common control, the identifiable assets and labilities of the acquired subsidiaries are
included in the sCopeE of consalidarion from the date that control commences, based on the fair valu= of
those identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.

Where the Bank acquires a non-controlling interest from a subsidiary’s non-contolling equiny holders ar
disposes of a portion of an interest in a subsidiary without a change in control, the difference betwesn
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the amount of the consideration
paid or recetved is adjusted to capital reserve (share premium]) in the consclidated statement of financial
pasition. If the credic balance of capital reserve (share premium} is insufficient, amy excess is adjusted
to retalned enrnings.

When the Group loses contral of o subsidiary due to the disposal ofa portion of an equity investment, the
Group derecognises assets, lHabilities, non-controlling interests and other related ftems in equity holders’
equity in relation to that subsidiary. The remaining equity investment is remeasured at its fair value ar
the date when contrmol is lost. Any gains or losses therefore incurred are recognised as investment income
for the current perlod when the control is lost.

IF there is a difference between the accounting entlty of a Group and the accounting entity of the bank
or a subsidiary on mearsuring the same transaction, the transaction will be adjusted from the perspective
of the Group.

(b) Foreign currency translations
i) Trnslation of forefgn curreng transactions

When the Group receives capital in foreign currencies from investars, the capital is translated to Renminbi
ar the spot exchange rate at the date of the eceipr. (rher foreign currency transactions are, on initial
recognition, translated into Renminbi by applying the spot exchange rates at the dates of the transaction.
Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate
ar the reporting date. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Mon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a forelgn cucrency
are translated to Renminbi wsing the exchange rate at the tramsaction date. Mon-monetary items thar
are measured ar fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange rate at the date
the fair value is determined. The differences arising from the translation of financial assets ar fir value
through other comprehenshve income is recognised in other comprehensive income. Changes in the fir
value of monetary assets denominated in foreign currency classified as financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the monetary assets and other changes in the carging amount. Translation differences
related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the consclidated statement of profic or loss,
and other changes in the carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive income. The tanslation
differences resulting from other monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the consclidated statement
of profit or loss.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (Cantinued)

(b) Foreign corrency translations (Continned)
(&) Transhtion of Hnancial t5 den omi d in foreign cumency

Financlal statements denominated in foreign currency are translated into Renminbi for the preparation
of consclidated financial statements. The assets and liabilities in the financlal satements denominated
in forelgn currency are translated into Benminbi at the spot exchange rates prevailing at the reporting
date. The equity items, except for “retained earnings”, are translated to Renminbi ar the spot exchange
rates at the dates on which such items arose. Income and expenses are translated at exchange rates at the
date of the transactlons, or a rate that approcimates the exchange rates of the date of the transaction.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Upon disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the translation differences recognised in
equity holders” equity which relates to that foreign operation is transferred to profit or loss in the pericd
in which the disposal occurs.

The effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents held or due in a forelgn currency are
reported in the statement of cash fows.

(c) Financial instruments

IFRS 9 {applicable since I Janwary 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provislons of the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date,
the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell asser.

(i) Tmiziad recoguition awd classifi carion of fimancial instruments
Financial assets

Financial assets are classified on the basis of the Group’s business model for managing the financial asset
and the contractual cash Aow characteristics of the fnancial assets:

. Fair value through profic ar lass ("FYPL™);
] Fair value through other comprehensive income ("FYOCT™); or
. Amaortised cost

The business mode adopeed by the Group for managing its financial assets refers to how the Goup
manages fis financlal assets in order to generate cash Hows. The business model determines whether the
cash flows from the financlal assets managed by the Group come from the collection of contractual cash
Ao, sale of Ainancial assets or a combination of the two methods. In determining the business model for
a group of financial assets, the Gmoup considers various factors, including: past experience in collecting
cash flows from this group of assets; how to assess the performance of this group of asset and report
it to key management personnel; how to assess and manage risks are; and how to compensate people
responsible for managing these assets, among others.

The contractual cash flow characteristics of financial assets refer to contractual terms as agreed in the
financial instrument contracts that reflece the sconomic characteristics of the fnancial assets, Le., the
contractual cash flows arising at a specified date from the Anancial assets are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount cutstanding. OF which, the principal is the fair value of the financial
asset at initial recognition, and the amount of the principal may change over the life of the financial
asset, if, e.g.. there are repayments of principal; and the interest includes consideration for the time value
of money, and credit risk, other basic lending risks and costs associated with holding the financial asset
for a particular period of time.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determing whether theic
cash flows are salely payment of principal and interest.

The classification requirements for debt instruments and equity instruments are described belown
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

() Financial instruments Continued)
IFRS 9 fapplicable since I Janwary 2018) (Continued)
() Imitial recegmition and clamificasion of fimancial instruments {Continued)
Financlal assets (Continued)
Diebt Instruments

Diebt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a fAnancial liability from the issuer’s
perspective. Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depend on: i) the Group’s
business model for managing the asser; and i) the cash flow characteristics of asset.

Based on these factars, the Group dlassifies its debt instruments into one of the following three measarement
categories:

o Amﬂl'ﬂld L=t o Aﬂﬂ:l h are L.dd &I Dﬂu!:l‘hﬂ ﬂfmntmmﬂl mhﬂm 'h!l'ﬂ &Dl! mh ﬂm
represent soley payments of principal and interest (“5PPI7), and that are not designated at FYPL,

are measured ar amortised cost.

- Fair value through ather comprehensive income: Financial assets thar are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the assets, where the assets” cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, and that are not deslgnated ar FVPL, are measured ar FVOCL

. Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FWOCT
are measured ar FVPL.

The Group may also irevocably designate financial assets at fair value through profit or los if doing
so significantly reduces or eliminates a mismatch created by assets and liabilities being measured on
diifferent bases.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting the liabilities. A fnancial instrument is an equity instrument if, and only if, both conditons
i) and i) below are met:

i The Anancial instrument includes no contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial
asset to another entity, or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entigr
under conditions that are potentially unfavorable to the Group; and

i) If the financial instrament will or may be sertled in the Group’s own equity instruments, it is
a non-derivative Instrument that includes no contractual obligations for the Group tw deliver a
variable number of its own equity Instruments; or a derbvative that will ke setted only by the
Group exchanging a fixed amount of cash or another financlal asset for a fixed number of its own
equity instruments.

Equity investments of the Group are measured ar FVPL, except where the Group’s management has
elected, ar initlal recognition, to irrevecably deslgnate an equity investment at FW¥OCL The Group's
policy is to designate equity investments as FVO(CI when those investments are held for purposes other
than to genemate imvestment returns. After designation, the fair value change is recognised in the other
comprehenstve income and it is not allowed to subssquently reclassify to profic or loss (including upon
disposal). Impairment loss and reversal of impalrment is not presented separately in the Anancial statement
and is included in the fair value change. Dividend income as the return from investments is recognisad
by the Group when the right to recelbve is formed.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (Cantinued)

{c) Financial instruments (Continusd)

IFRS 9 {applicable since 1 Janwary 2018) (Continued)
il Tnirial vecogwition awd classifi cation of financial instruments (Comtinued)
Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial lHabilities are classified into financial liabilities at F¥PL and other Anancial Habilicies
carried ar amortised cost on initial recognition. Financial labilities ar FVPL is applied to dedwatives,
fimancial liabilities held for trading and financial Habilities designated as such at initial recognition.

The Group may, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial Hability as measured at fair value
through profic or loss when doing so resulis in more rdevant information, because either:

i} it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency thar would
atherwise arlss, or

{liy a group of financial liabilities or financial assets and financial liabilities is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in acco rdance with a documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the Group is provided internally on that basis o
the Group’s key management personnel.

(i) Medswrement of fimamwcial asets
Initial measurement

Financial assets at F¥PL are stated at fair value. Financial assets at fair value through profic or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to profit or loss. Financial assets not ar fair walue through
profit or loss, tansaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition orissue of the Anancial assets.

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on the categories:

Financial assets measured ar amortised cost

The amartised cost Is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition: 1) minus
the principal; if} plus or minus the cumulathee amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference berween that initial amount and matardty amount; (i) for financial assews, adjusted for any

]DII Hﬂm.

The effective interest rate is the rate thar exactly discounts estimated hature cash payments or recelpts
through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financlal asset (i.e. its
amortised cost before any impairment allowance). The calculation does not consider expected credit losses
{ECL") and includes transaction costs, premiums or discounts and fees and points paid or recebved that
are integral to the effective interest rate. Por purchased or originated credit-impaired (POMCT) financial
assets — assets that are credit-impaired at inital recognition — the Group calculates the credic-adjusted
effective interest mate, which is calculated based an the amaortised cost of the Anancial asset instead of this
gross carrping amount and incorporates the impact of ECL in estimated fature cash flows.
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

() Financial instruments Continued)
IFRS 9 (applicable since 1 Janwary 2018) {Continmed)
(W) Mesruremens of finanoial gres (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financlal assets measured at amortised cost (Continuwed)

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the carrying amount of o financial
asset, except fon:

i a POC] financial asset, whose interest income is calculated, since initial recognition, by applying
the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to its amortised cost; and

i) a financial assets that is not o POCI financial asset but has subsequently become credit-impaired,
whinse interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to s amortised cost. IF in
a subsequent period, the financial asset improves its quality so that it is no longer credit-impaired
and the improvement in credit quality can be related objectively to a certain event cocurring after
the application of the abowe-mentioned rle, then the interest income can again be calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to Its gross carrying amount. Interest income from these
fnancial assets is included in “interest income” wsing the effective interest rate methed.

Far floating-rate financial assets and fAoating-rate financial liabilities, periodic re-estimation of cash Aows
to reflect the movements in the market rates of interest alters the effective interest rate. If a Aoating-
rate financial asset or a floating rate fnancial liability is recognised initially ar an amount equal to the
principal receivable or payable on maturity, re-estimating the future interest payments normally has no
significant effect on the carying amount of the asset or the Hability.

If the Group revises its estimates of payments or receipts, the difference between the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset or amortised cost of a financial liability calculated from revised estimated contractual
cash Aows and the present vaule of the estimated future contractual cash Aows that are discounted at the
financial instrument’s original effective interest rate should be recognised in profic or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Dhebt instraments

Movements in the carylng amount are taken through other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and forelgn exchange gains and losses on the
instrument’s amortised cost which are recognised in profit or loss.

When the financial assers is derecognised. the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehenstve income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in Met imestment
income”. Interest income from these financial assets is included in Tnterest income’ using the effective
interest rate method.

Equity instruments

Where an inwestment in an equity investment not held for trading is designated as a financial asser
measured ar fair value through other comprehensive income, the fair value changes of the financial asser
s recognised in the other comprehensive income. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulathe
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from other comprehensive
income to retained earnings. The dividends on the investment are recognised in profit or loss only when
the Group's right to receive payment of the dividends is established.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (Cantinued)

() Financial instruments (Continued)
IFRE 9 (applicable since 1 Janwary 2018) {Continued)
(&) Measwrement of fimawcial dsmess (Corntimed)
Financial assets at fir value through profic or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated ar fair value and a gain or loss on a fAinancial
assets that is measured at fair value should be recognised in profic or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profic or loss

Financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all gains or losses
recognised in the profit or loss of the current period, except for financial liabilities designated as at fair
value through profit or loss, where gains or losses on the Anancial labilities are treated as follows:

= changes in fair value of such financial labilities due to changes in the Group’s cwn credit sk are
recognised in other comprehensive income; and

. other changes in fair value of such financial liabilities are recognised in profic orloss of the cument
period.

(Wi)  Impairment of findncial ety

The Group assesses on a formard-looking basis the ECL associated with its debt instrument assets carried
at amortised cost and FVOCI and with exposure arising from loan commitments, financial guarantee
contracts and lease recetvables.

ECL is the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of a default cccurring as the weighs.
Coredit loss is the difference berween all contractual cash fows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash Aows that the Gmp expects to recebve, e, all cashshart flls, discouniad
at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for PO financial assets).

The Group measures ECL of a financial instrument in a way thar reflects:

. anunbiased and probabilicy-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible
oo mies;

] the time value of money; and

. reasonable and supporable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of Future economic conditions.

Dietailed information abour ECL in the above areas is set out in note 61 (a).

The Group applies the impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance
for debt instruments that are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. The loss
allowance is recangnised in other comprehensive income and the impairment loss is recognised in profit
orloss, and it should mot reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in the consolidated statement
of Anancial position.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the credic risk
on the financial instraments has increased significantly since initial recognition is no longer met, the
Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-months BCL at the current reporting date
and the amount of ECL reversal is recognise in profic or loss.
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
ic) Financial instruments (Continued)
IFRS 9 {applicable since 1 Janmary 2018) {Continued)
(i) Tmpairment of financial deeets (Comsinned)

At the reporting date, the Group only recognises the cumulative changes in lifetime ECL since initial
recognition as a loss allowance for POCI financial assets. At each reporting date, the Gmoup recognises
in profit or loss the amount of the changes in lifetime ECL as an impairment gain or loss.

fie)  Modification of lans
The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual cash Aows of loans to customers.
When this h.n.ppn:nl, the Gmu.p assesses whether or not the new terms are Iubll‘ﬂ.ﬂ.tl.ﬂlljl’ different to the
original terms. The Group does this by considering, among others, the following factors:

. If the boroower is in financial difficuly, whether the modification merely reduces the contractual
cash flows to amounts the bomower is expected to be able to pay.

. Whether any substantial new terms are introduced, such as a profit share/equity-based remurn thar
substantially affects the risk profile of the loan.

= Significant extenslon of the loan term when the bormower is not in financial difficuley.
. Significant change in the intersst rate.
- Change in the currency the loan is denominated in.

L Insertion of collateral, other security or credit enhancements that significantly affect the credic
risk associated with the loan.

If the terms are substantially different, the Group derecognises the original financial asset and recognises a
‘new’ asset at fair value and recalculates a new effective interest rate for the asser. The date of renegotiation is
consequently considered to be the date ofinitlal recognition for impairment calculation purposes, induding
for the purpose of determining whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred. Howewer, the
Group also assesses whether the new financial asset recognised is deemed to be credit-impaired at indtial
recognition, especially in circumstances where the renegotiation was driven by the debtor being unable
to make the originally agreed payments. Differsnces in the carrying amount are also recognised in profic
or loss as a gain or loss on derecognition.

IFthe terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or medification does not result in derecognition,
and the Group recalculates the gross carring amount based on the revised cash flows of the financial asser
and recognises a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying amount Is recalculared
by discounting the modified cash Aows at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective
interest rate for POCI financial asses).

fe)  Denivatives awd bedpes

Drerivatives are initlally recognised at fair value on the date on which the dervative contract Is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured ar fair value. All derivatives are carred as assets when fair value is
positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives are embedded in hybrd contracts, such as the conversion option in a convertible
bond. If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset, then the Group assesses the entire

contract as described in the financial assets section above for classification and measurement purposes.
Oitherwise, the embedded derbvarives are treated as separate derbvatives when:
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (Cantinued)

{c) Financial instruments (Continusd)

IFRS 9 {applicable since 1 Janwary 2018) (Continued)
() Dievivatives ana bedges (Comtimued)
- Their economic chancteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract

. A separate instrument with the same terms would meet the definition of a derivative; and
. The hybrid contrace is not measured ar fair value through profit or loss.

These embedded derivatives are separately accounted for at fair value, with changes in fairvalue recognissd
in the statement of profit or loss unless the Group choosss to designate the hybrid contracts at fair value
through profit or loss.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends on whether the dedvative is
designated and qualifies as a hedging instrument, and if 50, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates certain derbvatives as hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or Habilities or firm
commitments for Rir value hedges.

The Group documents, atr the inception of the hedge, the relationship between hedged items and
hedging instruments, as well as its risk management ohjective and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis,
of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes
in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded
in the statement of profit or loss, together with changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liabilicy
that are attributable to the hedged risk

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount
of o hedged ttem for which the effective interest method is used is amortised to pofic or loss cver the
period to maturin and recorded as net intersst income

(o)  Devevoguition of fimamcial dsets
Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when (1) the contractual rghts to the cash Aows from
the asset expire, or (2} when it transfers the financial asser and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownenhip of the asset to another entity, or (3) when it transfers the financial asset and gives up the
control of the transferred assets thaugh the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of cwnemship.

Where a transfer of a financial asset in its entivety meets the criveria for de-recognition, the difference
between the two amounts below is recognised in the consclidated statement of profit and loss:

—  the camrying amount of the financial asset transferred;

—  the sum of the consideration received from the transfer and the cumulative gain or loss thar has
been recognised directly in equity.

I the Group neither transfers nor retalins substantially all the rsks and rewards of ownership and continues
to contral the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
invalvemnent and recognises an associated liabilicy.
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

() Financial instruments Continued)
IFRS 9 fapplicable since I Janwary 2018) (Continued)
(i) Derecogmition of financial aers (Comtimued)
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the related obligation is discharged, is cancelled or expires.
An agreement between the Group and an existing lender to exchange the criginal financial labilig with
a new financial liability with substantially different terms, or a substantial modification of the terms of
an existing Anancial liability is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial Hability and
recognition of a new Fnancial liabilicy.

The difference between the carrying amount of the financial Hability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and lass.

(i) Secwritirafiom

As part of its operations, the Group securitises financial assets, genenlly through the sale of these assets
to structured entities which issue securities to investors. When the securitistion of financial assets thar
qualify for de-recognition, the relevant financial assets are de-recognised in thelr entirety and a new financial
asset or liabilicies is recognised regarding the interest in the unconsolidated securdtisation vehicles that the
Group acquired. When the securitisation of financial assets that do not qualify for de-recognition, the
relevant financial assets are not derecognised, and the consideration paid by third parties are recorded as
a financial liability. When the securitisation of financial assets that partially qualify for de-recognition,
where the Group has not retained contmol, it derecognises these financial assets and recognises sepamately
as assets or liabilitles any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer. Otherwise the Group
continues to recognise these Anancial assets to the extent of its continuing involvement in the financial asset.

(wiii)  Sdles of drsets ow comaition ifrthm&dnr

Dre-recognition of fmanclal assets sold on condition of repurchase is determined by the economic
substance of the transaction. If a financial asset is sold under an agresment o r:pu.n:'hn.le the same or
substantially the same asset at a fiwed price or at the sale price plus a reasonable returen, the Group will
not derecognise the asset. If a financial asset is sold together with an option to repurchase the financial
asset at its fair value ar the time of repurchase {in case of transferor sells such Anancial asset), the Goup
will derecognise the financial asset

(i)  Presemration of financial asers awd fimancial liabilivies

Financlal assets and financial liabilities are presented separarely in the consclidated statement of financial
position and are not offset. However, financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position only if the Group has a legally enforceable
rght to s=t off the recognised amounts and the transactions are intended to be settled on a net basis, ar
by realising the asser and settling the liabilig simultanecusly.

(x)  Fimamcial aeeets beid undler restle dnd financial ety wld under repurchase dgreements

Financlal assets held under resale agreements are transactions which the Group acquires financial assets
which will be resold ar a predetermined price in the future date under resale agreements. Financial assets
saold under repurchase agreements are transactions which the Group sels financial assets which will ke
repurchased at o predetermined price in the fature date under repurchase agreements.

Cash advanced or received is recognised as amounts held under resale and repurchase agreements on
the consolidated statement of financial position. Assets held under resale agreements are recorded in

memomndum acoounts as offbalance sheet ftems. Assets sold under repurchase agreements continue to
be recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (Cantinued)

{c) Financial instruments (Continusd)

IFRS 9 {applicable since I Janwary 2018 (Continped)
(=) Fimancial assets beld umder vesale and findmcial awets sold wnder rr‘#um&une dgreements (Comtinwed)

The difference between the resale and repurchase consideration, and that between the purchase and sale
considenation, should be expired over the pericd of the respective transaction using the effective interest
method and are included in interest expense and interest income, respectively.

(mi)  Egwity imfrument

The consideration recetved from the issuance of equity instruments net of transaction costs is recognised
in equity. Consideration and transaction costs paid by the Bank for repurchasing self-issued equity
instruments are deducted from equity holder's equity.

TAS 39 (applicable unal 31 December 2017)
(i) Clasification

The Group classifies financial instruments into different categories at inception, depending on the purpose
for which the assets were acquired or the Habilities were incurmed, and on the contractual terms of the
fimancial instruments. The categories arer financial assers and financial liabilities ar falr value through
pmcﬂr ar loss, h.:ld,-tl:umn.mrh}r imvestments, loans and receivables, available—for-sale financial assets and
other financial labilities.

Financial assets at fair value through profic or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include those classified as held for trading, and those
designated by the Group upon recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is: (1) acquired or incurred principally for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing it in the near verm; (i} part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profie-
wuking; or {iil) a derivative (except for a derbvarive that Is a financial guarantes contract or a designated
and effective hedging instrument).

Financlal assets are designated at fair value through profic or loss upon inital recognition when: (i) the
financial assets or are managed, evaluated and reported intemally on a fir value basis; (i) the designation
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch in the gain and loss recognition ardsing from
the difference in measurement bases of the financial assets; or (i) 2 contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, i.e. an entire hybrd (combined) contract, unless: (i) the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the hybrid (combined)
coneract; or {1i) it is clear with little or no analysis when a similar hybrid {combined) instrument is first
considersd that separation of the embedded derivative is prohibited.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financlal assets, quoted in an active market, with fixed
or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Group has the positive intention and ability to
haold to maturigr, other than: (i) those that the Group, wpon initial recognition, designates as fnancial
assets at fair value through profic or loss or as avallable-for-sale financial assets; (ii) those that meet the
definition of loans and recebvables.
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
ic) Financial instruments (Continued)
IAS 39 (applicable until 31 December 2017) (Continued)
fi)  Claificarion (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fized or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an acthve market, other than: (i) those that the Group intends to sel immediatdy or in the
near term, which will be classified as held for trading; (i) those that the Group, upon initial recognition,
designates as financial assets at fair value thmough profic or loss or as available-for-sale financlal assets.
Loans and receivables mainly comprise balances with central banks, deposits and placements with and loans
to banks and non-bank financial institutions, Anancial assets held under resale agreements, investments
classified as receivables, and loans and advances to customers.

Available-for-sale fimancial assets

Available-for-sale financlal assets are non-derbvative financial assets that are designated as available-for-
sale or are not classified as: (i) Ananclal assets ar fair value through profit or loss, (i) held-to-maturige
imvestments or (iii) loans and recebvables.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profic or loss

Financial liabilities ar fair value through profit or loss include those classified as held for trading, and
those designated by the Group upon recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

A financial liabilicy is classified as held for tading if it is: (i) acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term; (1) part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or (iii) a derbvative (except for a derivative that is a fAnanclal puarantes contract
or a designated and effective hedging instrument).

Financial liabilities are designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition when: (i}
the financial liabilities or are managed, evaluated and reported internally on a fair value basis; (if) the
designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch in the gain and loss recognition
arsing from the difference in measurement bases of the financial liabilities; or (i) a contract contains
one or more embedded derbrathves, i.2. an entire hybrid (combined) contract, unless: (i) the embedded
derbvathve does not significantly modify the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the hybeid
{combined) contract; or (H) it is clear with little or no analysis when asimilar hybrid (combined) instrument
is first considered that separation of the embedded dervative is prohibiced.

Oither financial liabilicies

Orther financial liabilities are financial Habilities other than those at fair value through profit or loss, and
mainly comprise bormowings from central banks, deposits and placements from banks and mon-bank
fnancial institutions, Anancial assets sold under repurchase agreements, deposits from customers and
debts sscurities lssued.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (Cantinued)

{c) Financial instruments (Continusd)
TAS 39 (applicable until 31 December 2017) (Contined)
(&) Devivatives and embaddad derivanives

Deerivatives mainly include forward and sewap contmacts in foreign currency market and interest rate
market. The Group enters into dervatives to hedge its exposure on foreign exchange and interest rate
risks; and for customer initiated transactions. The Group adopts hedge accounting in accordance with
Maote 4(c){ix)for dertvatives designated as hedging instruments if the hed ge is effective. Other derbathves
are accounted for as trading financial assets or fimancial liabilities. Diervatives are recognised at fair
value upon initlal recognition. Pasitive fair value is recognised as assets while the negative fair value is
recognised as labilitles. Gain or loss on re-measurement to fair value is recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Certain derivative Is embedded into a non-derivative instrument (the host contract). The embedded
derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for as a dervative when (i) the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivarive are not closely related to the host contrace; (ii) a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a
derivative; and (iil) the hybrid (combined) instrument is not measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the consclidated statement of profit or loss. When the embedded derbvative is
separated, the host contract is accounted for in accordance with Mote 4 (c)(i).

(i) Recogmition and de-recognition
All financial assets and financial liabilitles are recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position, when and only when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets

The Group derscognises a financial asset if the part being considersd for derecognition mests one of the
following conditions: (i} the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asser expired;
(i) the contractual rights to receive the cash Aows of the fnanclal asset have been transferred and the
Group transfers substantally all the risks and rewards of owneship of the financial asser; or (i) the
Group neither transfers nor remins substantially all the risks and rewards of cwnership but does not
continue to control the transferred asse.

Where a transfer of a financial asset in its entivety meets the criveria for de-recognition, the difference
between the two amounts below is recognised in the consclidated statement of profit or lass:

—  the camrying amount of the financial asset transferred;

—  the sum of the considenation received from the transfer and any cumulative gain or loss thar has
been recognised directly in squit.

I the Group neither transfers nor retalins substantially all the risks and rewards of owneship and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
imvolvement and recognises an associaved labilicy.
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

{c) Financial instruments (Continued)

IAS 39 fapplicable until 3 1 December 2017 (Continped)
(W) Recogmision amd de-recogmision (Comtimued])
Securitisation

As part of its operations, the Group securitises financlal assets, penerally through the sale of these assets wo
structured entities which Issue securities to imvestors. Purther details on prerequisites for de-recognition of
Amancial assets are set out above. When the securitisation of financial assets that qualify for de-recognition,
the relevant financial assets are de-recognised in their entirety and a new financial asset or liabilicles is
recognised regarding the interest in the unconsolidated securitisation vehicles that the Group acquired.
When the securitisation of financial assets that do not qualify for de-recognition, the reevant financial
assets are not derecognised, and the consideration paid by third parties are recorded as a financial liabiligy
when the securitisation of financial assets that partially qualify for de-recognition, where the Group has
not retained control, it derecognises these Anancial assets and recopnises separately as assets or liabilites
any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer. Otherwise the Group continues to recognise
these financlal assets to the extent of s continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Sales of assets on condition of repurchase

Dre-recognition of Amanclal assets sold on condition of repurchase is determined by the economic
substance of the transaction. If a financial asset is sold under an agresment o r:pu.n:hn.l: the same or
substantially the same asset at a fiwed price or at the sale price plus a reasonable retuen, the Group will
not derecognise the asset. If a financial asset is sold together with an option to repurchase the financial
asset at its fair value at the time of repurchase {in case of transferor sells such Anancial asset), the Goup
will derecognise the financial asset.

Financial liabilig

Financial liability is derecognised only when: (i) the underying present obligatio n specified in the contraces
is discharged!cancelled, or (i} an agreement between the Group and an existing lender to exchange the
original financial liability with a new financial lHability with substantlally different terms, or a substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial liability is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
ariginal financial lHability and recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial Hability derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in the consolidared
statement of pofic or loss.

fiw)  Messurem eme

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value plus or minus, in the cse of a financial instrument
not at fair value through profic or los, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of the instruments. Transaction costs for financial instraments at fair value through profit ar
loss are expensed immediately.

Subsequent to initlal recognition, held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables and other financial
liabilities are measured at amortised cost under effective interest rate method, while other catepories of
financial instruments are measured ar fic value. Investments in ovallable-for-sale equity instruments
that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and fair value cannot be reliably measured
are measured at cost.

Gain or loss on a financial instrument classified as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (Cantinued)

{c) Financial instruments (Continusd)
TAS 39 (applicable until 31 December 2017) (Contined)
() Meamrement (Comtinued)

Gain or loss on an available-for-sale financial asset is recopnised directly as other comprehensive income,
except for impairment losses and forelgn exchange gains or losses arising from the amortised cost portion
of monetary financial assets which are recognised directly in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
When the financlal asset is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gains or losses previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or los. Interest on available-for-sale financial assets calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the consclidated statement of profit or loss. Dividend income
from the available-for-sale equity instruments is recognised in the consclidated statement of profit or
loss when the investes declares the dividends.

When the available-for-sale financial assets are sold, gains or losses on disposal include the difference
between the net sale proceeds and the carrying value, and the accumulated fair value adjustments which
are previously recognised in other comprehensive income shall be reclassified from other comprehensive
income to the profit or loss.

For financial instrament carred at amortised cost, a pain or loss Is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profic or loss when the financial instrument is derecognised. impaired, or through the amortisation
|process.

(o) Iwupaivesen

The Group assesses at the reporting date the carrying amount of a financial asset {other than those ar fir
value through profit or loss). I there is objective evidence that the financial asset is impaired, the Group
will recognise the impairment loss in the consolidated statement of profic or loss

Ohbjective evidence that a financial asset is impaired included but is not limited oo
—  significant Anancial difficuley of the borrower or issuer;

— a breach of contrace by the bomower or lssuer, such as o default or delinguency in interest or
principal payments;

—  the Group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, granting
to the barrower a concession that the Gmp would ot otherwise conslder;

— it is probable that the bormwer will enter bankmptcy or other financial reorganisations;

—  disappearance of an active market for that fnancial asser because of financial difficulties of the

issuer;

—  observable data indicating that there is o measurable decrease in the estimated fature cash Aows
from a group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease
cannot yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the group, including: adverse changes
in the payment status of borrowens in the goup, an increase in the unemployment rate in the
geographical area of the bomowers, o decrease in property prices for mortgages in the pelevant
area, or adverse changes in industry conditions that affect the borrowers in the group;

—  significant changes with an adverse effect that have tken place in the technological, market,
economic or legal emvironment in which the bormower or issuer operates, indicating thar the
advances to boroowers or the cost of an investment in an equity instrument may not be recovered;
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
ic) Financial instruments (Continued)
IAS 39 (applicable until 31 December 2017) (Continued)
(o) Dmpuirment (Comtinued)

—  asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity Instrument below
lis cost; and

—  other objective evidence indicating there is an impairment of a Anancial asset.

The Group Frst assesses whether ob jective evidence o fimpairment exists individually forall corporate loans,
imvestments classified as receivables, available for-sale financial assets and ]::]d-ru-.n:nnl.rlt)r investments, and
collectively for the remainder of financial assets {other than those at fair value through pofit or loss). If
the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an indbridually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Financial assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in

collective assessment of impairment.

Impairment of financial assets carrled at amortised cost

Far financial assets carried at amortised cost, including loans and advances to customers, investments
classified as receivables and held -to-maturity investments, an impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidared starement of profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the assets are impaired. The
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s camrying amount and the present value of
estimated fature cash Hows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
Anancial asset’s orginal effective interest rate. For financial assets with varable interest mate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the cumrent effective interest rate determined under the contract.

The calculation of present wvalue of the estimated fuiure cash flows of a collateralised financial asser
reflects the cash flows that are expected to result from foreclosure, less the cost of obtalning and selling
the collateral.

Financlal assets will be grouped according to the similarities of credit sk characterstics during the
partfolio asessment of impairment. These credit risk chancteristics are usually related to the future cash
fow measurement of the asset being inspected, reflecting the debtor's ability to repay all due amounts
in accordance with the contractual terms of these assets.

Impairment reversal and written-off

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss on financial assets carred at amortsed
cost including loans and advances to customers, Imvestments classified as receivables and held-to-maturiny
imvestments decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event cccurring afrer the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. The reversal shall not result in a
carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds the amortised cost at the date of the reversal, had the
impairment not been recognised. The amount of the reversal is recognised in the consolidated statement
of prafit or loss.

When the Group determines that a financial asset carrled at amortised cost has no reasonable prospecte
of recovery after the Group has completed all the necessary legal or other proceedings, the financial asser
carried at amortised cost is written off against its allowance for impairment losses. If in a subsequent
period the financial asset carried at amornised cost written off is recoversd, the amount recovered will ke
recognised in the consolidated starement of profit or los through impairment losses.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (Cantinued)

{c) Financial instruments (Continusd)
TAS 39 (applicable until 31 December 2017) (Contined)

() fﬂlﬂdhﬂﬂ' (Comtimmed])
Rescheduled loans

Rescheduled loans are loans that have been rescheduled due to detedoration in the bomower's financial
position and where the Group has made concessions that it would not otherwise consider. Where
possible, the Group seeks to reschedule loans rather than to take possession of collateral. This may
imvalve the agreement of new loan conditions. The Group has analysed de-recognition of rescheduled
loans in accordance with Note 4 () {ill). Management continuously reviews rescheduled loans o ensure
that all criterla are met and that hature payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject
to individual or collective impairment assessment, and the impairment allowance is calculated using the
loan's original effective interest rate.

Awailable-for-sale Financlal assets

When an avail able-for-sale financial asset is impalred, the cumulative loss arlsing from decline in fair value
that had been recognised directly in other comprehensive income is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss even though the Anancial asset has
not been derecognised. The amount of the cumulative loss that is removed from other comprehensive
income is the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation)
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Por equity imvestments, a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the security below its cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists the cumulative loss, measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impalrment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, is removed from equity and recognised in the consolidated statement of profic or loss.

A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an equity instrument is an objective indicator of
impatrment of available-for-sale equity instrument. The Group separately checks all available-for-sale
equity Investments at reporting dare. If a decline in the fir value of an equity Instrument is below its
initial cost by 50% or more, or fair value is below cost for one year or longer at reporting date, it indicates
that such an equity Instrument s impaired. If such a decline in fair value is below its initial cost by 20%
or more but not up to 50% at reporting date, the Group tkes other factors such as price volatility into
consideration to judge whether the equity instrument is Impaired.

IE, in a subsequent peried, the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets increases and the increase can
be abjectively related to an ewent occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the consalidated
statement of profic or loss, the impairment loss shall be treated in accordance with following principle:

— impairment loss on debt instruments classified as ovailable-for-sale should ke reversed, with the
amount of the reversal recognised profic or loss;

—  impalrment loss on equity instruments classified as available-for-sale should not be reversed through
profic or loss, and any subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets is recognised directly in
equity;

—  impairment loss of available-for-sale equity investments camried at cost should not be reversed
'ﬂ:mu.z]:. the consolidated statement of pmﬂt or loss.
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

{c) Financial instruments (Continued)
TAS 39 (applicable until 31 December 2017) (Continued)
(i) Presemtation of fimancial dsers awd financial Tabiliies

Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented separarely in the consclidated statement of financial
position and are not offsst. However, financial assets and financial labilities ar= affset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position only if the Group has a legally enforceable
rght to s=t off the recognised amounts and the transactions are intended to be settled on a net basis, ar
by realising the asser and settling the liability simultanecuslhy.

(wii)  Fimdweial assets beld under resale and financial svers sold under rr‘#rc&m dFreenien iy

Financlal assets held under resale agreements are transactions which the Group acquires financial assets
which will be resold at a predetermined price in the future date und er resale agreements. Financial assets
sold under repurchase agreements are transactions which the Group sdls financial assets which will ke
repurchased ar a predetermined price in the harure date under repurchase agreements.

Cash advanced or received is recognised as amounts held under resale and repurchase agreements an
the consolidated statement of financial position. Assets held under resale agreements are recorded in
memomandum accounts as offbalance sheet items. Assets sold under repurchase agreements continue o
be recognised in the statement of financlal position.

The difference berween the resale and repurchase consideration, and that between the purchase and sale
consideration, should be expired ower the period of the respective transaction using the effective interest
method and are included in interest expense and interest income, respectively.

(widi) Eguity instrument
The consideration received from the lssuance of equity instruments net of transaction costs is recognissd

in equity. Consideration and transaction costs paid by the Bank for repurchasing selfissued equiny
instruments are deducted from equity holders’ equiryr.

(o) Hedging
Drerivatives are initlally recognised ar fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss
depends on whether the dedvative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nanare of the
itemn is being hedged. The Group designates certain derbvatives as hedges of the fair value of recognisad
assets or llabilities (fair value hedge).

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship berween hedging instruments
and hedged items, as well as its risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking various hedging
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis,
of whether the dertvatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes
in fair values of hedged items.

Pair value hedge:

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are deslgnated and qualified as fair value hedges are recarded
in the consclidated statement of profic or loss, together with any changes in the fir value of the hedged
asset or Hability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount
of a hedged item for which the effective interest method is used is amortised to profit or loss over the
period to maturity.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (Cantinued)

{d) Precious metals

Precious metals comprise gold and other precious metals. Precious metals that are not related to the Group's
precious metals trading activites are initially measured at acquisition cost and subsequently measured at the
lowrer of cost and net realisable value. Precious metals acquired by the Group for trading purposes and precious
metals leasing are initially measured ar fair value and subsequent changes in fair value are recorded in the
consolidated statement of profic or loss.

{e] Interests in subsidiaries

In the Bank’s consclidated statement of financial position, interests in subsidiaries are accounted for wsing the
cost less impairment loses (see Mote 4 (n)). Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. Diividends
declared by subsidiaries are recognised in investment income.

Dietermination of investment cost

For long-term equity investments acquired through a business combination: for long-term equity imeestments
acquired through a business combination imvolving enterprises under common contral, the investment cost
shall be the absorbing party’s share of the carrying amount of cwners® equity of the party being absorbed at the
combination date; for long-term equity imvestment acquired through a business combination invalving enterprises
not under commeon control, the imvestment cost shall be the combination cost.

Farlong-term equity imvestments acquired not through a business combination: forlong-term equity imvestment
acquired by payment in cash, the initial investment cost shall be the purchase price actually paid; for long-term
equity investments acquired by issuing equity securities, the initlal investment cost shall be the fir value of the
equity securitles lssued.

i(fi Interests in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. A jolnt wenture Is an arrangement
whereby the Group and other parties contractually agree to share control of the arrangement, and have rights
to the net assets of the arrangement.

When acquiring asscciates and joint ventures, the Group recognises as initial imvestment cost in the principle
which: for the investments obtained by making payment in cash, the Group recognises the purchase cost which
is actually paid as initial imestment costs; for the investments obtained by equity securities, the Group recognises
the fair value of the equity securities issued as initial investment cost.

An investment in an associate or a jodnt venture is accounted for using the equity method, unless the investment
is classified as held for sale.
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(fi Interests in associates and joint ventures (Continned)
The Group adopts the following accounting treatments when using the equity method:

— Where the initial investment cost of an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in the
fair value of the investee’s identifiable net assets ar the date of acquisition, the imrestment is initially
recognised at the initial imvestment cost. Where the initial imvestment cost is less tham the Group’s
interest in the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition, the imvestment
is initlally recognised at the investor’s share of the fir value of the investee’s identifiable net assets, and
the difference is charged to profit or loss.

— Afer the acquisition of the imvestment, the Group recognises its share of the investee’s profic or loss
and other comprehensive income as imvestment income or losses and other comprehensive income
respectively, and adjusts the carying amount of the investment accordingly. Once the imvestee declares
any cash dividends or profic distributions, the carrping amount of the investment is reduced by thar
amount attrlbutable to the Group. Changes in the Group's share of the investee’s owners® equity, other
than those arising from the investee’s pofit or loss, other comprehensive income or profic discribution,
is recognised in the Group’s equity, and the carrying amount of the investment is adjusted accordingly.

— The Group recognises its share of investee’s profits or losses, other comprehensive income and other
changes in equity holders’ equity after making appropriate adjustments to align the accounting policies
or accounting periods with those of the Group based on the fir value of the investee’s identifiable net
assets at the date of acquisition. Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions berween the
Group and its associates or jolnt wentures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in the
assoclates or joint ventures, When an entty in the Group transacts with the Group’s assoclate, profics
and losses resulting from the transaction are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of the interest in the associate that are not related to the Group. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

—  The Group discontinues recognising its share of net losses of investees after the carrping amount of
imvestment to the associates and joint ventures and any long-term interest that in substance forms part
of the Group’s net interest in the associates and joint ventures are reduced to zero, except to the extent
that the Group has an obligation to assume additicnal losses. Additional loss is recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of thar
associate. Where profits are subsequently made by the associates and joint ventures, the Group resumes
recognising Its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not
recognised.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an investes
but does not have control or joint control owver those policies.

The Group makes provisions for impairment of interests in associates and joint ventures in accordance with the
principles described in Note 4 (n).

(gl Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is asset held by the Group for the conduct of business and is expected to be used
for more than one year. Construction-in-progress, an item of property, represents property under construction
and is transferred to property when ready for its intended use
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (Cantinued)

(gl Property, plant and equipment
() Gost

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost wpon indtial recognition. Costs of o purchased property,
plant and equipment comprise purchase price, related taxes, and any directly attributable expenditures for
bringing the asset to working condition for s intended wse. Costs of a self-constructed property, plant
and equipment comprise construction materials, direct labor costs and those expenditures necessarily
incurred for bringing the asset to working condition for s intended use.

Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises major components having different wseful
lives, they are accounted for as separate ivems of property, plant and equipment.

(&)  Subsequent costs

The Group recognises in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment the cost of
replacing part of such an item when that cost Is incurred if it is probable that the future economic benefits
embodied with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the ltem can be measured reliably. All
other costs are recognised in the consclidated statement of profic or loss as an expense when incumed.

{(#) Depreciation

Deepreciation is calculated to write off the cost, less residual value if applicable, of property. plant and
equipment and is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basils over the estimated useful lives of each
part of an item of property, plant and equipment.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Estimated Estimted

wigfild live residudl palue Digprecidtion rate
Buildings 30 — 35 years 096 5% 2.71%-3.33%:
Computer equipment and others 3 — 10 years 0% 1 0% 900933, 33%

Mo depreciation is provided in respect of construction in progress.

The residual value and useful lives of assets are reviewesd, and adjusted if appropriate, as of sach reporting
date.

(&) Impaimment

Impairment losses on property, plant and squipment are accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policies as set out in Mote 4 (n).

(v}  [Nsposal and retirement

Gains orlosses arising from the disposal or retirement of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carying amount of the asset and are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on the date of disposal or retirement.
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

{h) Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less amortisation and included under other assets. Land use rights are amortised
on a straight-line basis over the respective periods of grant. When the costs attributable to the land use rights
cannot be reliably measured and separated from that of the building at inception, the costs are included in the
cost of buildings and recorded in property, plant and equipment.

Impairment loss on land wse rights is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies as set out in
Mote 4 (n).

(i) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are inicially recognised at cost. The cost less estimated net residual valwes (if any) of the intangible
assets Is amortised on a straight line basis over their useful lives, and charged to profit or loss. Impaired intangible
assets are amortised net of accumulated impairment losses,

Impairment loss on intangible assets is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies as set our in
Mote 4 (n). Impaired intangible assets are amortised net of accumulated impaitment losses.

Intangible assets which are not yet available for use should be estimated at least at each financial year-end, even
if there was no indication that the assets were impalired.

(j)  Investment propertics

Investment properties are land andfor buildings which are owned andfor held under a leasehold interest to earn
rental income andfor for capital appreciation.

The Group’s imvestment properties are accounted for using the fair value mode for subsequent measurement
when =ither of the following conditions 1s met:

— There is an active property market in the location in which the imvestment property is situated;

— The Group can obtain the market price and ather relevant information regarding the same type of ar
similar properties from the property market, so as to reasonably estimate the fair value of the investment
property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial pasition. Any gain or loss
arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of an investment property Is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profic or loss.

When there is a change in use of properties from owner-accupation to earn rentals or for capital app reclarion,
the investment property transferring from property, plant and equipment or intangible assets is measured at fair
value on the date of transfer. If the fair value on the transferred investment property is lower than the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment or intangible assets on the date of transfer, the difference s recognised
in profit or loss, otherwise in the comp rehensive income.

When an investment property Is sold, transferred, retired or damaged. the Group recognises the amount of any
proceeds on disposal, net of the carrying amount and related expenses, in the consolidated statement of profic
and loss.

2165  China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

281/410



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

Chapter 10 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear ended 31 December 2018
{Amomrty in millions of Renminbl onles othermwise sated)

4 Summary of significant accounting policies (Cantinued)

(k) Lease

A lease is classified as either a finance lease oran opemating lease. A finance lease is a lease that transkfers substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of a leased asset to the lesses, lrespective of whether the legal
title to the asset is eventually transferred. An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease.

i Finance laases

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount representing the sum of the minimum
lease recelpts and unguaranteed residual value, net of initlal direct costs, all discounted at the implicit
lease rate (the “net lease investment”), is included in “loans and advances to customers™ on consalidated
statement of financial position as o finance lease recebvable. At the commencement of the lease term, the
Group recognises the aggregate of the minimum lease recelpts determined at the inception of a lease and
the initlal direct costs as finance lease receivable, The difference between the net lease investment and
the aggregate of thelr present value is recognised as uneamed finance income which s included in “loans
and advances to customers” as well. Unrecognised finance income under finance leases is amortised using
the effective interest rate method over the lease term. Hire purchase contraces having the chancteristics
of Anance leases are accounted for in the same manner as finance leases.

Impairment losses are accounted in accordance with the accounting policies as set cut in Mote 4 (c)(v).

When the Group is a lessee under finance leases, an amount equal to the lower of the fair value of the
leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the
lease, is inchaded in “property. plant and equipment® on the consclidated statement of financlal positon
as 2 leased asset. An amount equals to the minimum lease payments s included in “other labilities™ on
the consclidated statement of financial position recognised as a long-term payable. The difference between
the recorded amount of the leased asset and the recorded amount of the payable shall be accounted for
as unrecognised finance charge. The Group recognises financial charge for the current period using the
effective interest method.

Diepreciation policles are acoounted in accordance with the accounting policies as set out in Note 4 (g)
and impairment losses are accounted In accordance with the accounting policy as set out in Note 4 (n).
If there is a reasonable certainty that the lessee will obrain ownership of the leased asset by the end of the
lease term, the leased asset should be depreciated over its useful life. Otherwise, leased asset is depreciated
over the shorter of the lease term and its estimared useful life

(&} Operating leases
Where the Group leases out assets under operating leases, the assets are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position according to thelr nature and, where applicable, are depreciated in
accordance with the Group’s depreclation policies, as set out in Mote 4(g) except where the asset is
classified as an investment property. Impairment losses are accounred in accordance with the accounting
policies as set out in Mote 4{n). Revenue arlsing from operating leases is recognised in accordance with
the Group’s revenue recognition policies, as set out in Note 4 (u)iiv).

When the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased assets. Lease incentives received are recognised in the consolidated statement of profic or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged o profic or
loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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()  Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination ower the Group’s interest in the fair value
of the acquire’s identifiable net asses. Goodwill Is not amortised. Goodwill arising from a business combination
is allocated to each cash-generating unit (“CGUT) or a group of OGLs, that is expected to benefic from the
synergies of the combination. The Group performs impairment test on gocdwill annually.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets over the cost of
a business combination is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or lass.

On disposal of the redated CGU or a group of COGUs, any attributable amount of the purchased goodwill net
of allowance for impairment losses, If amy, Is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Impairment loss on goodwill is accounted in accordance with the accounting policies as set our in Mote 4 (n).

(m] Repossessed assets

In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Group may take possesslon of assets held as collateral
through court procesdings or voluntary delivery of possession by the bomrowers. Where it is intended to achieve
an orderly realisation of the impaired assets and the Group is no longer seeking repayment from the bomower,
repossessed assets are reported in “other assets™.

When the Group selwes assets to compensate for the losses of loans and advances and interest receivables, the
repossessed assets are initially recognised at fair value, plus any taxes paid for the serure of the assets, litigation
fees and other expenses imcurred for collecting the reposmessed assets are included in the carrying value of
repossessed assets.

When the fair value less costs to sell is lower than a repossessed asset’s carrylng amount, an impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Repossessed assets are recognised at the carrying
wvalues, net of allowance for impairment losses.

The repossessed assets are disposed after acquisitlon and cannot be used without autharisation. The repossessed
assets that are transferred to own use are treated as newly purchased property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss arising from the disposal of the repossessed assets s included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the pedod in which the item is disposed.

in) Allowance for impairment of non-financial assets
i) Impaimment of non-financial assets other than goodnill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether there is any Indication that a non-
Anancial asset other than poodwill such as investments in assoclates and joint ventures, property, plant and

equipment, investment properties, intangible assets and other assets may be impaired. If any indication
exists that an asset may be impaired, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

The recoverable amount of an asset s the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and the present value
of the hature cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. The Group considers all relevant factors
in estimating the presemt value of future cash fows, such as the expected future cash Aows, the useful
life and the discount rate.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is recognised as an impairment loss in the consolidared
statement of profic or loss.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (Cantinued)

in) Allowance for impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
(i) Impaiment of poodwill

Faor the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the
CGL or the group of CGUs that is expected to benefit from the symergies of the combination.

A OGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that is largely independent
of the cash flows from other assets or groups of assets.

The CGU or the group of CGUs to which geodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment by the
Group annually, or whenever there is an indication that the CGLU or the group of CGUs are impaired,
by comparing the carrying amount of the CGL or the group of CIGUs, including the goodwill, with the
recoverable amount of the CGU or the group of CGUs. The recovenble amount of the CGU or the
group of G are the estimared future cash flows, which are discounted to their present value using a
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the CGL or the group of OGUs with allocated geadwill.

At the time of impairment testing of 2 CGU ora group ofthe CGL to which goodwill has been allocated,
there may ke an indiatlon of an impalrment of an asser within the CGU containing the goodwill. In
such circumstances, the Group tests the asser for iImpairment first, and recognises any impaltment lass
for that asset before testing for impairment on the CGU or group of the CGUs containing the goodwill.
Similarly, there may be an indication of an impairment of a CG U within a group of the CGLL containing
the goodwill. In such circumstances, the Group tests the CGU for impairment first, and recognises any
impairment loss for that CGL, before testing for impairment the group of CGL o which the goodwill
is allocated.

For a CGU or a group of CGUs, the amount of impalrment loss frstly reduces the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the CGU or the group of CGLL, and then reduces the carrying amount
of ather assets (other than goodwill) within the CGL ar the group of OGUs, pro rata on the basis of
the carrying amount of each asset. The carrying amount of an asset should not be reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of dispasal (if measurable); is value in use (if determinable) and zerm.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not eversed.

(o) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be recebved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions
{le. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique (Note 63).

(p) Employec benefits
i Short-term employes benafies
Dharing the accounting period when an employes has rendered serdce to the Group, the Group recognisess
the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits as a Hability and as an expense, unless another
IFR.S requires or permits the inchasion of the benefits in the cost of an asset. Short-term employee benefies
include wages, bonuses, labor union expenses and exployee education expenses, soclal insurance such as
medical insurance, work-related injury insurance and maternity insurance, as well as housing provident
fands, which are all calculated based on the regulated benchmark and ratio.
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(pl Em plur}'ec benefits (Continued)
(i}  Post-employment benefits: Defined contnbution plans

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the Group participated in a defined contribution
basic pension insurance in the socal insurance system established and managed by government orpanisations.
The Group malkes contrbutions to basic pension insurance plans based on the applicable benchmarks
and rates stipulated by the government. Basic pension insurance contributions are charged to profic ar
loss when the related services are rendered by the employess.

In addition to the stamuwtory provision plan, the Bank's employees have joined its annuity scheme (the
“scheme”) which was established by the CITIC Group Corporation (“CITIC Group™) in accordance with
policies regarding the state cwned enterprise anmuity policy. The Bank has made annuity contributons
in proportion to its employee’s gross salaries which are expensed in the consclidated statement of profic
or loss when the contributicns are made.

The Group operates a defined contribution provident fund and a Mandatary Provident Pund scheme
for Hong Kong staff. Contributions are charged to profic or loss as and when the contribution fll due.

(iif)  Post-employment benefitsr Defined ben efit plans

The defined benefit plans of the Group are supplementary retirement benefits provided to the domestic
employess.

The Group adopts the projected unit credit actuarial cost method, using unbiased and mutually compatible
actuarial assumptions to estimate the demographic and financial variables, to measure the obligation
associated in the defined benefits plan. The discounted present value of the defined benefit obligation,
is recognised as the Habilities of the defined benefir plans.

The Group recognises the obligation of defined benefit plans in the accounting period in which the
employees render the related services. Pasi-service costs are recognised immediately in the consolidared
satement of profit or loss. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount mate to the net
balance of the defined benefic obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in
employes benefic expense in the consolidated statement of profie or loss. Re-measurement arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

(gl Government grants

Government grants are transfers of monetary assets or non-monetary assets from the povernment to the Goup
at no consideration except for amy capital contrbution from the government as an investor in the Group. Special
funds such as investment grants allocated by the government, if cleary defined in officlal documents as part of
“capital reserve” are dealt with as capital contrdbutions, and not regarded as povernment grants.

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grants will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to the grants. Government grants are measured at the
amount recetved or will be received when recognised as monetary assets. Government grants are measured at
fair value when recognised as non-monetary assets.

The grants related to assets are government grants whose primary condition is that an entity qualifying for them
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-term assets. The grants related to income are government
grants other than those related to assets. A government grant related to an asset is recognised initially as deferred
income and amortised to profit or loss on o straight-line basis over the usefal life of the asset. A granc that
compensates the Group for expenses to be incurred in the subsequent periods is recognised initially as deferred
income and recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the same periods in which the expenses
are recognised. A grant that compensates the Group for expenses incurred is recognised in the consolidared
statemnent of profit or loss immediately. The Group uses the same statement method for similar gowernment grants.

The prime based loan of the Group is calculared based on actual incoming loan as entry value and preferential
interest rate. The direct interest charges against the cost of loan.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (Cantinued)

(r) Financial guarantee contracts and lean commitments

A Ffinancial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due, in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial puarantees are initlally recognised at fair value on the date the guarantes was ghven. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees are measared at the higher of the initial
amount, less amortisation of guarantee fees, and the best estimate of the expected credit loss provision required
to settle the guarantes. Any increase in the liability relating to guarantees is mken to the consolidated statement
of profit and loss.

The impairment allowance of loan commitments provided by the Group is measured by ECL. The Group has
not provided any commitment to provide loans at a below-market interest rate, or thar can be settled net in
cash or by delivering or issuing another financial instrument.

Forloan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowance Is recognised as a provision. However,
for contracts that include both a loan and an undrawn commitment and the Gmp can ot upnn.l'd.y ld.gntli}
the ECL on the undrawn commitment component from those on the loan component, the ECL on the undrawn
commitment are recognised together with the loss allowance for the loan. To the extent that the combined ECL
exceed the gross carrping amount of the loan, the ECL are recognised as a provision.

(s) Provisions and contingent liabilitics

A provision is recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of o past event, it is probable that an cutflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. A provision is Initially measured
at the best estimate of the expenditure required to setcle the reated present obligation. Pactors pertaining to a
contingency such as the risks, uncertainties and time value of money are taken into account as a whole in reaching
the best estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money is maverial, the best estimate is determined by
discounting the related future cash outflows. The Group recognise the loss allowance of financlal guarantee
contracts measured by ECL as a provision.

A contingent liability is (a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose exdstence can only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-coccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group; or (b} a present obligation that arises from past events and it is not probable that an
outflow of economic benefits is required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured reliably. Such liability is disclosed as contingent liabilities under Mote 57.

(t) Fiduciar}; activities

The Group acts in a fiduciary capacity as a custodian, tnustee, or an agent for customers. Assets held by the
Group and the related undertakings to return such assets to customers are excluded from the consolidated
Anancial statements as the rsks and rewards of the assets reside with the customers.

Entrusted lending is the business where the Group enters into entnusted loan agreements with customers, whersby
the customers provide funding (the “entrusted funds™) to the Group, and the Group grants loans to third parties
{the “entrusted loans™ at the instructlon of the customers. As the Group does not assume the risks and rewards
of the entrusted loans and the comesponding entrusted funds, entrusted loans and funds are recorded as off-
balamce sheet items at their principal amounts and no impairment assessments are made for these entrusted loans.
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(n) Income recognition

BRevenue is the gross inflow of economic benefit arbsing in the course of the Group's ordinary activities when
those inflows result in increases in equity, other than increases relating to contributions from cwners. Revenue
is recognised when the controls of related products or services is obtained and satisfy the other conditions for
different gype of revenues as below

i) Interest income

Interest income of Anancial assets is calculated using the effective interest method and included in the
profit and loss. Interest income includes the amortisation of any discount or premium or other differences
berween the initial carrying amount of an interest-bearing instrument and its amount at maturity caloulated
on an effective interest rate basis.

The effective interest method is 2 method of calculating the amortised cost of financial assets and Habilities
and of allocating the interest income and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter peried to the net carrying amount of
the financial instrument. When calculating the effective intersst rate, the Group estimates cash Aows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar
options) but dees not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and interest paid or
recetved between partles to the contrace that are an invegral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and all other premiums or discounts.

{ii}  Fee and commission income

Fee and commisslon income Is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the
corresponding service is provided, Qrgination or commitment fees received by the Group which resule
in the creation or acquisition of a financial asset are deferred and recognised as an adjustment to the
effective interest nate. If the commitment expires without the Group making a loan or anticipating will
not, the fee Is recognised as revenue on expiry.

{iif]  Dividend income
Diividend income is recognised in the consclidated statement of profit or loss on the date when the
Group’s right to receive payment is established.

fiv]  Rental income from operting lease

Rental income recetved under operating leases is recognised as other operating income in equal instalments
owver the periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asser. Lease incentives pranted are recognised in the
consolidared statement of profic or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments recebvable.

{v)  Finance income from fnance lease and hire purchase contract

Finance income implicit in finance lease and hire punchase payments is recognised as interest income
over the pericd of the leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic mate of return on the
outstanding net investment in the leases for each accounting period.

222 China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

287/410



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

Chapter 10 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear ended 31 December 2018
{Amomrty in millions of Renminbl onles othermwise sated)

4 Summary of significant accounting policies (Cantinued)

{v] Income tax

Current tax and deferred tax are IEDDE:ﬁ.Iﬂi in the consolidated statement of pmﬂl‘ or loss Except o the extent
that they relate to a business combination or items recognised directly in equity (including other comprehensive
income).

Current income tax is the expected tax payables on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the reporting date, and amy adjustment to tax payables in respect of previous pericds.
Dieferred tax is provided for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and Habilities for
fnancial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Temporary differsnces also arise from
unused tax losses and wrsed tax credits. Dieferred tax Habilities are not recognised if they arise from the injtial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred Income tax is not accounted for if i arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a tranmction other than a business combination that at the tdme of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be wtilised.

Dieferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, assoclates and joint arrangements, except for deferred Income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will ot reverse in the foresesable future. Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from imvestments in subsidiades, associates and joimt ventures arrangements only to the
extent that it s probable the temporary difference will reverse in the farure and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

At the reporting date, deferred tax assets and deferred tax Habilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply to the pericd when the asset is realised or the liability is settled according to the requirements of tax
lawes. The Growp also considers the possibility of realisation and the settl ement of deferred tox assets and deferresd
tax liabilities in the calculation.

Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilicies if
the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and meet the
additional conditions that deferred tax assets and Habilities relate to income taxes levied by the same authoricy
on the same taxable entity.

(w) Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-rerm, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an inslgnificant risk of changes in value, with orginal maturity of three months
or less ar acquisition.

(x) Profit distribution

Proposed dividends for ordinary shares which are declared and approved afier the end of each reporting period
are not recognised as a liability in the consolidated statement of financial position and are instead disclosed as
a subsequent event after the end of each reporting perod in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
Dividends payable are recognised as liabilities in the period in which they are approved.

As authorised by the shareholders’ annual general meeting, the Board of Directors has the sole discretion to
declare and distribute dividends on preference shares. Preference share dividend distribution is recognised as a
liability in the consclidated financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approwved.

iy) Related parties

If the Group has the power, direcily or indirectly, to contmol, jointy control or exercise significant influence
over another party, or vice wersa, or where the Group and one or more parties are subject to common control,
jointly control from another party, they are considered to be related parties. Related parties may be individuals
ar enterprisas.
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(z) Optrnting segments

An operating segment is a component of the Group that satisfies all of the following conditions: (1) the component
is able to enrn revenues and incur expenses from its ordinary activities; (2) whose opemting results are regulachy
reviewed by the Group’s management to malke decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and to
assess Its performance, and (3) for which the information on Anancial position, operating results and cash fows
is wailable to the Group. If two or more operating segments have similar economic characterstics and sarisfr

certain conditions, they are aggregated into one single operating segment.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Group’s
chief operating decision-maker for the purposes of allocating resources and assessing performance. The Goup
considers the business from different perspectives including products and services and geographic areas. The
operating segments that meet the specified criterla have been aggregated, and the operating segments that meet
quantitative thresholds have been reported separately.

Intersegment revenues are measured on the basis of actual transactlon price for such transactions for segment
reporting, and segment accounting policies are consistent with those for the consclidated financial statements.
5  Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Prepantion of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are believed o be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and associated key assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revislons to accounting estimates are
recognised in the perod in which the estimates are revised and in any future pericds affected.

(il Mecasurement of the expected credit loss allowance (IFRS 9)

The measurement of the expected credic loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost and
FWiO(CI is an area that requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic
conditions and credit behaviour (e.g. the likelihood of customers defaulting and the resulting losses). Explanation
of the inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used in measuring ECL s further detalled in note 61(a).

A number of significant judgements are alsio required in applying the accounting requirements for measuring
ECL, such as:

- Dretermining critera for significant increase in credit risk;
- Choosing appmopriate models and assumptions for the measurement of ECL;

- Establishing the number and relative weightings of foreard-locking scenaras for each type of produce/
market and the associated BCL; and

. Establishing groups of similar financlal assets for the purposes of measuring ECL.

Deetailed information abour the judgements and estimates made by the Group in the abowve areas is set out in
note 61 {a).
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5  Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)

(ii) Impairment losses on loans and advances to costomers and investments classified as
reccivables (IAS 39)

Loans and advances to customers

The Group reviews its loans and advances to customers to assess impairment on a periodic basis during the
vear. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
ar loss, the Group makes estimates and judgments as to whether there is any observable data indicating that
there is objective evidence of impairment and the extent, if amy, to which it will have a measurable decrease
in the estimated Rature cash flows related o individually assessed loans and advances or pools of loans and
advances to customers with similar rsk characterstics, as described in Note 4 (c){v) impalrment of financial
assets carried at amortised cost.

Significant judgments are made in the determination of whether objective evidence of impairment exists in
individually assessed loans and advances to customers or pools of loans and advances to customers with similar
sk characteristics. Among other things, objective evidence of impalrment includes deterioration in the financial
condition of specific borrowers (or specific peols of borrowers) affecting their ability to meet their loan payment
obligations, overdue status, financial position of guarantors, latest collateral valuations, concession the Group
that would not otherwise be granted to bormwens for economic or legal reasons relating to their financial
difficulties, as well as increasing industry sector over-capacity or chsclescence, or deterioration in national or
regional economic conditions that are correlated to increasing loans and advances to customers defaulis. These
judgments are made both during management’s regular assessments of credic quality of loans and advances o
customers and when other circumstances indicate the possibility that objective evidence ofimpairment may exist.

Where it is determined that objective evidence of impairment exists, significant judgments and estimates are
made in estimating the adverse impact on future cash fows related to individually assessed impaired loans and
advances to customers. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing
of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences betwesn loss estimates and actual loss
experience. Pactors affecting these estimates include the availabilicy and granularity of information related to
specific borrowers; the results of regulatory peviews and the related portfolic analysis, and the cladty of the
correlation between qualitative factors, such as industry sector performance or changes in regional economic
conditions and loans and advances to customer's defaules of related boroowers.

Corporate loans and advances to customers not identified as impaired from individually assessments, together
with all personal loans and advances to customers are included in in homogenous groups with similar credit
risks characteristics for performance of impairment assessments on a collective basis. Migration model is used
for corporate loans and wll rate models are used for pesonal loans considering the similarity of credit risks and
applying key assumptions. Significant judgments are applied to the calculation of assessed impalrment using
these models. Critical factors affecting these judgments include modelling assumptions (g, loss given default)
and levels of correlation between qualitative factors and loans and advances to customers default. The collective
impalrment loss is assessed after taking into account: (1) historical loss experience in portfolios of similar credit
rsk characterstics; (i1} the emergence period between a loss occurrng and thar loss being identified; (iid) high
rsk products and gesgraphic locarions; and {iv) the current economic and credit environments and whether in
management’s experience these indicate that the actual level of inherent losses is likely to be greater or less than
that suggested by historical experience. The Group considers the impact of the changes and uncertainty in the
macro-sconomic environment, in which the Group operates when assessing the methodologies and assumptions
used for loss estimation, makes adjustments where appropriate.
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5  Ciritical accounting estimates and judgements (Contimued)

{ii) Impairment losses on loans and advances to customers and investments classified as
reccivables (IAS 39) (Continued)

Investments clasdfied as receivables

In determining whether an impairment loss should be recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the Group makes significant estimates and judgments as to whether there is any chservable data indicating that
there is objective evidence of impairment and the extent, if any, to which it will have a measurable decrease in
the estimated Future cash flows related to investments classified as receivables by underying assets or groups of
underlying assets with similar risk characteristics, as described in MNote 4 (c)iv) Impairment of financial assets
carried at amortised cost.

Where it is determined that objective evidence of impalrment exists, significant judgments and estimates are
miade in estimating the adverse impact on future cash Aows based on the underdying assets related to individually
significant impaired imvestment classified as receivables.

Investments classified as recelvables not identified as impaired from the individual assessment are inchaded in
groups with similar credit risk characteristics by undeclying assets with the consideration of risk factors specific
to different industries and different type of undeclying assets, and assessed for impairment collectively. Significant
judgments are applied to the calculation of collectively assessed impairment.

(iii) Impairment of available-for-sale equity investments (IAS 39)

Far available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in fair value below cost is consldered
to be objective evidence of impairment. Judgement is required when determining whether a decline in fair value
has been significant or pmlonged. In making this judgement, the Group considers historical dara of market
volatility and historical share price of the specific equity investment as well as other factors, such as sector
performance, financial information regarding the investee and industry pracrice.

{iv) Classification of financial assets (IFRS 9)

The critical judgments the Group has in determining the classification of fnancial assets include analysis of
business models and characteristics of contractual cash fows.

The Group determines the business model for managing financial assets at the level of financial asser portfolic.
The factors considered include evaluation and reporting of financial asset performance to key management
personnel, risks affecting the performance of financial assets and their management metheds, and related business
ST e n pn:mnn:]. The way to get pﬂ.l.d, -8

When assessing whether the contractual cash flow of financlal assets Is consistent with the basic lending
arrangement, the Group has the following main judgments: Whether the principal may ke subject to change in
the duration or amount of money due to prepayments during the duration; Wether interests is only included
currency timewalue, credit risk, other basic borrowing risks, and considerations for costs and profits. For example,
Wether the amount pald in advance reflect only the outstanding principal and interest on the ocutstanding
principal, as well as reasonable compensation for eardy termination of the contrct.

(v}  Fair value of financial instruments

For financial instruments without active market, the Group determines fair values using valuation techniques
which include discounted cash flow models, as well as other types of valuation models. Assumptions and inputs
used in valuation techniques include risk-free and benchmark interest rates, credit spreads and foreign currency
exchange rates, Where discounted cash fow techniques are used, estimated cash fows are based on management’s
best estimates and the discount rate used is a market rate at the end of each reporting pericd applicable for
an instrament with similar terms and conditions. Where other pricing models are used, inputs are based on
observable market data at the end of each reporting pericd. However, where market data are not available,
management needs to make estimates on such unobservable market inputs based on assumptions. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the estimated fair value of financial instruments.
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5  Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)

ivi) De-recognition of financial assets

In its normal course of business, the Group transfers Anancial assets through vardous frpes of transactions
including regular way sales and transfers, securitisation, financial assets sold under repurchase agreements and
etr.. The Group applies significant judgement in assessing whether it has transferred these financial assets which
qualify for a full or partial de-recogniticon.

Where the Group enters into structured transactions by which it transferred financial asset to structured entities,
the Group analyses whether the substance of the relationship between the Group and these structured entities
indicates that it contrals these structured entities to determine whether the Group needs to consclidate these
structured entities. This will determine whether the following de-recognition analysis should be conducted at
the consolidated level or at the entity level from which the financial assets was transferred.

The Group analyses the contractual rights and obligations in connection with such transfers to determine whether
the de-recognition criteria are met based on the following considerations:

—  whether it has transferred the rights to receive contractual cash flows from the financial assets or the
transfer qualified for the “pass through® of those cash flows to independent third parties;

— the extent to which the associated risks and rewards of ownenhip of the financial assets are transferred by
using appropriate models. Significant judgment is applied in the Group’s assessment with regard to the
parameters and assumptions applied in the meodels, estimated cash flows before and after the transfers,
the discount rates used based on curment market interest rates, varlabilicy factors considered and the
allacarion of weightings in different scenarios;

—  where the Group neither retained nor transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards associated with
their cwnership, the Group analyses whether the Group has relinguished its contmls over these financial
assets, and if the Group has continuing involvement in these transferred financial assets.

{vii) Consolidation of structured entities

The Group makes significant judgment to assess whether or not to consolidate structured entities. When
performing this assessment, the Group:

—  assesses its contractual rights and obligations in light of the transaction structures, and evaluates the
Group's power over the structured entities;

—  performs independent analyses and tests on the variable returns from the structured entities, including
but not limited to commision income and asset management fees eamed, retention of residual income,
and, if amy, liquidity and other suppart provided to the structured envities; and

—  assesses its ability to exercise its power to influence the variable returns assessed whether the Group
acts as a principal or an agent through analysis of the scope of the Group’s decision-making authodty,
remuneration entitled, other interests the Group holds, and the rights held by other parties.

{viii) Income taxes

Dietermining income tax provisions imvolves judgement on the Future tax treatment of certain transactions. There
are certain transactions and activicies for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group carefully evaluates the tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up
accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidersd periodically to take into account all changes
in tax legislations. Dieferred tax assets are recognised for temponry deductible differences. As those deferred tax
assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable that fature taxable profits will be available against
which the unused tax credits can be utilised, management’s judgement is required to assess the probability of
fature taxable profits. Management’s assessment is constantly reviewsd and additional deferred tax assets are
recognised If it becomes probable thar huture taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recoversd.
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6  Net interest income
Year ended 31 December

2018 2017

Intetest locome atklng fom (Note (1))
Dieposits with central banks 7049 T B33
Dreposits with banks and non-bank financial institutions 2,472 3 040
Placements with and loans to banks and non-bank

financial insticutions B.Z03 5,223
Financial assets held under resale agreements TGRT 1 068
Loans and advances to customers

— corponate loans 95,562 29053

— pmnﬂ] loans 61,401 4R2TG

— discounted bills 8,645 4,004
Financial investments

— at amortised cost 32,881 —

— at fair value H:.mru.Eh. ather mmprd:n:n:bm Income 16,534 —
lovestments classified as receivables — 25438
Investments in debt securties — 25922
Crthers 59 102
Subtoal 233793 220,762
Intetest expense atsing froow
E-arm'wlngl from ceniral banks (8237 I:ﬁ, 15 l:l
Dreposits from banks and non-bank financial institutions (26,389) (36,896)
Macement: fram banks and non-bank financial insticutions {#.389) (3.006)
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements (1,623 (z691)
Dreposits from customers (66, 254) (53.190)
Dheht securities lmsued (22,416) {19,171)
Crthers (13 (12}
Subtonl (129,021) {121,117}
Met intersst income 104,772 99,5435

Mom:
[11] Intereat incoma from Impaired Anancid swts & FABITS millon for the yesr ended 31 Decambaer 2018 (317 FAB&4Y millan].
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7  Net fee and commission income
Year ended 31 December

201E 2017
Fee and commission faco mer
Bank card fees 31,656 30,433
Guarantee and advisory fees 5613 6,338
Agency Fees and commision (Mote (1)) 4,839 4,534
Commission for custodian business and other fiduclary B, 0 B.737
Settlement and clearance fees 1,069 1.215
Orthers 318 as0
Tatal 50,739 51687
Fee and commission expense (5.591) (4,829)
Mt fee and commission income 45, 148 46,858
Bai:
0 Agesey femsand p— 4 for ala ofbonds, fards and praduces, and p o i larsling

8  Net trading gain
Year ended 31 December

Z01E 2017
Drebst securities and certificates of interbank deposic 3897 2,187
Fn:ndzn currencies 1,983 1,564
Drerivatives and related exposures 552 2,131
Financial instrument designated at fair value through profic or loss a7 Gl
Total 6,519 6,583

9  Net gain from investment securities
Year ended 31 December

1B 2017

Financial investments
— at fair value 'ﬂ!mud:. pmcﬁr ar loss T.T45 —
— at amortissd cost (1,4 16) —
— at fair value 'ﬂ!mud:. ather mmp:mhgnllw Income (494 —
Revaluation loss on transfer out of equity at disposal (262) —
Mt gain from sale of available—for—sale securties — 1,221
Met gain from bills rediscounting 13 (5
Mt gain from securitisation of financial assecs 3,181 2,622
Drthers 158 (81}
Total 9,046 3,737
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10 Net hedging (loss)/gain
Year ended 31 December
018 2017
Met (loss)/gain of fair value hedge (1) 1

11 Operating expenses
¥ear ended 31 December

2018 2017
Staff costs
— mllaries and bonusss 221960 20,280
— welfare EXpenses 1,408y 1,121
— social insurance 1,469 1.324
— housing fund 1, 300 1.291
— labour union expenses and employes education expenses 416 378
— housing allowance 196 4497
— other short-term benefits 11 48
— pnt—ﬁnpbaym-eut benefits — defined contribution pl:u:u 2,453 2377
— pos-employment benefis — defined benefic plans 102 11
— aother ]Dng—ten:n benefits [ &89
Subtotal 19,599 7T ALG
Property and equipment expenses
— rent and property management expenses 4,972 4,899
— depreciation 1,830 1.818
— amortisation expenses 1,112 993
— electronic equipment operating expenses 458 524
— maintenance 485 498
— others 398 a7z
e 9,255 9,104
Tax and surcharges 1,699 1 J5iE0
Crther general openting and administrative expenses (Mote (1)) 12,047 10,733
Total 52,600 48913
Hiorm:
i Incladed In niber genesl apsting snd adninissiie epeams wers aodls fas of BMBN millicn for the e andsd 31 Dacerabar 201E (2017: AMBLL

smillien] and reen-mdic fear of RAMBZ] millian fer che year ended 31 Decenber 2018 (2017: RMEB12 milllea).
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{a) Individuals with highest emoluments

For the pear ended 31 December 2018
{Amomrty in millions of Renminbl onles othermwise sated)

Far the year ended 31 Dlecember 2018, of the 5 individuals with H:n:]:ﬂd:.ﬂ't emoluments in the 'Gmp, there
was Ao director (20171 MHil) and no supervisor (20171 Mil). The aggregate of the emoluments before individual
income tax In respect of the Ave highest pald individuals of the Group were as follows:

Year ended 31 December

0186 2017
FMB 0 EME 000

Basic salaries, ]:.-u'u.l'l.u.g allewances, other allowances
and benefits in kind 20,089 21,235
Discretionary bonuses 16,452 19,789
Contrbution to pension scheme 1,438 1418
Total 3979 42 442

The emoluments before individual income tax of the five individuals of the Group with the highest emoluments

are within the following bands:

Year ended 31 Dlecember

2018 2017
EMES,000,001 — EME 10,000,000 3 4
FME 10,000,001 — RMB15,000,000 2 1

Mo inducement fee and compensation for loss of office was paid to the five highest paid individuals for the year

ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Mil).

12 Impairment losses on assets

31 December

2017

Loans and advances to customers 50,170
Dreposits with banks and non-bank financial institutions (32)
Interest receivables 4212
Awailable-for-sale Ainancial assets (]
Held-to-maturity investments (2
Investments classified as receivables 1,018
Rq:u:ulul:d assets 272
Off-balance sheet items (77
Dithers 295
Subtotal 5.617
Total 55.787
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13 Credit impairment losses

31 Diecember

018

Dleposits with banks and non-bank financial institutions 11
Placements with and loans to banks and non-bank financial institutions (1)
Financial assets held wnder resale agreements (33
Interest receivables 3034
Loans and advances to customers 47,753

Financial immestments
— ar amotised cost 999
— at fair value through other comprehensive income 75
Dither aseetsfinancial ass=ts 6,098
O balance sheet ttems (500
Total 57,886
14 Impairment losses on other assets

31 Decemaber

2018

Crther assets-repossessed assets 347

15 Income tax

{a) Recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Year ended 31 December

Mate 2018 2017

Current tax
— Mainland China 12,680 15,249
— Hong Kong 561 487
— Ohwverseas 46 104
Dieferred tax 35(c) (4,337 (6,442)
Total 8,950 9398

Mainland China and Hong Kong income tax have been provided at the rate of 25% and 16.5% respectively.
Ohverseas tax has been provided at the rates of taxation prevailing in the regions in which the Group operates
respecthvely.

(b} Reconciliation between income tax expensc and accounting profit

Year ended 31 December

2018 2007
Profit before tax 54,326 52276
Income tax calculated at PRC statutory tax rare 13,581 13,068
Effect of different tax rates in other regions (2886) (325)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses T4 259
Tax effect of non-taxable income
— interest income arsing from PRC government
bonds and local government bonds {3353 {3.097)
— the dividends of fands (1,209 (301)
— athen (57 (207)
Tatal 8,950 9.398
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Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Year ended 31 December

Z01E 2017

[tems that will ot be reclassified subsequently w profit of loss
Changes on the measurement of defined benefit plans, net of tax

— net changes recognised during the year before tax 9 {11}

— income tax (2) ]
Fair value changes on fimancial asset designated ar fair walue

through other comprehensive income, net of tax

— net changes in fair value ecognised during the year before tax 15 —

— income tax (4] —
Transfer from cwner-occupied property to investment property

— net changes during the year before tax [ —
Subtotal 83 i8)
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently o profit o loss
Dther comprehenstve income transferable to profit or loss

under equity method

— net changes durng the year (1) —
Dther comprehensive income of avallable-for-sale financial assets

— net changes in hir value recognised during the year —_ {10.877)

— net amount transferred to profit or los — 149

— income tax —_ 2,686
Fair value I'J:.n.n.Eﬂ on financial assets at fair value I:hmu.zh

other comprehensive income, net of wx (Mote (1))

— net changes durng the year before tax 13, 300 —

— net amount transferred to profit or los 149 —

— Income tax (3, 40) =
Credit impairment allowance on financial assets at fair value

through other comprehensive income (Mote (i)}

— net changes during the year 173 —

— Income tax (33 —
Exchange differences on translation 2,209 (2.583)
Share of sther comprehensive income of associares

and jolnt wentures — =)
Subtotal 12,379 (10,634)
Other comptehensive lncome, het of tax 121,462 (10,542)

Bt
i Fair valua changer an firancial s a filr vabis diraggh stber comprebenshos inennes inchids thom of Anarctal and Jaurn ard. schvarsces 1n

cunomen u fr vales cheoogh cthar camprshansh coma (Ham 23]l

] Cradit impalrmene alosncs inclods Anandal nvenmeres and losns snd sdvances 2 cunorer st fur ralus ehecugh cdhr compreberabva incnme Hees
Baial].
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17 Earnings per share
Earnings per share information for the year ended 31 Diecember 2018 and 2017 is computed by dividing the profit for
the year attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the weighted average number of shares in issue during
the year.

The Bank issusd non-cumulatire preference shares during the year ended 31 Diecember 2016, under the terms and
conditlons as detailed in More 49. The Bank declared and paid cash dividends of RMB1,330 million of non-cumulative
preference shares for the year of 2018 (2017: 1,330 million).

The comversion feature of preference shares is considered to Gl within contingently issuable ordinary shares. The
triggering events of conversion did not oocur as at 31 December 2018, therefore the comversion feature of preference
shares has no effect on the basic and dilated sarnings per share calculation.

Year ended 31 December

2018 2017

Profit for the year attributable to equity halders of the Bank 44,513 42 566

Less: dividend attributable to preference shareholders of the Bank 1,330 1,330

Profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank 43,183 41,236

Weighted awerage number of shares (in million shares) 48,935 48,933

Basic and diluted earnings per share (in RMBE) 0.88 0.84

18 Cash and balances with central banks

31 December 31 December

Motes 018 017

Cash 6,188 6,740
Balances with central banks

— statutory deposic reserve funds i) 39T 462,743

— surplus deposit reserve funds (i) 128,424 80288

— fiscal deposics (i) 2,816 4,083

— foreign exchange reserve {iv) 1,288 5446

Accrued interest 195 —

Total 538,708 568,300

Mome

1] Tha Growp places stumiory depedle coars Fands with che Peapl's Bank of China {"FECC™) and cvacmas cmoral banks whare & bu cpaniom. Tha
mexcurary depoak rmrva funds see nec wvallable For ase o che Groep's duly budoen

s gi 31 Decamnber 214, che sizivinn deposc rmrvas fands ploced with the PEOC war calculeed o 138 fan o 31 Dscamber 2017 18K] of digible

R bi depcatiz Far 4 E har of the Bank and xi 12% {m o 3] December 217 199} of «lglhle Ranminhi depeatiz from cvarmas Anancil
drattiniicns. The Bank was abo mequiced 1o deposis an smamc s qubabine ca 36 (anxc 31 Decamber 17 S8 of 1 fnign cammcy depeatin fron
4 bramch u v daparc mmrva fands.

An xt 31 Dwcamber Z01E, the sacarory FME depeatt cessrvs rusn applicshla ca Thejlang Uin'an CITIC Rurd Bank Carpecntien Limited in mainlard
China, 2 mbridiary of the Group, war s 9% (e o 31 Dacembar 2017 9%,

The amasnes af sewacary depais e fands placed with the contral banks of 1 by 1 The
epralt e Fands ars tneres wwmmwmmma‘m#ﬂwﬁh FROC.

il The sarplor dapase errrs Fnds are matriaired sith the FEOC fr the purpeser of claring.

E

Ficul depeaier plucedd with the FEOC am nec svxilabls for ws in the Groep's duly cpendom, and s nan-inceme bearing.

M The Farsign sxchange resea i muincaned with the PEOC i aczcedancs wich the relasd natlcs tmaed by che FROC oo 31 Asgert 2015, Tha caservs 1s
payshh oo 3 mondhly baris ac 209 of the cocal conenct amcant of sustoman drtvn Farward manssctizar n the predous nonch, Swh fanign aschngs
rumarva Ix naninomas basing wnd wil be epayable i 12 menths sceoeding 1o the Moticr. In amoedancs wiih tha relevane nodcs lamed by che FBOC
en 8 Segrmhar 2017, cha Group adjurmed the forsign schangs sk s rada regquired £1 domentic fnnctal inntiions for fowerd Farlgn schngs

businem 1o 0% fran. 11 Sspeambac 2017, The Geoup's ensning foedgn sxchangs cirk conrv will b pradually mlssed afar the sxpindon aof the leog-
‘tarm. madw of fomign sxchange on behak of clam.
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19 Depaosits with banks and non-bank financial institutions

{a) Analysed by types and locations of counterparties

31 Deecember 31 December
Mate 016 2017
In Mainland China
— banks 44,318 73.832
— non-bank financial institutions 21,028 17.557
Subtotal 6536 91389
Ouiside Mainland China
— banks 31,984 26,187
— non-bank financial institutions 1,783 6,774
Subtotal 33,767 32,961
Accrued interest 114 —
Gross balance Fn2i7 124,350
Less: Allowances for impairment losses 37 (74) —
Net balance 9,153 124,350
i(b) Analysed by remaining marurity
31 December 31 Diecember
Mate 016 2017
Dlemand deposits (Mote (1)) 65,023 67,370
Time deposits with remaining maturlcy
— within ocne month 21,256 45.629
— betwesn one month and one year 11,834 11,351
Subtotal 34,090 56,980
Accrued interest 114 —
Gross balance 99,227 124,350
Less: Allowances for impairment losses a7 (74) —
Net balance 99,153 124,350
Boca:

o 4a 3¢ 31 Dacerber B, cha camping amasnt af pledged dipeatts with banks and ather financlal inntouiors wa RMB1,343 milion (s o 31
Diacernber B117; RME1,676 millicn]. Thas degasits wers matnky margln with & reguluiery body.
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20 Placements with and loans to banks and non-bank fimancial institutions

{a) Analysed by types and locations of counterparties

31 Decetnber 31 December
Mote 018 2017
In Mainland China

— banks 13,680 15,320
— non-bank financial institutions 113351 1190685
Subtotal 127,031 134,385

Outside Mainland China
— banks 48,421 37585
— non-bank financial institutions — —
Subtotal 48,421 37583
Accrued intersst B73 =
Gross balance 176,325 172070
Less: Allowances for impalrment losses a7 (165) (1)
Met balance 176,160 17 2,069

ib) Analysed by remaining maturity
31 December 31 December
Mote 2018 2017
Within one month 112,284 65,554
Berween one month and cne year 63,168 105,506
Accrued interest B73 —
Gross balance 176,325 172070
Less: Allowances for impalrment losses a7 (165) (1
Met balance 176,160 17 2,069
21 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

31 December
Motes 2017

Held for trading financial assets
— debt securities {a) AB.728
— certificates of interbank deposit I 19,400
— investment Funds 2001
Substoital 50,129
Financial assets designated at fair value through profic or loss = 5775
Total 65904
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21 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
(a) Held for wading — debt securities

31 December
2017
[aramd by
In Mainland China
— governments 703
— policy banks 4,039
— banks and non-bank financial insticutions 2,722
— corporates 30,008
Subtoral 37564
Ouiside Mainland China
— banks and non-bank financial insticutions 1,063
— COIparates 101
Subtoral 1164
Toal 38,728
Listed in Hong Kong B5E
Listed ouwside Hong Kong 36,7BB
Unliseed 1272
Toal 38,728
(b) Held for wading — certificates of interbank deposit
31 December
2017
Tasued by
Banks in Mainland China 19,400
Listed autside HD.I.E Kung 19,400
ic) Financial asscts designated at fair value through profit or loss
31 December
2017
Tasued by
In Mainland China
— banks GG
— policy banks 33
—_— m Z,m
Subtoral 3182
Dhurside Mainland China
— banks 2,593
Toral 3,773
Listed outside Hong Kong 639
Unlisted 5,116
Total 3773

Diebt securities traded on the China Domestic Inter-bank Bond Market are included in “Listed cutside Hang
Kong™.
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22 Derivatives

Deerivatives include forward, swap and option transactions undertaken by the Group in foreign exchange, precious
metals, interest rate and credit derbvatives related to trading. asset and liability management and customer initiared
transactions. The Group, through the opertions of its branch network, acts as an intermediary for o wide mange of
customers for structuring deals to offer risk management solutions to maich individual customer needs. These positions
are actively managed through hedging transactions with external parties to ensure the Group’s net exposures are within
acceptable risk levels. The Group also uses these derbvatives for proprietary trading purposes and to manage its own asset
and liability and structural positions. Derivatiwes, except for those which are designated as hedging instruments (Mote
22(c)), are held for trading. Derivatives classified as held for trading are for trading and customer initiated transactions
purpose, and those for fsk management purposes but do not meet the criveria for hedge accounting.

The contractual/notional amounts of derbrathres provide a basis for comparison with fair values of detbvaties recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of futare cash Aows
involred ar the current Bir values of the derlvatives and, therefore, do mot indicare the Gmu.g‘: Exposure to credit or

market risks.
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Nomlnal Nominal
amouwht Assets Liabilitles amount Aszers Liabilities
Hedping insruments {(Mote 22{c))
— inberest rate derivatives 8,385 13 8 9,799 123 18
MNon-Hedging instrumenis
— interest rate derivatives LEB37.247 6,000 5,966 1,632,189 2430 2,294
— currency derivatives 2595674 24,826 24,501 3.547,855 62,030 62,368
— precious meml derivarives 58644 1,048 L1170 51,586 BEE 257
— credic derivatives B0 11 1 = — =
Tatal 4,500,770 31591 &6 S 429 63,451 64,9357

{a) MNominal amount ana]ysn:l 1:-}' remaining maturity

31 December 31 December

018 2017

Within thres months 1,921, 744 1,B68.273
Berween three months and one year 1,033,875 2,751,469
Berween one year and Five years 542,276 418881
Oheer Five FeELrs 2,875 2806
Tatal 4,500,770 5041429

(b} Credit risk weighted amounts

The credit risk weighted amount has been computed in accordance with the Regulation Governing Capital of
Commercial Banks (Provisional) promulgated by the CBIRC in the year of 2012, and depends on the status of
the counterparties and the maturity charactedstics of the Instraments, including those customer-driven back-to-
back transactions. As ar 31 Dlecember 2018, the total amount of credit risk weighted amount for counterparty
was RMB20, 158 million l::nl at 31 December 2017: RMB70,217 mlﬂinn}.

{c) Fair value h:dgc

A subsidiary of the Group utilises falr value hedge to diminate the effect of fair value changes of financial assets
and financial liabilities caused by market interest rate Auctuations. Interest rate swap contracts are used for
hedging interest risks arising from debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive income, availabl
for-sale debi secudties, certificates of dq:!mit and subordinated bonds issued.
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23 Financial assets held under resale agreements

{a) Analysed by types and locations of counterparties

31 Deecember 31 December
Mote Z01E 2017
In Mainland China

— banks 3,402 28417
— non-bank financial institutions 428 26,200
Subtotal G830 54,626

Ouiside Mainland China
— banks 958 —
Accrued intepsst [ —
Gross balance 10, 794 54,626
Less: Allowance for impalrment losses 37 4) —
Net balance 10790 54626

(b Ani]}'sr.d by types of collateral

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the collateral type of financial asset under resale agreements
of the Group are all debt instruments. The collateral received by the Group in resale transactions are disclosed
in Mote 58 Collatenl.

ic) Analysed by remaining marurity
As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the financial assets held under resale agreements of the Group

all mature within one month.

24  Interest receivables

31 Decamber

Mote 2017

Loans and advances to customers 13,543
Drebst securities 11,138
Investments classified as receivables 9,508
Orthers 2400
Gross balance 36,389
Less: Allowance for impairment losses a7 t}_’;,ﬁléﬁﬁ
Met balance 32643

The accrued interests or Interest recetvables of 2018 derived from respective financial assets are disclosed in Mote 18,
Mote 19, Mote 20, Mote 23, Mote 25 and Maote 28 to conform the presentation in current year.
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25 Loans and advances to customers

fa) Analysed by nature

31 December
Motes 2018
Loans and advances to customers at amortised cost
Corporate loans and advances
— loans 1,833,171
— discounted bills 146,414
— finance lease receivables 47,817
Subtotal 2,027,402
Personal loans and advances
— residential mortgages G4 3,407
— credit cards £472 403
— pulnnnl consumption 3,853
— business loans 194,737
Subtotal 1,484,490
Accrued intersst 8,338
Gross balance 3520,230
Less: Allowances impairment losses a7 {101, 1000
Loans and advances to customers at amortised cost, met 3,419,130
Loans and advances to customers at fair value H:.mu.z]:.
other comprehensive income
— loans 137
— discounted bills 96,383
Carrying amount of loans and advances at fair value through
ather mmp.mh:mh": imcome 96,520
— fair value changes through comprehensive income X1
Tatal 3.515,650
Allowances for impairment losses on loans and advances to
customers ar fair valae I:h.mua]:. ather mmprd:.endu incorme a7 {132}
31 December
Noie w1y
Corporate loans
— loans 1,812,589
— discounted bills 107 456
— finance lease receivables 45258
Subtotal 1,963,303
Personal loans
— residential mortgages 305,305
— credit cards 333719
— personal consumption 226,545
— business loans 166015
Subtotal 1,231.584
Gross balance 3,196,887
Less: Allowances for impairment losses ar
— ind&v‘]dunﬂ}r assmsged I:ZE,EJEI:I
— collectively assessed (61,9731
Subtotal (90,903)
Met balance 3,105,984
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25 Loans and advances to customers (Contimed)

(b) Analysed by assessment method of allowance for impairment losses

31 Deeceimhber 2018
Stage three
loans and
advances as
a % of gross
Stage three total loahs
Stage one Stage two {Mote (1)) Total and advances
Gross loans and advances to
customers at amortised coses 3.353.519 92,949 65414 351,892 LEL%:
Accrued interest 7.592 727 19 8338
Less: Allowance for impairment
lovees (31,9400 (22,7R8) (46,372 (101,100)
Carrying amount of loans and
advances to customers
meanared ar Amortised cost 3,319,181 70 BBE 19,061 3419, 130
Carrying amount of loans
and advances o customers
at fair value through other
comprebensive income 96,520 — — 96,520
Total 3425701 70.BBE 19,061 3,515,650
Allowances for impairment losses
on loans and wdwances to
customers at fair vahue throogh
other comprebensive income (132) — — (132)
31 December 2017
Identified impaired loans Gross
Loans and and advances impatred
advances for for which loans and
which for which  allowance is advances as
allowance  allowance is  indbvidually a H of gross
is collectively caollecthvely assessed total loans
assessed assessed (Mote (H)) Total and advances
Gross balance 3,143,239 11,393 42,2535 3,196,887 1.58%:
Less: Allowance for
impairment losses (52.997) (B.97E) (28,930) (20,903)
Net balance 3,090,243 2,417 13,325 3,105,984
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25 Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(b) Analysed by assessment method of allowance for impairment losses | Continusd)

[1H] Siage 3 Jaars arw lawma and sdvance io casicman thet b iocamed coedl Impal o,

21 Ducembsar
2048
Secured partizn 7,548
Unmcund percicn 17,764
Croan halnos &5, 414
Allaveanzs for tmpumens Joue (4, FTT)
P balanca 10,042
Azt 31 Discanber J01E, tha F covared by pladge and collscersl hald o secared poriion ln MBS, 211 millica.
i Indteiduslh d emitfled. impaiced Loz
31 Dacerbar
miF
Secursd partizn 24360
Unmeurd percien L7304
Crear balncn 42284
Indra dual alk ar Lmy (2B A0y
B balanca 13324
A are 311 bar 1017, tha 3 covared by pladge wrd collseses] hald =F sscursd peetien 1n RATEED, 190 millea.
Tha Fuir valun af cellatrd wan d by g bamd oo cha Loteee el duding wvallably sxverrad val IF any, adjumad

by taking inea acccant the current cadlnelan exparimes o wall 1 marke dousion
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25 Loans and advances to customers (Contimed)

ic) Owerdue loans analysed by overdue period
31 December 2015

Overdue Owerdae
Orerdue  between three betwesh one
within three  months and yeat and  Ohetdue over
months one yeat three yeats three years Total
Unsecursd loans 9,221 9,602 1,977 §93 21,293
Guarantesd loans 9,284 8,292 6,639 627 24,842
Loans with pledged
asests
— loans secured
by collateral 16,428 13,339 12,008 1367 44,142
— pledged loans 2,457 1959 1,752 114 6,282
Total 37:390 33,192 22,376 3,601 96,559
31 December 2017
Crverdue Ohverdue
Owerdue  berween three between one
within three months and year and  Ohwerdue over
months one year three years three years Total
Unsecured loans 6,739 7.624 TET 424 15,554
Guarantesd loans 8,543 9,741 8,814 1,466 28,564
Loans with pledged
assets
— loans secured
by collateral 14,168 13,614 11,B86 363 40,031
— pledged loans 3.502 2,201 1,620 142 7.375
Total 32,42 33.180 23.087 2,415 91,524

Ohwerdue loans represent loans of which the principal or interest are overdue one day or more.

{d) Finance lease receivables

Fimance lease recebvables tramsactions are attributable to the Group’s subsidiades, CITIC Financial Leasing
Limited ("CFLL"} and CITIC International Finance Heldings Limited (“CIFH™), include net imvestment in
machines and equipment leased to cusomers under finance lease and hire purchase contraces which have the
chancteristics of flnance leases, These contracts wsually run for an initial period from 1 to 25 years. The total
minimum finance lease recebvables under finance lease and hire purchase contraces and their present values are

as follows:
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Present value Present value
of mbhlmuim Mialtawim of minimam Minimum
finamce leases  flnance leases  Fnance leases  finance leases
recebrables recebrables recehrables receivables
Within one e f[ndu.d]u.g one f:n.r:l 11,B26 14,182 5,920 9,952
One year to two years
(including two years) 9,866 11,626 10,233 11371
Two years to three years
(including three years) 7.863 9,140 B 363 066
Ohver three years 18,2632 20,606 19,740 22,501
Gross balance 47817 35,554 43,238 32,890
Allowance for expected credit losses
— stage one (1,001) —_
— stage two (429) —
— stage three (1) —
— individually assessed — (1)
— collectively assessed — {1.003)
Net balance 5,287 44,254
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26 Financial investments

(a) Analysed by types

31 December
Noie 2018
Flhanclal assets at falr value through profit or loss
Investment funds 189,176
Diebit smcurities TL9Z0
— designated at fair value through profit or loss 52
Trust imvestment plans (Mote (1)) 26,486
Certificares of deposic 16,713
Wealth management products 116
Equity instraments 4,461
Met balance F08.ETZ
Flhanclal assets at amortised cost
Dbt securities FE16E8
Investment MEARaFeEment pmdm m.n.u.naad |:|:r
securities companies (More (i) 118,502
Trust imvestment plans (Mote (1)) 151,582
Certificares of deposic 11,406
Subeeial 773178
Accrued intepsst 8,430
Less: Allowance for impairment losses a7 {33700
Met balance 778,238
Flhanclal assets at falr value throngh other
comprehensive Income (Mote (1))
Dbt securities 91,015
Certificares of deposic 12,6544
Subtotal 503,659
Accrued intepsst [ Xt
Met balance 510,346
Allowances for impairment losses on Anancial investments at fair value
through other comprehenstve income a (1,039)
Flhanclal assets designated at falr value through
other mhpr:ﬁmllr: Income (Mote (1) 2,707
Tatal 1,304, 133

i) As of 31 December 2018, RMB99,095 million (31 December 2017: RMBE91.976 million) of Trust
imvestment plans and Investment management products managed by securities companies listed above
were managed by the subsidiaries and related companies of CITIC Corporation Limited, the Bank’s
immediate parent company.

The undedying assets of Trust investment plans and Imvestment management products managed by
securities companies primarily include credit assets, interbank assets and rediscounted bills (Moce 61 (a)

elif)).
(i}  Financial investmen ts at fair value throngh other comprebensive income

31 December 2018
Equity Debt securlty

Mote Instruments lhsthumehts Total

Costsl Amortised cost 2,630 498,130 040, TR0
Fair value change on accumulated into

ather mmpr\d:mlw Income 77 5529 5,506

Fair vahue 1,707 503,659 504,366

Allowance for impairment losses a7 (1,039) (1,039

244 China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
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26  Financial investments {Continued)

i(b) Analysed by location of counterparties
31 Decetalber
Mote 2018
In Mainland China
— Eovernments 475,246
— policy banks 122,411
— banks and non-bank franclal insticutions 400,793
— Corporates 126,144
Subtotal 1,124,594
Ouiside Mainland China
— FOVErnments 16,121
— banks and non-bank financial insticutions 433,910
— public entities 2,084
— corporates 11,707
Subtoral 463,822
Accrued intersst 15,117
Toal 1,603,533
Less: Impairment allowance for financial assets ar amotised cost a7 {33700
Met balance 1,600,163
Listed in Hong Kong 39,541
Listed autside Hun.g Kun.g 1,104,876
Unlisted 455,746
Toal 1,600,163
Bonds traded in China’s inter-bank bond market are listed cutside Hong Kong,
ic) Analysed by assessment method of allowance for impairment losses
31 December 2018
Notes Stape one Stage two  Stage three Tatal
Financial assets at amortlssd costs THE, 136 3,882 1,10 773178
Accrued intersst BAA22 &8 — 8,430
Less: Allowance for impalrment losses 37 (2,680) (152) (538) (33700
Met Balance 773,878 3738 622 778,238
Financlal assets at fair value ﬂn‘nrud:.
other comprehensive income 503,334 104 221 503,659
Accrued intersst GhEG 1 — G687
Net Balance 510,020 105 221 510,346
Total carrying amount of financial
assets affected by credic risk 1,283,698 3,843 B43 1,288,584
Allowance for impairment losses of
other debt instruments included
in other comprehensive income 727 (2) (310) (1,039

310/410
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27  Available-for-sale financial assets

31 December
Motes w17
Diebi secuditles {a) 469,843
Certificates of deposit (k) 40,947
E-q_tdl:y Investments 1,358
— measured at fair value (e} 744
— measured at cost (e} al2
Investment funds (d) 119518
Wealth management products 265
Total 631,690
{a) Debt sccuritics analysed by location of counterpartics
31 Decembear
2017
In Mainland China

— governments 243,368
— Pnl'l.qr banks TLIT1
— banks and non-bank financial instmrions a1 985
— corporates TE084
Subtotal 427 08

Dueside Mainland China
— governments 134635
— banks and non-bank financial instiutions 18535
— public entities 1,151
— corporates 8914
Subtotal 42,235
Tatal 469,843
Listed in Hnn.g I':nn.g 23 590
Listed cutside Hong Kong 429,760
Unlisted 16484
Tatal 469,843

(b} Certificates of deposit analysed by location of counterparties
31 Diecember
w7y
In Mainland China

— banks 38,391
— policy banks 1436

Cutside Mainland China
— banks 1,120
Tatal 40947
Listed outside Hnn.g Knn.g 4U,'_'i|4?'

245 China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

311/410



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

Chapter 10 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear ended 31 December 2018
{Amomrty in millions of Renminbl onles othermwise sated)

27 Available-for-sale financial assets (Continned)

ic) Equity investments analysed by location of counterparties

31 December
2017
In Mainland China

— COrporates w27

Chutside Mainland China
— banks and non-bank financial institutions 145
— corporates 284
Total 1,356
Listed in Hong Kong 284
Listed outside Hong Kong T
Unlisted 1,002
Total 1,356

id) Investment funds analysed by location of counterparrtics
31 December
2017
In Mainland China

— banks and non-bank franclal insticutions 118,925

Chutside Mainland China
— banks and non-bank financial institutions 263
— COCperates 330
Total 119,518
Listed autside Hun.g Kun.g 118,025
Unlisted 393
Total 119,518

Diebt securities traded on the China Diomestic Inter-bank Bond Market are included in “Listed outside Hang
Kong™.
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28 Held-to-marturity investments

Debt securities analysed by location of counterparties

31 December
Note 2017
In Mainland China

— FOoVEITUmEnts 55,105
— policy banks 54,246
— hanks and non-bank financial institutions EE,'.I".I"‘i
— carporates 18,133
Subtotal 216,258

Crutside Mainland China
— hanks and non-bank financial institutions 325
— public entities 3
Subtotal 328
Gros balance 216,586
Less: Allowance for Impairment losses ar —
Total 216586
Listed in Hnug Knu.g 273
Listed outside Hong Kong 209985
Unlisted 5,328
Total 216586
Fair value 212530
O which: listed securities 206,202

Diebt securitles traded on the China Domestic Inter-bank Bond Market are included in “Listed cutside Hong Kong™.

29 Investments classified as receivables

31 December

Noite w1y

Investment management products managed by securities companies 268,247
Wealth management products 139,020
Trust investment plans 126,794
Gross balance 534081

Less: Allowance for impairment losses a7 f!,ﬂ‘ij]
Met balance 531,118

The undedying assets of investments classified as receivables primarily include interbank assets and wealth management
produces issued by other banks, credit assets and rediscounted bills (Mote &1 (a){wiil) ).

30 Investments in associates and joint ventures

31 December A1 December

Hote 2018 2017

Investments in joint ventures (a) 1,759 1,196
Investments in associates (k) 1,122 1,145
Total 3,881 2,341

248 China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

313/410



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

Chapter 10 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear ended 31 December 2018
{Amomrty in millions of Renminbl onles othermwise sated)

30 Investments in associates and joint ventures (Comtinued)

{a) Investment in joint ventures
The details of I:b.:jcdnl: ventures as ai 31 December 2018 wers as Follows:

Fatin of Effect e Noinlnal value

businem Place of percentipe Princlpal of lssusd

Nuime of compaiy sthicture lucotpohithon of shates  acthrites shates

CITIC aiBak Carpaadea Limieed  Carporatian Mainknd China 70.0%  Financid services RMEB4.0 billion

[PCITIC Bazin®) (Noee )
JSC Altyn Bank (Mate [i]) Carporatian Kazakhan §0.1%  Financid services KZT7.05 billien
Moo

m CITIC Batzin apsnad an 1E Novembar 2017 wick inftial capiial af AMB2 billion. Assseding 1o cha Arnich of Amactaticn, the Bank and Fujian
BBl Marweek Tachnalogy Co, Lid, [*Fuflan BeBial™) ol jotnihy sppecvm majer 4 ! har devaln Approved by the CBIRC,

capiial Increass of C1TIC Balxin s completed In 2018, which thae Beck conidbuied RME 14 billian foc sohecripdan of 1.4 Hlbea thares, and
Fujinn BaRul conmiboted RMEDLS bllica for mbecripticn of 0.6 Bileo thae Afwr capital Incresss, thair prapardan of shamhol ding remsing

tha ssma.

L 1] Tha bank compheted 90.1% share acquisttion of J5C Alyn Baok in 318 Acceeding o che Ardclen of Asnmcician, the Back and che cehar
sharshoker, che Muiena Bank of Kazskborn, shall jototly appeeve mujar decidom befare focher developrome

Financial statements of the joint ventures are as follows:

As at of for the yeat ended 2018

Total Total Total Operating Met
Name of E.td:p.l‘ll: assets liabilites et assets lcome gl.l.l.ufﬂn-:l
CITIC Baixin 35,924 3r701 3223 1,295 (484)
J5C Algrn Bank 7. 928 7:191 T 349 195

Mnrnrﬁ:rﬂa.:ymrznddlﬂl?

Total Total Total Crperating
Name of Enterprise assets liakilities net assers Income Met loss
CITIC Baixin 9,970 B.262 L708 30 [291)

Movement of the Group’s interests in the joint venture:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

016 2017

Initial investment cost 3,229 1400
Asat 1 January 1, 196 -
Addiricns 1,829 1,400
Share of net loss of the joint ventures for the year (274) (204)
Exchange difference B —
As at 31 December 5,759 1,196
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30 Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

(b} Investment in associates

The Group holds its investment in asseciates through subsidares and details of the associates as at 31 December
2018 was as follows:

Effective

[pelventage
of shares Nom Il
Fotm of abd voting walne
basines Pace of tight held  Princlpd of lmusd
Nume of coinpany sthictufe Incotpofatin br the Gronp  activites dupes
OTIC [rematiand Aseets Manapemene Carpeeaian~ Heoap Bang 46%  [nvesmenc helding HED221% milica

Limieed [*CIAMT) and amets namgement

Thoagn Finandal Servces Linited (ZAFS")  Corpocation Hoog Bang 2625  [nvesment holding HED,000 milliea
Bichai [Tinjin} Financial fssets Erchange Carpecation ~ Mainland Chira. 2% Services and imeriment: FMB300 milica

Company Limited {"BFAE")
Financial statements of the associates are as follow:

As at or for the yeat ended 2018

Total Total Total Opetating Net
Mame of Entetptise assers liabilteles netassets lhcome  profit(loss)
CIAM 1,631 149 1,482 (718) (7Ga)
ZAFS B84 — B84 5 5
BFAE 499 47 452 3 (300

As at or for the year ended 2017

Total Taral Total Operating
Mame of Enterprise assers liabilities netassets Income Metloss
CIAM 2412 236 2,176 181 (251)
BEAE 581 98 483 1 (14)

Movement of the Group's interasts in associates

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2018 w1y

Initial Imvestment cost 1,489 1,183

As at 1 January 1,145 1,111

Additions 306 190

Share of net loss of associates for the year (368) (81}
Share of other comprehensive income

of associates for the year {1 &

Diividend recebwed — (11}

Exchange difference 49 (72)

As at 31 December 1,122 1,145
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31 Investment in subsidiaries

31 Drecember 31 December
Motes 1B 2017
Investment in subsidiares
— CIFH (i 16,570 16,570
— CHCE (Hong Kong) Investment Limited
("CNCE Investment™) (i) L377 L5377
— Zhejlang Lin'an CITIC Rural Bank
Corporation Limited {"Lin’an Rural Bank™) L] 102 12
— CFLL {iv) 4, e 4,000
Tatal 21,249 22,249
Major subsidiaries of the Bank as at 31 December 2018 are as follows:
Particular %ol % af The
of the Isusl owhefshlp  owershlp bdd Groap's
Pl of and pald up Principal ditectly held by subsidiarles effecthve
Nume of enthy Incotponation caplial activitls by the Bank of the Bank Linbetest
CIEH {Wece () Heng Keng HELF, 503 milion.  Cammerdal banking and LD0% - Lo
ather finandial wrvices
[NCH [nvesment (Mo (i)]  Hong Koo HEDL, B9 milicn. ~ Lending mrvices w0 071% "I
Lin'an Fural Bank (Woee (ii))  Mainkd China AMBN0 milicn  Commerdal banking L% - 1%
CFLL (Mae (i) Mainknd China RMB4.000 miliax  Financial lease vperaticas LD0% - Lo
Hatar:
Ity CiFH &= haling company gl  and bandoy din Heog Eoag. 1o b pa chroagh Lo anhid | bankirg

wred ather fironcial srvicer. Tha Bank holds 1004 sharsbelding i CIFH. OFH halds 759 sharabaling in CITIC Bank Incamatiznal Limied [FCBE).

Il CHCH lovesiment wa frnded in Hang Kangin 1984, Haling s maney knding losncs imued by the Heng Esng Campany Regliry, C3CE Inveastment's
busiram scape dnciode cyplesd market Imaemaent, lacding and ceber relsed mevicn. Tha Beed: belds 900596 harebelding in CHICB and
CIFH belde cha g 0.7 1% sharsholding tn CHICE | Tha Bank =i by bmld 076N sharsholding in CHICB 1

0] Lin“sn Rarsl Bunk wa fourded in Thepang Provinos of Mainlad China in 3011 with s raglmmed caphal of FAB200 millon. [1r principal scthislan ara
commarcil banking rdaned busnomer. The Bank: bolds 8 1% of Lin"sn Roral Bank's shacen and vedng cighie.

liwd The Bank sytablished CFLL tn 2015 wich o replasred capiial of FAB4 Bllica. [ex princip ol burines sctbvition s Anandal besring. The Bank belds 10096
aof tix shacer and vedng cighir.
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32 Investment properties

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

Fair value as ai ljnnu.nqr 295 305
Change in fair value 35 30
Transfers ind{owt) 93 {18}
Exchange difference 20 (22}
Fair value as ar 31 December 443 295

Imvestment properties of the Group are buildings held by subsidiares and mainly located in Hong Kong and leased to

third parties through operating leases. There are active real estate markets where the investment properiies are located
and the Group is able to obrain market price and related information of similar properties, and therefore malkes
estimation about the fair value of the investment properties as at 31 Diecember 2018,

All investment properties of the Group were revalued at 31 December 2018 by an independent firm of surveyors,
Prudential Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limived, on an open market value basis. The fair value is in line with the definition
of “IFR.513 — Pair value measurement™ The revaluation surplus has been recognised in the profic or loss for the current

year. Prudential Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited has among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
with recent experience in the location and category of properties being valaed.

The investment properties of the Group are categorised into Level 3.

33 Property, plant and equipment

Computer
Consttuctlon equlpnent

Bulldings ln progress and othets Total
Cost or deemed cost:
As ar 1 January 2018 21,313 LO7E 11,018 33,409
Additions 1L,157 210 1,466 1,833
Dspasals (514 — (663) (L177)
Transfer cur (L02Z) — (1,041) (1,143)
Exchange differences 31 — 50 L 11
As ar 31 December 2018 11,885 1,288 1,839 34,012
Accumulated depreciation:
As ar 1 January 2018 (4:497) — (7,582 (12,07%)
Diepreciation charges (674 — (1,156 (1,B300
Transfer our 9 — 492 5001
DHsposals e —_ a10 B39
Exchange differences (1&) — (42) (58)
As ar 31 December 2018 (4,243) — (7.678) (12,627}
Met carrying value:
As ar 1 January 2018 16,816 1LO7E 3436 21,330
As ar 31 Diecember 2018 (Mote (i)) 16,936 1,288 3,161 21,385

252 China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
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33 Property, plant and equipment (Cantinued)

Computer
Construction equipment
Buildings in progress and others Total
Cost or deemed cost:
As at 1 January 2017 17.468 470 10,359 8297
Additions 3,933 08 BT 5418
Dispasals 47) — (130} (177)
Exchange difference (41) — (EE) (129)
As at 31 December 2017 21,313 14078 11,018 33,409
Accumulated depreciation:
As gt 1 January 2017 (3.949) — (B.514) (10.453)
Diepreciation charges (F68E) — {1,250) (1.818)
Drispasals —_ — 115 115
Exchange difference 20 — a7 BT
As at 31 Diecember 2017 i4.497) — (7.582) {12,079)
Met carrying value:
As at 1 January 2017 13,519 470 3,845 17,834
As at 31 December 2017 (Mote (1)) 16,816 1,078 3,436 21,330

Hatar:

0. As ;3] December 2013, the mpleration manfer procew of cartain buikdings scqsived bas nee bean complesed, and the ner ek raloe sEach buidings

was sppraztmaeay RME],078 millien (1a s 31 Dlscambar 2117: AMBE2 459 eilie). Tha Graup ballmer o gilate rag) [ p—
affars cha righes of the Greap o the lagsl mcssse 10 thes balldings.
34  Goodwill
31 December 31 Diecember
D18 2017
Asarl ]mu.u)r B4 914
Exchange difference 47 (55)
Az ot 31 December i} B9

Based on the result of impairment test, no impairment losses on goodwill were recognised as at 31 December 2018
{as at 31 December 2017: Mil).

35 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

31 Deecember 31 December

201E 2017

Dreferred tax assets 23,174 21,825
Dieberred tax liabilitles (1&) (&)
Met 23,158 21,817
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35 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (Continned)

(a) Analysed by nature and jurisdiction

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Deducilble/ Dreductiblel
(tazable) Deferted (tamabl=) Dreferred

tempotary tax assets/ temporang tax assets/
differences  (liabllitles) differences (liabilicies)

Dheferred tax assets

— allowance for impairment losses 95.710 23,729 58,409 17 060
— fair value adjustments 19, 94-4) (2.526) 12,357 3078
— employee retirement benefies
and salaries pnjn]:]: T AR 1.B57 248 1.562
— others 13E 114 402 125
Subtotal 93434 23,174 87.416 21,825
Dreferred tax liablicies
— fair value adjustments (B&) (18] (48] (8}
Met 93346 23,158 87,368 21817

(b} GFfsr.tting of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, the deferred tax assets/liabilities offser 'b}r the G:nup were RMBZ, 720 million {31
Diecember 2017: RMB 262 millicn).

(c) Movement of deferred tax

Employee

Ihetbbement
Allswrance for benefls Toal
Impalrment Falt value  and accrued deferred
lomes  adjustments staff cost Oithers tax
As at 31 December 2017 17060 3T 1,562 125 21,817
Charge in acoounting policy ] (2,588) - (16) 421
Recognised in profit or Joas 3633 404 198 1 4,337
Becognised in other comprebienive income — (3430) [K]] — (3433)
Exchange differences 16 2 — (3 15
As at 51 Deczmber 2018 13,729 (2.542) 1,857 114 13,158
As at 1 January 2017 13,165 {261} bl {939 12,686
Recognised in predit or Joas L] 45 5 1,060 G442
Recognised in other comprebensive income — 21586 ) — 1,689
Exchange differences (4 — = 4 =
As ai 31 December 2017 17,060 3070 1562 125 21,817

2.54 China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
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36 Other assets

31 Drecember 31 December
Motes ID1E 2017
Prepayments for properties and equipment {a) 10,833 10,521
Interest receivables (b} 2,205 —
Fes and commission recebrables 3,534 4740
Advanced payments and settlement accounts 2,356 2,030
Repossessed assets () 2,003 2,040
Prepayments for assets acquired for finance leases 1,679 1,546
Precious metal leasing 1,632 26,813
Prepaid rent 985 1,023
Leasehold improvements &71 1,315
Land use rights 993 1,024
Others idy 10,162 7282
Total 37,453 57.843
Matax
fx} Prey Jor prog wnal g e
Frig for proparties and squprment o iy p the Groep made Bar affics prumise baing canrtnucosd.
(1] Iurareat Browteabdne
Tl recairalbl cepoeris i fimm whick [ etk zoet ot collactmd it Hha rapertiog: duing st o cormmping ul Ex

leamr. Tha slowancs for bmpatmmane Joass In mladon 1o Inocant cecelvablo of the Groep e 4426 millien.

fed Rap curewed awern

31 Diecanber 31 Dcarnber

Pizean ME L7
—— 2420 1551
Ohibars 498 S1E
Greas bulance 2008 2,440
Lam: Allosrancs Far mpakmant lame o) 725 4D
M balance 2303 2040

As 2z 3 Decarbar 2014, the Greup iniendad iz dlspos ol of the repeamimed smaiz, and had no pl b eraneder ihe repousned ames Far cwn e 1
£t 31 Diacerchar 2017: Hill.

fall Dheinrrn

Cithare Include g boval In wmes, | I lagal cares fior lawepars, atber long-term defrred azpenses, sthar cecevabler, aiz.
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37 Movements of allowance for impairment losses

Tearendad 31 December 2013
Charge!
Asarl [revermal]  Wkeof Othen Asat
Nates Junwary  fottheyeat  tmosfer out Note(ll 31 Deceinbet
Allawance bar credit inpairnest lases
Diepanits with hak ard nan-tank Anencial insinuicos 19 0 n - i T4
Maceneans with and loans oo banks and
noa-hank Anarcial inscicndons n 185 i - 1 165
Finanrial asetr bl under remle azmamern 13 7 R3]} - - L]
Trterest veceivabbes 4,570 ¥ 3608) (4:376) -
Laans and advances oo costomens 5 7,905 4.7 (46.538] 512 101232
Finanrial invesmrenis ar amortised coat 2 3,044 b (el 16 AT
a fur vahee theoogh ather canprebensve income 0 T - 14 Laxg
Oleher asers - Anancial anets 1334 605 (L 182) 479 11479
O habioce sheet credic anets 45 457 (50 - 36 4543
Subeal 114,022 57885 152415 1913 122,406
Allawance far impainment losses o ocher ase
(Oicher amee: - pepossessed aneis 400 HT in (15) 75
Toul 400 HT (7 {15) k=]
Year exded 31 Decenbe 2017
Charpe!
batl [revermal] Write-afls Chibers LI
Nates January hrdeyar o o Woee ] Diecember
Diepasiis with bark and nan-bank Anencial insinsicas 19 L] [ — 2 =
Mareneaes with and loams oo banks and
noo-hank Anancial incindons 0 L] — — 1] L
Tieresi eceivable 4 3906 4,212 LR ] (153 16
Lisans and advarsces oo cosivme 25 75543 1m0 (35,691} 3EL hoho
InaibibleFar-sade Anancid ases n 162 (6] - 15 ™
Held-ta-maruricy invesmns b ] 1 [} = — —
Tervesimens classified as rerehables bl 1,756 L4 - L3 2,M1
Odheramen 1360 67 (1) u 2601
Total (Moe (i) LEYr a6t (4303 L] L0471
Mom:
i Ochars trclnds fng ofinerart oo impaired firancial s, reclusAradnn of e blen, and affect of evdhangs dIFs during the year.

(1] In addidan 1o the dlomwancs for tmpaimens ower abave, the Groap abs chaged Impatment Joame sgaine =f-balance shae e (e 1.
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38 Depaosits from banks and non-bank financial institutions
Analysed by types and locations of counterparties

31 Deecember 31 December
Z01E 2017
In Mainland China

— banks 206,427 170,801
— non-bank financial institutions 565,387 G11,011
Subtotal T7hB14 781.B12

Dutside Mainland China
— banks 4,242 16,142
— non-bank financial institutions 57 33
Subtotal 4,299 16,193
Accrued intepsst 4,151 —
Toral 782,264 798,007

39 Placements from banks and non-bank financial institutions
Analysed by types and locations of counterparties

31 December 31 December
Z01E 2017
In Mainland China
— banks 58,681 43,172
— non-bank financial institutions 47,239 28,733
Subtotal 105,920 71,903
Dueside Mainland China
— banks 9,197 5,600
Accrued intersst 241 —
Taoral 115358 77.505
40 Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements
{a) Ana.l}rsr.tl h}r type and location of counterpartics
31 Drecember 31 December
ID1E 2017
In Mainland China
— PBOMC 93,151 BE,063
— hbanks 25,911 46,321
— non-bank financial institutions 1, e _
Subtotal 120,062 134,384
Dhurside Mainland China
— banks 218 116
Subtotal 218 116
Accrued intepsst 35 =
Total 120,315 134,500
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40 Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements (Continued)
(b) Analysed by type of collateral

31 Decetnber 31 December

2018 2017

Dhiscounted bills 33,809 52415
Diebt securities 86,471 B2085
Accrued intersst 35 —
Tatal 120,315 134,500

The Group did not derecognise financial assets transferred as collateral in connection with financial assets sold
under repurchase agreements. As at 31 December 2018, non of the legal title of the collateral pledped disclosed
in Mote 98 has been transferred to counterparties.

41 Depaosits from customers
Analysed by nature:

31 Dacembar 31 Decembear
2018 2017
Diemand deposits

— Corporate CWSTOMErs 1,516,861 1,545,002
— pmnnﬂ] custormers FhHZ, 900 234 9a1
Subtotal 1,779,821 1,879.963

Time and call deposits
— COrporate ClWsiomers 1,382,230 1,223018
— pemsonal customers 449,549 208477
Substotal 1,831,779 1,521,495
Crutward remittance and remictance payables 4,823 5,178
Accrued interest 33,188 —
Tatal 3,649,611 3,407 536

Guarantece deposits included in above deposits:

31 Dacembar A1 Decembear
2018 2017
Bank acceptances 163,066 195,308
Guarantsss 21,757 24,941
Letters of credit a,F34 0,289
Chthers 109,627 108,830
Total 300,684 338,368
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42  Accrued staff costs

Year ended 31 December 2018
Additlons Payinents

As at duting duting Asoat

Notes 1 Jabuary the year the year 31 Decembet

Shoct-term mpln:r!: benefits [a.:l B8535 21660 (20,909 10,3805
Post-emnployment benefics

— defined contribution plins [13] ] 1453 (2,456) 31
Post-emnployment benefics

— defined benefic plans ) 4 102 {111} 35

Otther loop-term benefies 125 [ (34) a7

Taral B8535 25,211 (23.510) 10,549

Year ended 31 December 2017
Additions Payments

As at during during Asat

Mortes 1 January the year the year 31 December

Short-term employee benefits fa) B&T3 23,253 (23.291) 8,535
Post-employment benefics

— defined contribution plans (k) 32 2,377 (2.375) M
Past-employment benefits

— defined benefic plans (=] a5 11 2 44

Other long-term benefies 79 B (43) 123

Tol B.ALY 25,730 (25.711) H,838

{a) Short-term employee benefits

Year ended 31 December 2018
Additlons Payments

As at duting duting Asat

1 Jabuaky the year the year 31 Decembet

Salaries and bonuses 7553 17,818 {15.915) 0456

Social insurance 25 1469 (1.452) 45

Welfire expenses — 1,400 (1.398) 2

Housing fund 10 1,300 (1,302) B
Labour union expenses and employee

education expermes 955 416 (566) BOS

Housing allowance il 196 (217 54

Others 14 ] (59) L&

Toml 8835 22,660 (20.90%) 10,386

Year ended 31 December 2017
Additions Payments

As at during during Asar

1 January the year the year 31 December

Salaries and bonuses 7483 18,504 {18.524) 7,553

Social insurance 41 1,324 [1.34%) i}

Welfure expenses — 1,121 (1.121) —

Houwsing fund 13 1,201 {1,300 10
Labour union expenses and employee

education expermes 1,060 L] 4B3) 255

Housing allowance 48 407 (470} 75

Oichers 14 48 (48) 14

Torl BAT3 23,253 (23.291) B3

2018 Aneuel Report 259

324/410



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

Chapter 10 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear ended 31 December 2008
{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi pmless otharmise stated)

42  Accrued staff costs (Continued)

ib) Post-employment benefits — defined contribution plans

Past-employment benefits defined contribution plans include contributions to statutory retirement plan. Pursuant
to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC governing labor and soclal security, the Group joins statutory
retirement plan for the employees as set out by clty and provincial governments. The Group is required to
make contributions based on defined ratios of the salaries, bonuses and certain allowance of the employes o
the statutory retirement plan under the administration of the government.

In addition to the above statutory retirement plan, the Bank's qualifisd employees have joined a defined
contribution retirement scheme (the “Scheme™) which was established by the Group and managed by the CITIC
Group. For the year ended 31 December 2018, The Bank has made annuit: contributions at 5% (31 December
20017: 5%) of its employee’s gross wages. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Bank made annuicy
contribution amounting to RMB757 million (year ended 31 December 2017: RMB&62 million).

The Group operates a defined contribution provident fund and a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for Hong
Kong staff. Contdbutions are charged to profit or loss when the contribution fall due

(c) Post-employment benefits — defined benefit plans

The Group offers supplementary retirement benefits for certain of its qualified employeess in Mainland China.
Retired employees are eligible to join this supplementary retirement benefit plan. The amount that Is recognised
as at reporting date presents the discounted value of benefit obligation in the future

The Group’s obligations in respect of the supplementary retirement benefic plan as at the reporting date are
based on the projected unie credic actuarial cost method and compured by a qualified professional actuary firm
{a member of Society of Actuaries in the United States of A merica).
Save for the disclosed abowe, the Group has no other material obligation for payment of retirement benefits.
43 Taxes payable
31 December A1 December

260

2018 017

WAT and ru.l:rJ:.n.rgﬂ 3,342 4,175

Income tax 1,570 4 508

Orthers B 15

Total 4,920 8,858
44 Interest payable

31 Diecember

2017

Dreposits from customers 20097

E-arm'wlngl from central banks and dq:u:uill: from banks and non-bank financial institutions 7311

Drebt securities issued 3331

Orthers Ao

Total 39.323

The accrued interests of 2018 derived from respective financial liabilities are disclosed in Mote 38, Mote 39, Mote 40

Mate 41 and Mote 46 to conform the presentation in current year.

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
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45 Provisions
31 December 31 December

2018 2017
Allowance for impalrment losses on offbalance shest ltems 4,543 402
Litigation provisions 470 Ao
Total 5.01% 796

The movement of affbalance sheest allowance for impalrment losses is included in the Moo= 37,

Movement of provisions:

31 December 31 December

ID1E 2017
As at 1 January o 244
Accruals 20 152
Payments (144) =
As ot 31 December 470 Ao

46 Debt securities issued
31 December 31 December

Notes 2018 2017
Long-term debt sscurities issusd {al BO,20G 94,571
Subordinated bonds issued:
— by the Bank ik} 118,450 GBA44E
— by CBI {c) 5520 5280
Cerrificates of deposic lssusd id} 1,752 2,849
Certificares of interbank d.:puﬂr issued fe} 341,310 270,005
Accrued intersst 4,155 —
Total 552,463 441,244

ia) Long-term debt securitics issued by the Group as at 31 December 2018:
31 December 31 December

2018 . 11
Annual Nomilnal Mominal
Tneerest Value Value
Band Type Tssue Date Maruriry Drabe Rate BMEB RMB
Fied nie bond B November 2013 12 Movember 2015 j.20% — 15,00
Foed nie bond 17 Apeil 2007 17 April 2020 4.20% L0000 50,000
Faed nure bond 24 May 2017 24 Muy 2020 4.40% 1893 259
Foed nie bond 21 May 2015 75 May 2020 3.08% 7000 70
Fied nie bond 17 Norember 2015 17 November 2020 3.61% 8,000 &000
Fleating rate bond 14 Diecember 2017 14 Dlecember 2020 3.24% 4,814 4,555
Foed mce bond 14 Dieczmber 2017 14 Decembeer 2020 1.88% 1,063 145
Flearing rate hond 14 Diecember 2017 15 December 2022 3.34% 3.7E3 3,579
Fixed nre boand 14 Dlecember 2017 15 Decembser 2022 3.15% 1L,71% 14827
Total nominal value B3 706
Lesz: Unamaormised ismance
mst and dBcount (Ta) (5
Blimination of positicns
held by a subsidiary — 45
Carrying wlus 80,296 o571
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46 Debt securities issued (Caontinued)

(b) The carrying value of the Bank’s subordinated bonds issued as at 31 December:

31 Deceinber 31 December
Miotes 018 017
Subordinated fized rate bonds mataring:
— in May 2025 mn 11,500 11,500
— in Jupe 2027 () 19,983 19981
— In August 2024 {1it) 36,972 36967
— in September 2028 (i) 30,000 —
— in Qctober 2028 i) 19,995 —
Tatal 118,450 68448
Mann
w Tha iremer: ram on che mbordinaoed Azed row bends msed =n 28 My 2010 i 4.3% per wonom. Tha Bank bar an cptien 1o mdean the

bends e 3B May 2000, IF chey ars net cedssrmed, the Interes: raoe of the bonds wil ramain s 430K pe anrum for the et fhe e,

111} Tha ircarast rurm on cha sobordinared Axed rem bends lioed 20 11 June 2012 40 5.15% per wonom Tha Banle har an eption 1= redemm che
bends e 21 Jurs 2022, [F they ars noe redesmed, cha Intemat race of cha bonds will remain o 5.19% per annum fr the net Ave poc.

(101} Tha Inmerast rsea eo the sbsedingied fived com bonds doeed en 16 Aogon 2014 b0 6.13% par ancum. The Bank ba oo cpiien ca cedeer cha
bond en 26 Angon 2019, 1F chay s nec redsemad, tha toenee nuw aof the bonde will cenain .19 par aonom for the e five yman

[1/] Tha Inmrast cuin ea che ssberdinaied fized ruoe beads lansed an 13 Sspamber 2018 b 4£.96% par sonon. The Bank has mn aptien o mden
tha kanda en. 13 Sepamber F1ZY I they smencc mdesrned, dhe doimmos ruim of the bonds will remain. 4568 par annom dor the neaxc fvs pecs

[ Ths Inmrasi cxca oo the mubsrdingied fived raie bonds dmeed co 12 Ccraber 18 1 4. 86 par anoum. The Bank b an cpiion. o mdssm cha
beoad en 22 Ocrabar 223 [F they wrw not medssmed, the dnmres: cuin of the bords will remain 4. 5% per sonom for the e fiee poam

() The carrying valuc of CBI's subordinated bonds issued as at 31 Diecember:

31 December 31 Diecember
Moites 2018 2017
Subordinated fived rate notes maruring:
— in June 2020 (i 3,465 3.341
— in May 2024 (idy 1,055 1.939
Tatal 5,520 3.280
Natee
[1H] Subzrdinated rooe wich naninad valoe of VS5O0 million besr an Inmeree cscs <f & 87996 por annem wam loeed on 24 Jane 2010 by CBEL

puysbls mmk anrually. The oeem are liced on Singapare Exchange Securides Trading Limied.

[111] Subordinared maiee whh nomind velos of VS0 0 milban bear noecen ar o fieed covn of 6.00%W pr anourms waes med an 7 Novembar 2113
by CBI, payablas serl-snmally umitl 7 by 2019, and chereaforr Azsd ar the tneroe v of the prvaling fre-year US Treamry bands ol
phus 4.7LE% par snnum #f thae oo wre nee cedsemsd on the call daiw er any Inooet: peyment decs chacesfoar, Tha oo s dred on che Heap

Kong Stode Exchangs.

{d]  These certificates of deposit were issued by CBI with intersst rate ranging from 2.05% to 2.26% per annum.

(e]  As ar 31 December 2018, the Bank had issued certain certificates of interbank deposits, toraling REME341.310
millicn {as at 31 Diecember 2017: RMB270,096 million), with yield ranging from 2.80% to 4.86% (as at 31
Diecember 2017 4.00% to 5.35%) per annum. The original expiry terms are between one months to one year.
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47  Other liabilities

31 Drecember 31 December

Mote ID1E 2017

Pn.jrm.gnt and collection accounts 13,829 13.545%
Settlement and clearing accounts 11,010 5,667
Dieberred emoluments payable (i 9,162 6,306
Advances and deferred expenses 5,818 43278
Leasing deposits 1,579 1616
Precious metal contraces 1,383 4,872
Accrued expenses T41 BAG
Oihers 10,539 7.996
Total 54,061 43,916

Haim:

[1§] A o 3] Dacersber 20LA, the deformed smclument payabl snownod ca RMED, 1£2 milion (3] Decembar 1017: EMBS M6 miliea). This epremnt
duferred amal payabls o1 empleyess in raspact of serdcas provided cs che Geoup. Such amount will be dtiribated ascarding 1o plar.

48  Share capital

31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017

Numbet of shares MNominal Value
(milRons)
Ordinary shares
Registered, issued and fully paid:
A-Share 053 34053
H-Share 14,882 14,882
Total 48,935 48,935
31 Drecember 31 December
1B 2017
As at 1 January 48,935 48,535
Additions —_ —
As at 31 December 48,935 48,933
49 Preference shares
Fnanclal Issued  Twned nomber Tssued
Instmments Dibeldend e of shates  nomlnal value  Maruriey
In Issue rate (AME) (REMB millions) (RME millions) Dape Carrerslons
Preference shares A, B0 100 350 35000 No marurey dare Mo coorersion

35,000 million prcrzn:n.-:\e shares of BB 100 each were fssued in October 2018, with a dividend mate of 3.80% per
annum for the first fiwe years from issuance, to no more than 200 qualified investors, pusuant to the approval by s
ordinary shareholders® meeting and relevant regulatory authorities.

The carrying amount of preference shares, net of direct lssuance expenses, was EMB34.955 millions as ar 31 December
2018, All the proceeds recetved is used to replenish Other Tier-O'ne capital in order to increase the Bank’s Tier-Oine
capital adequacy ratio (Mote 62). Dividends are non-cumulative and where payable are paid annually. Divident rate
ar the time of issue 1s 3.8% per annum and will be re-priced every fiwe years thereafter with reference to the five-year
PR treasury bonds yield plus a fived premium of 1.30%.
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49 Preference shares (Continued)

As authorised by the ordinary shareholders’ Anmual General Meeting, the Board of Directors has the sole discretion
to declare and distribute dividends on preference shares. The Bank shall not distribute any dividends to its crdinary
shareholders before it declares such dividends to preference shareholders for the relevant peried. The distibution of
preference shares dividend is at the Bank's discretion and is non-cumulative. Preference shareholders are not entitled
to participate in the distribution of remined profits except for the dividends stated above.

The Bank has redemption option when specified conditions as stipulated in the offering documents of preference
shares are met, subject to regulatory approval, whereas preference shareholders have no dght to require the Bank to
redeem the preference shares.

Upon occurrence of the triggerng events as stipulated in pangraph 2(3) of the Guidance of the China Banking
Regulatory Commission on Commerdial Banks' Innovation on Capital Instruments (CBRC Mo, 56 [2012]) and subject
to regulatory approval, preference shares shall be mandatorily converted into ordinary A shares of the Bank at the
conversion price of RMB7.07 per share, partially or entirdy. The conversion price of the preference shares will be
adjusted where certain events occur including bonus issues, rights issue, capitalisation of reserves and new lssuances of
ordinary shares, subject to terms and formulae provided for in the offering documents, to maintain the relative interests
between pmﬁﬂznu sharehalders and mdl.u.n.qr sharehalders.

These preference shares are classified as equity instruments, and presented as equity in the consolidated statement
of fimancial position; and are qualified as Additional Tier-Chne Capital Instruments in accordance with the CBIRC
requirements.

Interests attriburable to equity Instruments’ holder:

31 December A1 December

018 2017

Toatal equity attribute to squity holders of the parent comparny 436,661 FE8002
Equity attribute to crdinary equity holders of the parent company 401,706 353047
Equity attribute to other equity holders of the parent company 4,955 34955
— Dividend paid 1,330 1,330

Por the year ended 31 Diecember 2018, the Bank pn.ld FME 1,330 million dividend to the pr:E:rcnn: sharehalders {:E:r
the year ended 31 December 2017: RMBL.330 million).

On 13 Diecember 2018, a private issuance of preference shares is approved the by the Board of DHrectoms. The issuance
of preference shares is with no more thar RMB40 billion in domestic market, the par value is RMB100 per share. On
30 January 2019, The issuance is approved in the sharcholder's meeting.

50 Capital reserves
31 Dacembar A1 Decembear

2018 w17
Share premium 58,896 SB.896
Crther resenves 81 &1
Toatal 58,977 38977

31 December 31 December

Movtes 2018 2017
As ar 1 Januaary 58,977 JBG3E
Contribution by pon-contralling shareholders 55 — 341
As ar 31 Dhecember 58,977 38977

4 China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
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Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income comprises ivems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss, such as net
changes on the measurement of defined benefit plan (Mote 42) and fair value changes on financial investments designared
at fair value through other comprebensive income, and items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss,
such as fair value changes on fnanclal assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, credit impalrment
allowance on Amancial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income and exchange differences on translation.

Surplus reserve

31 December 31 Dacamber

201E 2017

As at 1 January 0,24 27,263
Appropriations 4,20 3,920
As at 31 December 4,450 31183

Under the relevant PRC Laws, the Bank and the Bank’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are required to app mopriate 10%
of its profit for the year, as determined under regulations issued by the regulatory bodies of the PRC, to the statutory
surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registersd capital. After making the appropriation to the
statutory surplus reserve, the Bank may also appropriate its profic for the year to the discretio nary surplus resenve upon
approval by ordinary shareholdems at the Annual General Meeting. The Bank makes its appropriation on an annual basis.

Subject to the approval of ordinary shareholders, statutory surplus reserves may be used for replenishing accumulated
losses, if any, and may be converted into share capital , provided that the balance of statutory surplus reserve after such
capitalisation is not less than 25% of the registered capital before the process.

General reserve

oOoOooodn

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

As at 1 January 74,251 73.911
Appopriations & o
As at 31 December 74,255 74:251

Pursuant to relevant Ministry of Finance (*MOF”) notices, the Bank and the Group’s banking subsidiaries in Mainland
China are required to set aside a genermal reserve to cover potential losses against their assets. The Bank and the Group
malee its appropration on an annual basis. As at 31 December 2018, the General Reserve of the Bank has reached
1.5% of the ending balance of gross risk-bearing assets and thus no appropriations in the peneral reserve have been
made by the bank for the year end ar 31 December 2018.

Profit appropriations and retained earnings

ia) Profit appropriations and distributions other than dividends declared during the year

31 December 31 Diecember
Notes 201E 2017

Appropriations to
— surplus reserve 52 &, 20in 3920
— genenl reserve 53 4 i
As gt 31 December 210 4340

In accordance with the approval from the Board of Directors dated 26 March 2019, the Bank appropriated
EMB4.206 million to statutory surplus reserve fund for the year of 2018, General Reserve of the Bank has
reached 1.5% of the ending balance of gross rsk-bearing assets and thus no appopriations is required by the
Bank for the year of 2018. The Group’s subsidiary, Lin"an ruml bank, made appropriations to general reserve
in accordance with relevant regulatory requirements.
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54 Profit appropriations and retained eamings (Continued)

(b} In accordance with the resolution approved in the Annual General Mesting of the Bank on 25 May 2018, a
total amount of approsdmarey RME12,772 million (RMB2.61 per 10 shares) were distributed in the form of
cash dividend to the ordinary shareholders on 2 July 2018,

i) In accordance with the resclution n.ppn:nmd in the Anmual General Mﬂd.']ng of the Bank on 27 m 2018,
a total amount of approximately RMB1,330 million {calculated by the bank uwsing the agreed dividend rate of
3.8% with RMB3.80 per share) were distributed in the form of cash dividend to the preference shareholders
on 26 October 2018.

(dl  On 26 March 2019, the Board of Directors proposed a cash dividend of RMB2.30 per 10 shares in respect of
the year ended 31 Diecember 201 8. Subject to the approval of the ordinary shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting, approximately RMB11,255 million will ke payable to those on the register of crdinary shareholders as
at the relevant record date. This proposal is a non-adjusting event after the reporting period and has not been
recognised as liability as ar 31 December 2018,

(£)  As ar 31 Diecember 2018, the retained carnings included the statutory surplus reserves of certain subsidiaries of
BMBz00 mIJHnn{n at 31 December 2017: RMB141 mﬂlhn:l, of which BMBE56 million |:ﬂ.l at 31 December
2017: RMBE53 million) was the appropriation made by the subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2018,
Such starutory surplus reserves in the retained earnings cannot be distributed.

55 MNon-controlling interests

Mon-contrelling interests included ordinary shareholders held by non-controlling interest in subsidaries and other
equity instrument holders’ interests. As at 31 December 2018, other equity instrament holders” interest amounted
to RMB&,492 millon representing other equity instraments issued by CBI on 22 April 2014, 29 September 20165,
and & Movember 2018, an entity ultimately controlled by the Group. Such instruments are perpetual non-cumulathve
subordinated additional Tier- Ohne capital securities (the “Capital Securities™).

Financdal

Instruments Nominal First Payment

I bssme Issue Diate Value Call Date Coupon Rate Frequency
Capital 22 April UsD300 22 April  7.25% per anoum for the firse five years  Semi-annually
Securities 2014 millions 2019 afver issuance, and re-priced every Five

years to a mate equivalent to the Five

year US Treasury rate plas 5.627%

|per anmam
Capital 11 October USDS00 11 October  4.25% per anmum for the fiest five yeas  Semi-annually
Securities 2016 millicns 2021 afber issuance, and re-priced every Frve

years to a mate equivalent to the Five

year US Treasury rate plus 3.107%

|per anmam
Capital & Movember USDS500 & Movember  7.10% per annum for the first five yeas  Semiannually
Securities I0lE millicins 2023 after issuance, and re-priced every Ffve

years to a mate equivalent to the Five

year U5 Treasury rate plus 4.151 %

|Per anmum

CBI may, at its sole discretion, elect to cancel any payment of coupon, in whole or in part, or redeem Capital Securitles
in whole on the first call date and any subsequent coupon distribution date, where the holders of these Capital Securities
hanve no right to require CBI to redeem. These Capital Securities listed above are classified as other equity instruments.

A distrdbution payment of RMB289 million was paid to the holders of the Capital Securitles during the year ended
31 December 2018 (year ended 31 Diecember 2017: RMB220 million).

2565  China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
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55 MNon-controlling interests (Cantinued)
On 29 Seprember 2017, by the approval of the board of divectors, the Bank injected capital to CBI, the 100% cwned
subsidiary of CIFH which is a subsidiary of the Bank. CBI was the second tier wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank
before the capital injection. After the capital injection, CIFH holds 75% equity interests of CBIL

56 Motes to consolidated statement of cash flows
Cash and cash equivalents

31 December 31 December

2D1E 2017
&,1B6 6,740
Cash equivalents
— Surplus depasit reserve hands 126,423 B9.2EE
— Depasits with banks and non-bank financial institutions due
within three months when acquired BE 801 110,B98
— Placements with and loans to banks and non-bank financial
institutions due within three months when w:\q_'l.dmd 124,923 79078
— Investment securities due within three months when acquired 2T OTE 51,911
Subtotal 369,821 3311735
Total IT 00 337.915

57 Commitments and contingent liabilities

{a) Credit commitments

The Gmu.p’l credit commitments take the form of loan commitments, credit card commitments, financial
guarantees, letters of credit and bank acceprances.

Loan commitments and credit card commitments represent the undrawn amount of approved loans with signed
contracts and credic card limits. Financial guarantees and letters of credit represent guarantees provided by the
Group to guarantee the pedformance of customers to third parties. Bank acceptances comprise undertakings
by the Group to pay bills of exchange drawn on customers. The Group expects the majority acceptances to be
sevtled simultaneously with the reimbursement from the customers.

The contractual amounts of credit commitments by categores are set our below. The amounts disclosed in
respect of loan commitrments and credit card commitments assume that amounts are ﬁ.‘lﬂf drawm down. The
amounts of puarantees, letters of credit and acceptances represent the maximum potential loss that would be
recognised at the reporting date if counterparties failed to perform as contracted.

31 December 31 Dacamber

201E 2017
Contractual amount
Loan commitments
— with an ndﬁunl maturity within one year 4,521 14,9264
— with an original maturity of cne year or above 35.508 374
Subtotal 40,029 72,360
Guarantess 393.851 427,561
Letters of credic 434,590 310,315
Bank acceptances 158813 195,746
Credit card commitments o2 924 B8, 772
Total 1, 120,207 1,004,754
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57 Commitments and contingent liabilities (Continued)

(b) Credit commitments analysed by credit risk weighted amount

31 Deceinber 31 December
2018 2017

Credit risk weighted amount of credic commitments ITL529 351475

The credit risk welghted amount refers to the amount as computed in accordance with the rules set out by the
CBIRC and depends on the status of counterparties and the matarity characreristics. The risk welghting used
range from % to 1 50%.

{c) Ca]:lita] commitments

i} The Group had the following authorised capital commitments in respect of property, plant and equipment

ar the reporting date:
31 December A1 December
2018 2017
Far the purchase of property and equipment
Contracted for 5.356 7383

(i) On 13 December 2018, the Group announced and approved the establishment of a wealth management
subsidiary by the Board of Directors. The proposed registered capital of the subsidiary was no more than
EMES billion, which the bank hold all the shares. As at 31 December 2018, the matters are l1.|.|:|_|'e:l: o
the approval of rdevant regulatory authorities.

id) Operating lease commitments

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment under operating leases, which typically run for an initial
period from one to Fve years and may include an option to renew the leases when all terms are renegotiated.
As ar 31 December 2018, the Group’s future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
Within one year 3,489 2876
Afver one year but within two years 1,776 2892
Afrer two years but within three years 340 2306
Afver three years but within five years 3,063 3418
Afver Five years 1,266 2,122
Tatal 12,934 13,614

ie) Outstanding contingencies including litigation and disputes

The Group has assessed and has made provisions for any probable outflow of economic benefits in relation to
commitments and contingent labdlities at the reporting date in accordance with its accounting poliches inchuding
litigarion and disputes.

As ar 31 December 2018, the Group was Involved in certain potential and pending litigation as defendant with
gross claims of EMB271 million |:ﬂ.l at 31 Diecember 2017: RMBT4R mﬂﬂnnj. Based on the apinion af internal
and extemnal legal counsels, the Group had made litigation provisions of BMB220 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 {for the year ended 31 December 2017: RMEBE152 million) against these litigation (Mote
45). Such contingencies, including litization and disputes, will not have material impact on financial position
and operations of the Bank.
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57 Commitments and contingent liabilities (Continued)

ifi Bonds redemption obligations

As an underwriting agent of PRC treasury bonds, the Group has the responsibilicy to buy back those bonds
sold by it should the holders decide to sarly redeem the bonds held. The redemption price for the bonds at any
time before their maturity dates is based on the nominal value plus any interest unpaid and accrued up to the
redemption date. Accrued interest payables to the bond holders are calculated in accordance with relevant rules
af the MOF and the PEOC. The redemption price may be different from the fair value of similar instruments
traded at the redemption date.

The redemption obligations below represent the nominal value of treasury bonds underwritten and sald by the
Group, but not yet matured at the reporting date:

31 December 31 Diecember
D18 2017

Rnd.gmprlnn commitment for PRC treasury bonds 11,101 11,492

The criginal maturities of these bonds vary from one to five years. Management of the Group expects the amount
of redemption before maturty dates of these bonds will not ke material. The MOF will not provide fanding
for the early redemption of these bonds on a back-to-back basis, but will settle the principal and interest upon
matarity.

(gl  Underwriting obligntinns
As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the Group did not have unfulfilled commirment in respect
of securities underwriting business. (as at 31 December 2017: Mil}

58 Collateral

(a) Asscts pledged

(i The carrying amount of financial assets pledged as collareral in the Group'’s crdinary course of businesses,
including repurchase agreements and borrowings from central banks, are disclosed as belown:

31 December 31 December

2016 2017
Debt securities 439,272 407,733
Discounted bills 33.955 52,780
Orthers 17z 111
Total 473,399 460,646

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the G:nupr': liakilities related to the abowe collateral
were due within 12 months from the effective dates of these agreements and title of these collateral was
not transferred to counterparties,

(i) In additicn, as ar 31 December 2018, the Group pledged debrt securities and deposits with banks and
other financial institutions with carrying amount tolling EME1.335 million {as ar 31 December 2017:
RME1.568 million) as collateral for derbvative transactlions and guarantee funds to exchanges. Title of
these pledged assets was not transferred to counterparties.

(b) Collateral accepied

The Group recebved debt securities as collateral for financial assets held under resale agreements as set out in Mote
23. Under the terms of theses agreements, the Group could not resell or re-pledge certain parts of these collateral
unless in the event of default by the counterparties. As at 31 Diecember 2018, there was no collateral that can be
resold or re-pledged by the Group (as at 31 Diecember 2017: Mil}. During the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Group did not resell ar re-pledge any of these collateral (year ended 31 Diecember 2017: Mil).
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59 Transactions on behalf of customers

{a) Entrusted lending business

The Group provides entrusted lending business services to corporations and individuals, as well as entrusted
provident housing fund mortzage business services. All entrusted loans are made under the instruction or at
the direction of these corporations, individuals or provident housing fund centre and are funded by entrusted
funds from them.

Far entrusted assets and liabilities and entrusted provident housing fund mortgage business, the Group does not
expose to credit risk in relation to these transactions, but acts as an agent to hold and manage these assets and
labilities at the instruction of the entrusting parties and receives fee income for the sepdces provided.

Trust assets are not assets of the Group and are not recognised on the consclidated statement of fnancial
position. Income recetved and recetvable for providing these services is included in the consclidated statement
of profit or loss as fee Income.

At the reporting date, the entrusted assets and Habilities were as follows:

31 Deceinber 31 December

018 2017
Entrusted loans 640,227 791335
Entrusted funds 640,229 791,556

(b) Wealth management services

The Gmu.p’: wealth Management services o customers mn.’lnljr represent sale of wealth PN O e e pmducl:,
inclading principal puaranteed (Mote 65(c)) and non-principal or interest guaranteed wealth management
pmdu.:l': I:Nul': GS(I:!:I:I, o corporate and pem:.u.n] bmll:Lug CUSo mers.

The funds raised by non-principal guaranteed wealth management products from investors are invested in varlous
investments, including debt securities and money market instruments, credit assets and other debt instruments,
equity instruments etc. Credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk associated with these preducts are borne
by the customers. The Group only earns commission which represents the charpes on customers in reation ta
the provision of custodian, sale and management services. Income is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss as commission income. The Group has entered into placements transactions ar market interest
rates with the wealth management products wehicles (MHorve &5(k)).

The assets and liabilities of these wealth management preduces are not assets and liabilities of the Group and
are not recognised on the consolidated statement of financial position.

As at 31 Diecember 2018, the amount of total assets imvested by these non-principal guaranteed wealth management
products issued by the Group was disclosed in Mote 65(b).
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Segl'“e“t re F‘O‘ rti “g
Measurement of segment assets and llabilities, and segment income and expenses are based on the Group’s accounting
policies.

Internal charges and transfer pricing of transactions between segments are determined for management purpose and
have been reflected in the performance of each segment. Met interest iIncome and expenses arsing from internal charges
and transfer pricing adjustments are referred to as “Intecnal net interest income/ expenses™. Interest income and expenses
earned from third parties are referred to as “External net interest income/expenses”.

Segment Income, expense, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to o segment as well as those that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis. Segment assets and liabilities do not include deferred tax assets and liabilicles. Segment
Income, expenses, assets, and liabilities are determined before intra-group balances, and intra-group transactions are
eliminated as part of the consolidation process. Segment capital expenditure is the total costs incurred during the year
to acquire assets (including both tangible assets and intangible assets) whose estimated useful lives are over one year.

{a) Buosiness SCEMEnts

The Group has the following main business segments for management purpose:

Corporate banking

This segment represents the provision of a range of financial products and services to corporations, government
agencles and non-financial institutions, as well as conducts imvestment banking businesses and international
businesses. The products and services include corporate loans, deposit nking activities, agency services, remittance
and settlement services and guarantes services.

Personal banking

This ssgment represents the provision of a range of financial products and services to indibvidual customers and
small enterprises. The products and services comprise loans, deposit services, securities agency services, remittance
and settlement services and guarantes s=rvices,

Treasury operations

This segment conducts capital markets operations, inter-bank opemations, which, specifically, includes inter-
bank money market transactions, repurchase transactions, and investments and trading in debt instruments.
Furthermore, treasury operations segment also carres out derbvatives and forex trading both for the group and
for customers.

thers and unallocated

Others comprise components of the Group that are not artributable to any of the above segments, along with
certain assets, lHabilities, income or expenses of the Head Office that could not be allocated on a reasonable
basis. This sepment also manages the Group’s liquidity pasition.
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60 Segment reporting (Cantinued)

(a) Business segments (Continued)

Yeat ended 31 December 2018
Cotporate Petsonal Treasury  Oithets and

Banking Bankilng  Operatlons Unallocated Tatal

External net interest incomel| expense] 53,087 51,250 17,170 (27.735) 104,772
Internal met interest incomel|zzpense] 19,982 (32,360) (18,247) 3625 —
et interest income 73069 15,890 8,923 1,890 104,772
Met fee and commission incomef{expense) 11,609 32999 618 (78} 45,148
Other net income (ot (i) 2,506 4,250 8.5 16 574 15,846
Opetating hcome E7.184 Fh139 18057 386 165,76
Opetating expenses

— depreciation and amortisation (1,049 (552) (640) [7oL) (2.942)

— others (19,675) (25.560) (3486) (9371 (49 558)
Credit impairment Jasses (§2,216) (15,295) (187 (188) (57.8846)
Impairment losses an other assets — — — (347} (3471
Rewluation grin on investment properties — — — 5 35
Share of Joss from associytes and

jodnt wentwnes — — — (e42) (&42)
Profit before tax 24,244 15,732 13,74 0 54,326
Income tax (8950
MNet profie 45,376
Capital expenditure 1,394 THD B51 1,08% 4,103

Year ended 31 December 20018
Cotporate Petsonal Treasury  Oithets and

Banking Banking  Operatlons Unallocated Tatal
Segment assets 2,318,330 1,155,488 1488115 1,067,726 6,039,659
Interest in associates and joint veotures — — 118 3,763 3,881
Deferred tax assers 13174
Toral asset 6,066,714
Segment Labilities 3J046,177 1,538,576 716,638 311,821 5,613,612
Dieferred tax lisbilities 16
Toral Liakillties 5,613,628
O -balance sheet credit commicments 1,027,283 92,924 — — 1, 120,207
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60 Segment reporting (Continued)

(a) Buosiness segments (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2017
Corporate Personal Treasurr  Oithers and

Banking Banking  Opentions  Unallocared Tawl
External net interest income{expense) 56,534 43,899 20,671 {21,459 o, 45
Internal net incerest income! (expense) 16,442 (23.724) (17,572 24,054 —
Met interest income 72,976 20,175 3,099 3395 99,645
Met bee and commission income 13,283 32,885 T2 5 45,858
Otther net income (MNaote (1)) 819 1312 .79 1518 10,728
Operatlng lncome &7.0BD 54,353 11,080 4,718 157,231
Operatlhg expenses
— depreciation and amortisation (395) (432) (554) (R30) (2,811)
— athers {20,601} (23,747) {1,552) {112} 46,102)
Impairment losses {44,651} (9,891) {210 (1.035) (35,787)
Revaluarion pain on investment properties i — — a0 30
Share of loss fram asseciates and
joiot ventures — = - (285} (283)
Profit before tax 0,745 20,285 B, 764 2,486 52,0716
Income mx (9.398)
et prafi 42,878
Capital expenditure 3.309 1,581 1,953 L.157 5400
31 December 2017
Caorporate Personal Treasurr  Oithers and
Banking Banking  Opentions  Unalbocared Tawl
Segment assets 2447930 1,022,133 1,292,692 EIOTTO 5653,525
Interest in associares and jodnt ventures — — 151 2,210 2,341
Dieferred tax assets 21,825
Total asset JU67T 601
Segment Habilitles 3,075,264 1172317 TE4,837 152,822 3:265,250
Dieferred tax liabilities B
Tostal liabilizles 5,265,258
Of-balance sheet credit commitments TE4,439 310,315 — — 1,004, 7%
Bloo:
w Othr nat Ins=ma snstes of e mading pan, st gain fram v ssorcie, ree bdgirg loa and sthar aparing ncame
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60 Segment reporting (Cantinued)

(b) Geographical segments

The Group operates principally in Mainland China with branches locared in 31 provinces, autonomous reglons
and municipalities. The Bank’s principal subsidiaries, CNCE Investment and CIFH are registered and operating
in Hong Kong. The other subsidiarles, Lin'an Rumnl Bank and CFLL are registered in Mainland China.

In presenting information by gecgraphical segments, operating income Is allocated based on the lacation of
the branches that genemated the revenue. Segment assets and capital expenditure are allocated based on the
geographical locatlon of the underdying assets.

Geographical segments, as defined for management reporting purposes, are as follows:

—  "Yangte River Delta”™ refers to the following areas where tier-1 branches of the Group are located:
Shanghal, Manjing, Suzhou, Hangzhou and Mingho, as well as Lin‘an Rural Bank;

— “Pearl River Delta and West Strait” refers to the following areas where tier-1 branches of the Group are
located: Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Dongguan, Furhow, Xiamen, and Haikou;

—  “Bohai Rim™ refers to the following areas where tier-1 branches of the Group are located: Beijing, Tianjin,
Dialian, CHingdao, Shijizhuang, Jinan and CFLL;

—  “Central” region refers to the following areas where tier-1 branches of the Group are locared: Hefed,
Zhengrhou, Wuhan, Changsha, Taiyuan and Manchang;

— “Western™ reglon refers to the following areas whene tier-1 branches of the Group are located: Chengdu,
Chongging, Xi'an, Kunming, Nanning, Hohhot, Urumgi, Guiyang. Lanzhou, Xining, Yinchuan and
Lhasa;

— “Mortheastern™ reglon refers to the following areas where tier-1 branches of the Group is located: Shenyang,
Changchun and Harbin;

— “Head Office™ refers to the headquarter of the Bank and the Credit Card Center; and

— “Ohverseas” includes all the operations of CHCE Investment, CIFH and i subsidiaries.
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60 Segment reporting (Continued)
(b) Geographical segments (Continued)
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60 Segment reporting (Cantinued)
(b) Geographical segments (Continued)
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Financial risk management

This section presents information about the Group’s exposure to and its manapement and control of rsks, in particular
the primary risks associated with its use of financial instruments:

Credit risk Credit risk represents the potentlal loss that may arise from the fallure of 2 customer or
counterparty to meet its contractual obligations or commitments to the Group.

Matket Hsk Market risk arises from unfavourable changes in market prices (interest rate, exchange rate,
stock price or commedity price) that lead to a loss of on-balance sheet or off-balance sheet
business in the Group.

Liquidity risk Liquidicy risk arises when the Group, in mesting the demand of liabilities due and other
payment obligations as well as the needs of business expansion, is unable to sufficienty,
timely or cost-effectively acquire funds.

Opetational tisk Opemational risk arises from inappropriate or problematic internal procedures, personnel,
IT systems, or external events, such risk includes legal risk, but excluding strategy risk and
reputational risk.

The Group has established policies and procedures to identify and analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and
controls, and to constantly monitor the risks and Hmits by means of reliable and up-to-dare management information
systems. The Group regularly modifies and enhances its risk management policles and systems to reflect changes in
markets, products and best practice sk management processes. Internal auditors alse perform regular audits to ensure
compliance with relevant palicies and procedures.

(a)

Credit risk
Credit nidk management

Credit sk refers to the risk of loss caused by default of debtor or counterparcy. Credit risk also occurs when
the Group makes unauthorised or inappropriate loans and advances to customers, Anancial commitments or
imvestments. The credit risk exposure ofthe Group mainly arises from the Group’s loan and advance to customers,
treasury businesses and off-balance sheer frems.

The Group has standardised management on the entire credit business process including loan application and
its imvestigation, approval and granting of loan, and monitoring of non-performing loans, Through stricty
standardising the credit business process, strengthening the whole process management of pre-loan investigation,
credit rating and credit granting, examination and approval, loan review and post-loan monitoring, improving
the risk of slow-release of collateral, accelerating the disposal of non-performing loans, and promoting the
upgrading and transformation of credit management system, the credit sk management of the Group has been
comprehenstvely improved.

The Group writes off the recoverable financial asset when it cannot reasonably expect to recover all or part of the
asset. Signs indicating that the recoverable amount cannot be reasonably expected includes (1) the enforcement
has been terminated, and (2} the Group’s recovery method is to confiscate and dispose of the collateral, but the
expected value of the collateral cannot cover the entire principal and interest.

In addition to the credit risk to the Goup arising credit assets, the Group manages the credie risk for treasury
businesses through prudently selecting peers and other financial institutions with comparable credit levels as
counterparties, balancing credic risk with returns on imvestment, comprehensively considering i nternal and external
credit rating information, granting credic hierarchy, and using credit management system to review and adjust
credit commitments on a timely basis, etc. In addition, the Group provides off-balance sheet commitment and
guarantes businesses to customers, so it is possible for the Group to make payment on behalf of the customer
in case of customer’s default and bear risks similar to the loan. Therefore, the Group applies similar risk control
procedures and policies to such business to reduce the credir risk.
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61 Financial risk management (Cantinned)
{a) Credit risk (Continued)
memtafmﬂmﬂt losses

Since 1 January 2018, the Group adapts, the "expected credit loss model™ on its debt instruments which are
classified as financial assets measured ar amortised cost and ar fair value through other comprehensive income
in accordance with the provisions of IFRS 9.

Far financial assets that are included in the measurement of ECL, the Gmp evaluates whether the credic
risks of related financlal assets have increased significantly since the initial recognition. The “three-stage”
impairment model is used to measure their allowances for impairment losses respectively to recognise ECL and

their movements:

Stape 1: Pinancial instruments with no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition will be classified
as “stage 17 and the Group contimuowsly monitors their credit dsk. The allowance of impairment losses of
financial instruments in Stage 1 is measured based on the ECL in the next 12 months, which represents the
proportion of the ECL in the lifetime due to possible defaule events in the next 12 months.

Stage 2: If there is a significant increase in credic risk from initial recognition, the Group transfers the relared
financial instruments to Stage 2, bur it will not be considersd as credit-impaired instruments, The ECL of
financial instruments in Stage 2 is measured based on the lifetime ECL.

Stage 3: If there is a significant impairment in Anancial instraments, it will be moved to Stage 3. The ECL of
financial instruments in 5115: 3 iz measured based on the lifetime ECL.

POCI financial assets refers to financial assets thar are credit-impaired ar initial recognitlon. Allowance for
impairment losses on these assets are the lifetime ECL.

The Group measures the ECL for Anancial assets through testing medels, which includes expected loss model
and discounted cash flows model. The expected loss model method is applicable to assets related to perscnal
client, assets related to corponate client in stage 1 and 2, interbank investments and off balance sheet credic
assets, DMscounted cash Aows medel is applicable to assets relared to corporate client in stage 3.

The Group estimate the ECL in accordance with the IFRS 9, the key judgments and assumptions adopred by

i) Significant increase in credit nisk

On each reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the credit risk of the relevant financial instruments
has increased significantly since the initial recognition. When one or more on quantitative or qualitathve
threshold, or upper limit are triggered, the credit risk of financial instruments would be considered as
increased significantly.

By setting quantitative and qualitative threshold, and wpper limit, the Group determines whether the
credit risk of financial instruments has increased significantly since initial recognition. The judgment
mabnly includes (1) credit risk of borrowers declining to Grade 15 or below since initial recognition; (2}
slgnificant adverse changes in business, financial or sperating conditions of bomrowen and in economic
conditions; (3) significant increase in other credit risk. For the bomowers who are 30 days (exclusive) to
90 days (inclusive) past due on their contractual payments ({including principal and interest), the Group
considers that their credit risk has increased significantly and classifies them to stage 2.
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61 Financial risk management (Continued)
{a) Credit risk ({Continued)
(&} Definition of credit- impaired assets

When credit impairment oocurred, the Group defines that the financial asset is in default. In genenl, a
fimancial asser that is overdue for more than 90 days is considersd to be in default.

When one or more events that adversely affect the expected future cash Aow of a financial asset occurs,
the financial asset becomes a credit-impaired financial asset. Evidence of credit-impaired financial assets
includes the following observable information:

- The issuer or borrower Is in significant financial difficulcies;

. The borrower is in breach of financlal covenant(s) such as default or overdue in repayment of
interests or principle, etc;

. The creditar gives the debtor no concesslon under amy other circumstances, for econamic or
contractual reasons relating to the debtor’s financlal difficuliies;

= It is becoming probably that the bomawer will enter bankrupecy or other debt restructuring

= An active market for that financial asser has disappeared because of financial difficulties from

issuer or bormower,

. Financial assets are purchased or originated at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit

]Dllﬂ.

The Group's default definition has been consistently applied to the modeling of default probability,
default risk exposure and default loss mate in the Group’s ECL calculation process.

(&i] Inputs for measmrement of expe cted credit losses

The expected credit loss is measured on either a 12 months or lifetime basis depending on whether a
significant increase in credit risk has cccurred or whether an asset is considered to be credit-impaired.
Related definitions are as follows:

. The probabiliy of default (“PD") represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial
obligations, either over the next 12 months or over the remaining lifetime of the obligation.

. Lass given default ("LIGD") represents the Group’s expectation of the extent of los on o defaulted
exposure. LGTY varies by type of counterparty, type and seniocrity of dalm, and availability of

callateral or other credit support. LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of exposure at
the time of default and is calculated on a 12-month or lifetime basis.

. Exposure at defaule ("EAD™) is based on the amounts that the Group expects to be owned at the
time of default, over the next 12 months or ower the remaining lifetime of the obligation.

The Group regularly monitors and reviews the assumptions related to the calculation of ECL, including
the PD) and the change in the value of collateral over time.

The Group categorises exposures with similar risk characteristics and estimates the PD), LGV, EADY by the
exposures respectively. The Group has obtained sufficient information to ensure its statistical reliability.
ECL of the Group is measured based on the continous asessment and follow-up of individuals and their
fimancial status.

During the reporting perod, there were no significant changes in the estimated technology or key

assumpticns.
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61 Financial risk management (Cantinned)

{a) Credit risk (Continued)
{iv] Forward-lpoking informa tion

The assessment of significant increase in credit rsk and the calculation of ECL incorporates foreard-
looking information. The Group has performed historical analysis and identified the key economic
varlables impacting credit risk and ECL for each asset portfolic.

These economic varables and their asseciated impact on the PD vary by financial instruments. Expert
judgment has been applied in this process, forecasts of these economic variables are estimated by the
experts of the Group on a quarterly basis, and the impact of these economic vadables on the PD and
the exposure at default was determined by statistical regression analysis.

In addition to the peutral economic scenario, the Group determine the possible scemarios amd their
welghtings by a combination of statistical analysis and expert judgment. The Group measures ECL as
either a probabilicy weighted 12 months ECL (stage 1) or a probability weighted lifetime ECL (stage
2 and stage 3). These probabilicy-weighted ECL are determined by ranning each scenario through the
relevant ECL model and multiplying it by the appmpriate scenario weighting,

Miacroecomamic scemdrie dnd weiphting infrmarion

The Group has built @ macre forecast model, and pedformed historical analysis and identified the key
economic variables impacting credit risk and ECL for each portfolic, such as domestic Gross Diomestic
Preduct (FGDPF), eectricity production and registered urban unemployment rate, etc.

In 2018, the Group has considered different macroeconomic scemarios, and the key macmeconomic
scenario asumptions in estimating ECL are set out below:

Vatables Range
Growth rate of domestic GD'P, year on yrear 5. 70% 0. 82%
Acumulated elecericity production, year on year 2.TE-165.69%
Registered urban unemployment rate F.70% -3 85%

Adopt top-down development approach, the Group has established models including different key
economic indicators is established with the new actual default rate of regression model, and use the
prediction results and historic defaule information adjustment coefficient calculation, then realise the
provislons for foreard-locking adjustment.

The Group considers internal and external data, experts predict, and the best estimate of future, to
determine the weightings in positive, neutral and negative scenarios. Neutral is d efined as the most likehy
to happen in the future, as compare to other scenaros. Optimistic scenaric and pessimistic scenario
represents the possible scenario that is better off or worse off scenario compared to neutral scenario
respectively. Currently, the weighting of neutral scenario Is equal to the sum of the weightings of other
scenarios. Following this assessment, the Group measures ECL as a welghted average probabilicy of ECL
in the next 1 2-month under the three scenarios for Stage 1 financial instruments; and a weighted average
probabilicy of liferime ECL for Stage 2 and 3 financial instruments.

For portfolio cannot establish regression model, such as customer defaule rate is extremely low, or no
mitable internal rating data portfolio, erc., the Group mainky uses the regression medel has been established
a similar combination than expected losses, in order to increase the covenge of existing impairment model.
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61 Financial risk management (Continued)

{a) Credit risk {Continued)
vl Sensitivity in formation

The change of the inputs for measurement of ECL and forward-locking informarion impace the assessment
of significant increase in credit rsk and measurement of credic loss.

As at 31 December 2018, assuming the welghting of optimistic scenario increased by 10% while the
welghting of neutral scenario decreased by 10%, the allowance for credit impairment losses of the Group
will be decreased by 2.868 billion; assuming the welghting of pessimistic scenario increased by 10% while
the weighting of neutral scenarlo decreased by 10%, the allowance for credit impairment losses of the
Group will be increased by 2.166 billion;

Allowance for impairment losses of performing loans and advances to customers consists of ECL from
Stage 1 and Srage 2 which is measured based on 12 months ECL and lifetime ECL respectively. Loans
and advances to customers in Stage 1 transfer to Stage 2 when there is a significant increase in credit rsk.
The following table presents the estimated impact as if the ECL of all performing loans and advancs o
customers are measured based on 12 months ECL, holding all other risk profile constant.

Year ended 31 Diecember 2018

Allowance of
Impalrment
losses assumlng
performlng
loans and Carrent
advances to allowance for
customers abe Impace of Impalrment
Ih Stage 1  stage ttahsfers losses
Ptrﬁ:rmLuE loans and advances o custamers 53070 1,704 54,860
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61 Financial risk management (Cantinned)
fa) Credit risk (Continued)
{v)]  Sendtivity information (Continned)
(i) Maciwawen cradic rick acpesire
The mazimum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date without taking into consideration of
any collaterd held or afher cedb: eoboncement I pepresented by the ark b of mach grpe of

financial assets in the consolidated statement of financial position after deducting any allowance
for impairment losses. A summary of the maximum exposure is as follows:

31 Desceimber 2018
Nox 31 Devenber
Sirpe 1 Stge 1 Suged  opplicable Toul my
Babinwes with cenmal basks A% - - - 5355 ML¥0
Depesits with bk and avohark
finarcid initnsias w15 - - - s 1M
Thernens with and Jans o banksasd
nan-hank fnanscid inssitetiom 1761 5% - 1 - ITRIE 172y
Finandal aseis ar airvahie throngh
. - - - - —
Derivaries fnancial aeis — - - a8 31,51 5451
Finandal aszis held arer remle apreemenss 10,790 — - — 10,750 HALE
Iniemest receivables - — - - - 3144
Loans and advances w cosmmen: MzsTm 7O, 1981 —  B5InE RI0aM
Fiundial imvestmenis
—at birvalae hagh peofit o loes - - —  MeSTI BRETI =
— at anetieed cant TT3ATe AT v - TIRIM -
— at irvahae throogh other
comprekereive incae 10,030 15 m — 510,44 -
— designared at fair waloe chrongh oeber
comprekereive incae — - - L g -
Arvalahlefoc-sale francid aves - - - - - 5170
Hel io-manriiy iresmmenc: — — - - - 214,586
Irveesmmenes clai fed & recetvables - - - - - L
Ober frrarcial ames 17440 FAL LpaT - Hlwm 7an
Subical 5H3A61 Thx Hsn MISTO SER0TH AN
Credit commitments 1,114,430 357 130 — LT LT
Mz oo eredit vk exposure 6,660,481 BLITY pLYSH HisTm o T 6,579,418
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61 Financial risk management (Continued)
{a) Credit risk {Continued)
(v)  Sensitivity information (Continued)
)  Mumimam crvdie risk expasre (Comtinued)

According to the quality of assets, the Group classified the credit mting of the financial assets
as rsk level 1, risk level 2, rigk level 3 and default. *Risk level 17 refers to customers who have
competitive advantages among local pees with good foundarions, cutstanding operation results,
strong operational amd fnanclal stremgrh, and/or good corporate governance structure. “Risk
level 2 refers to customers who are in the middle tier among local peers with fair foundations,
hair operation results, fair operational and Amancial strength, andfor fair corporate governance
structure. “Risk level 3* refers to customers who are in the lowertier n.m.an.g]n-m] eI, with weak
foundations, poor operation results, poor operational and financial strength, andfor deficiency in
corpomate povernance structure. The definition of “Default” is same as the definition of credic-
impaired. The credit rating is used for internal risk management.

The following table provides an analysis of loans and advances to customers and financial
investments that are included in the ECL assessment according to the credit risk level. The book
value of the following Financial assets is the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for these assets,

31 Deceinbest 2618
Alosraice
st
Inpalbineat
Riskleel ] Risklwd?  Risk bevel 3 Diefunlt Sabioul losses Nt balonce
Laues ared advances o cmimomens
Souge 1 (B (1) WIS 16 —  METHL LMy A
Ing2 4 L] B34 - ne% o mm o wEs
Joge 5 - - - 6543 541 (6370 1961
Francial ‘wesiment 1 amvar’eed rax
Stuge L e 1Al - - ThW (i) TRETE
Stuge 1 - 18 - - ] i3] 378
g - - - 1168 1,160 () 61
Froancidl ‘wvesicaents ot frirvaue
Siage L o i 12 - — 5l (it T
g2 - 13 - - L] 1] 15
Siage ] - - - Hl nl {31 b
Mz credii ek sppamne 15 5 1 14505 RN Ly LA LSS
Hoxa:

Stagw | Inchider leans xod advarcas 1o cuscmen meumred o e valas chezoph ccher comprabansre Income, and B cocmipending
Impalrmani dewa net Inclade bn the *Allcsrancs For inpainment Lames™ s shoem In the cshle
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61

Financial risk management (Cantinned)
{a) Credit risk (Continued)
fr)  Seusitivity infarmation (Contingsd)
(i) Measwrement of expecrad credi loses

The following table shows the movement in carying value of loans and advances to customers

in current reporting period:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Seage 3
Asat 1 January 2018 3,036,736 93,237 67,933
Movements
Met transfers out from Stage 1 (B4,271) — —
Met transfers in to Stage 2 — 11,115 —
Met transfers in to Stage 3 — — 73156
et transactions incurred during the year
(Note (i) 495,119 (10,215) (28,961)
Write-off —_ —_ (46,937)
Orhers (Moste (1)) 10,057 549 242
As at 31 December 2018 3457641 93,676 65,433

The following table shows the movement in carying value of financial imvestment In current

reporting period:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Seage 3
Asat 1 January 2018 1,044,552 M7 45
Movements
Met transfers out from Stage 1 (8,430) — —
Met transfers in to Stage 2 — 1,875 —
Met transfers in to Stage 3 — —_ 4,555
et transactions incurred during the year
(Mote (1)) 227,172 (236) (2,528)
Write-off — — (6BI)
Ohers (Mate (i) 3,280 9 2
As at 31 Diecember 2018 1,286,574 3,995 1.3&85
Moom:
[=1] Kt cramnc ticna dncurrsd mainky Inchuder change In carrying smeant dos to paschased, origl d e d T3
Far wrhie-cff.
ta Ocher includs i af Inter and affect of echangs dFfemnc during che ye.
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61 Financial risk management (Continued)
{a) Credit risk {Continued)
(v)  Sensitivity information (Continued)
{ii)  Matswrement of scpected credit loses (Continuad)

The following table shows the movement in allowance for impairment of loans and advances o
customers in current reporting period:

Seapge 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
As ar | January 2018 30,664 24,674 42,565
Movements (Mote (1))
Mer transfers out from Seage 1 (1B — —
Met transfers in to Stage 2 — 515 —
et transfers in to Stage 3 — — 48,640
Met transactions incurred during the year
Moo= (1)) 4,702 (1.838) {1.337)
Changes in parameters for the year (Mote (1)) (L5400 (625) 1107
Write -off —_ — {46,337)
Orihers (Motes (iv]) 116 G2 2,334
As at 31 December 2018 32072 21,7BB 46,372

The following table shows the movement in allowance for impairment of financial investment in
current reporting perod:

Seage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
As at 1 January 2018 3953 10 31
Net transfers out from Stage 1 (239 — —
Net transfers in to Stage 2 —_ 144 —_
Met transfers in to Stage 3 — —_ 1,843
Met tramsactions incurred during the year
(Nate (i) 370 — —
Changes in parameters for the year (Mote (1)) (703 — (341}
Write-off — — (689)
Orthers (Motes (iv)) 16 — 4
As at 31 December 2018 3407 154 248

21} Bl ovarants mainly dnchodw cha Impace o ECL das oo chrspes dn seapea.

il Nax tranascdar Incoened during mainly inclodes cheaonpe in ol of imp du ee parchasd,  ar da-
recegnidnn sraapting Far wrice-cf

[ Changer in perumeocs mainly ncluds chengm o cik ezposurs and. the tmpact to ECL dus o= changen in PO and LGD
suuliing from ngulsr opdus on modsliog parareocs cxiter than nape aovemen,.

il Ochara trclode unwinding inmren oo Impsiced Anandal aseiry oecl of lotwreat Elar, and affect of sxchangs
differancar.
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61 Financial risk management (Cantinned)
{a) Credit risk (Continued)

(v)  Senstivity information (Continued)
(i) Lodws dwd davances o customers analprad by induwstry sector
31 Dvecember 2008 31 December 2017
Loans and Laans and
advance avances
Grass secubed by Giross wcured by
bala ice % collatel balance %  collaend
Carparace loans
— real escaie 2823 BT TR0 133055 104 72,485
— munufachuring 195005 B.2 140,199 4y ol 141,571
— rental and bminess ervices 1N 3] T.B 1Trm3 121,786 &9 134,207
— water, envirooment and p'uu.i.:
urility management 1851 58 106EI 179441 i1 &7,763
— wholesale and recail 151,391 4.2 ARG 19331E &1 103,102
— manspanation, sorage and
pomal srvices 151.038 4.2 TE3N 152351 44 13
i ] T9.085 L2 Fl5a0 T747E 14 31,442
— praduction and supply of
eleceric power, pa and waer 72,938 o d0gE T 11 3,68
— public management and social
arginiALfans 13,366 04 LTIl L& 566 0.6 h]
— othen NATE B.6 118377 185,900 a9 120,153
Subeocal 1881125 5.1 1066876 1457847 580 1,007,931
Permnal leans LAR4 A 410 1000003 1231584 3R 85,513
Dhiscouried hilk M7 67 — 107456 14 —
Acorued interesz B,338 0.2 — — — —
Grom loars and advances 1o osomers 3616750 1000 067078 AL968a7 Lo 1,867 444

{ie)  Lodws dnd ddvances to customers amalpad by prograghical sector:

31 December 2018 Al December 2017
Lsans wnd Laans and
advance advances
Grass secubed by Girmss wcured by
bala ice % collatel halance %  colleend
Bohai Rim {induding Head Office) 1123203 31 416447 967acd 3 43,764
Yangtee River Delea TRATIL LT STAZT EALlEE 6 15
Fearl Biver Delea and Weesz Seraic 540491 151 #8719 40511E 154 0,34
Cenenl 463,100 1.8 196,188 421,810 142 265,804
Wesem 433,143 110 DERLTER jap152 1.2 2iL, 0
Mortheasiem 75, 6B Ll 51,581 67508 1 44,40
Clurside Mainland China 178,981 49 66953 L6&LS] iz 1,361
Accrued inteves B,338 0.2 — = — —
Total 3616750 000 LOETATY 3196387 1000 1,867,444
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61 Financial risk management (Continued)
{a) Credit risk {Continued)
(v)  Sensitivity information (Continued)
() Leams and adeances ro customsers amalysed by type of security

31 December 31 December

ID1E 2017

Unsscured loans B, 154 Fo&E, 164

Guaranteed loans 492,382 513,823

Secured loans 2067 070 1,867 G

— loans secured by collateral 1,658 464 1,510,366

— pledged loans 40B.595 357.078

Subtoral 3,365,615 3,089,431

Dhiscounted bills 242,797 107 456

Arcrued inrersst B.33E —

Gross loans and advances to customers 3,616,750 A, 198,887

(e}  Remheduled loams amd ddvances to customers

31 December 2015 31 December 2017

% of total % of ol

Grass loans and Gross loans and

balance advances balance advances

Bescheduled loans and advances: 21,588 DG 23,245 0.73%

— rescheduled loans and advances
averdus mare than 3 months 18.748 052 % 15,850 0,52%

Rescheduled loans and advances are these loans and advances to customens which have been
rescheduled or renegotiated because of deterioration in the financial position of the bormowers,
or of the inability of the borrowers to meet their original repayment schedule and for which the
revised repayment terms are a concession that the Group would not otherwise consider. As ar 31
Diecernber 201 8, with borrowers” financial difficuley, the concession the Group considered resultad
from economic or legal reasons is not significant.
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61 Financial risk management (Cantinned)
{a) Credit risk (Continued)
fr]  Semstivity infarmation (Continged)
(i) Dlebi securities amalysed by oredit ravimg

The Group adopts a credit rating approach to manage credit dsk of its debt instruments porfolio.
The ratings are obtained from major mting agencies where the debt instruments are issued. The
carrying amounts of debt instruments imvestments analysed by rating as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

31 December 2018
Unrated
(Mote (1)) AAA A4 A  Belowh Total
Diebe securicies isued by
— gmvemments ITLEE 114,370 11,693 265 — 4760
— policy burks WEALE  B6d — T — 12406
—FI.IH.E entities 178 29 1666 —_ —_ 1,873
— banks and non-bank
Financial insteutions 16095 181,031 4,560 13595 9,591 145,781
— cofporates 55.240 48,675 10,047 T3 [ S b
Invessment Mmanapement pm-d.l.l.ch
manaped by securities companies 228,392 — — — — 18,392
Trust invescment _p]uu 178,019 — — — — 178,019
Total 969,008 35760 975 38,16 15,645 1403703
31 December 2017
Unrated
Motz (i) AAA AL A Bebwd Teeal
Diebe securicies issued by
— govemments 257,551 48,565 8440 375 —  A4ds
— pelicy banks 127 &48 — — &5 — 11845
— public entities 3 = 1151 = = L1+
— banks and non-bank
Finandal insteutiom & 508 160,311 LY 15853 6,734 195450
— corponates 9014 96,367 13018 15,138 SE7 148724
Teeal 402522 305,243 W55 32075 11,921 TER TG

B

[=1] Urnrned debtsecorithen bak by the Groep e bands fsed pimarily by the Chines gevecomane, polcy banks, bankr, nea-
bank Anancid. prad el by paries ard ot phns
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61 Financial risk management (Continued)
{a) Credit risk [Continued)
(v)  Sensitivity information (Continued)
(vidi) Tmeesments claified a5 receivables amalyed by type of wnderlying amers
30 June 31 December

2018 2017
Investment Managermnent pmdu.:h mn.u.n.Eﬂd |:|3r
securitles companies and trust imvestment plans
— interbank assets products issued by other banks 16,650 —
— credit assets 300,0BY —
— rediscounted bills E9.831 =
Irvestments classified as recebrables
— interbank assets and wealth management
produces ssued by other banks — 153.310
— coedit assets — 303,386
— rediscounted bills — 77163
Total S00,570 534,061

The Group divides investment management products managed by securities companies and
trust Investment plans into comprehensive credit management system, to manage §ts credic risk
exposure in a holistic manner. The type of collateral of credit assets includes guarantes, securcy
by collateral, and pledge

(b) Market risk

Market risk refers to risks that may cause a loss of on-balance sheet and offbalance sheet businesses for the
Group due to the adverse movement of market prices, including interest rates, forelgn exchange rates, stock
prices and commodity prices. The Group has established a market risk management system that formulares
procedures to identify, measure, supervise and control market risks. This system aims to limic market risk to an
acceptable level through examining and approving new products and limit management.

Risk and Intermal Control Committes of the Group s responsible for approving market risk management policies,
establishing appropriate crganisational structure and information systems to effectively identify, measure, monitor
and control marker risks, and ensuring adequate resources to reinforce the marker risk management. The Risk
Management Department is responsible for independently managing and controlling market risks of the Group,
including developing market risk management policies and authodsation Hmits, providing independent report
of market risk to identify, measure and monitor the Group’s market risk. Business departments are responsible
for the day-to-day management of market risks, including effectively identifying, measuring, controlling market
rsk factors assoclated with the relevant operations, so as to ensure the dynamic balance between business
development and risk undertaking.

The Group uses sensitivity analysis, foreign exchange exposure and interest rate re-pricing gap analysis as the
primary instruments to monitor market risk.

Interest rate risk and currency risk are the major market risks that the Group is exposed to.
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61 Financial risk management (Cantinned)
(b) Market risk {Continued)
Interest rate rigk

The Group's interest rate exposures mainly arise from the mismatching of assets and liabilices” re-pricing dates,
as well as the effect of interest rate volatility on trading positicns.

The Group primarily uses gap analysls to assess and monitor its re-pricing risk and adjust the ratio of Asating and
fiwed rate exposures, the loan re-pricing cycle, as well as optimise the term structure of its deposits accordingly.

The Group implements vardous methods, such as duration analysis, sensitivity analysis, stress testing and scenario
simulation, to measure, manage and report the interest e sk on a regular basis.

The following tables summarise the average interest rates, and the next re-pricing dates or contractual maturicy
date whichever is sarlier for the assets and liabilities as at the end of each reporting dare.

31 Diecember 2118
Between
thies
Avetge Less than months Bietween
Linbetest Fabe Nob-lnterest thres and one obeand  Moke thay
(Mot (1) Total beating manths yeat  freyan  fre pams
Assety
Cash and halances with cenmal banks L¥H% 538,708 1047 1461 - - -
Depeasits with banks and non-hask
finandal imtitocians L% 9,153 114 M0 500 - -
Pheenenys wich and loans e banks and
nan-bark firancil institation iM% 176, 160 BT 129,23 46,061 - -
Fh:.u:i:]mzl:hdd.u.l.duml:m 1.59% 10,790 — 10,50 — — —
Laans and advnce: o costomen: (Hoe (5)) 4.85% 3515450 &35 LITSE 8,215 96,056 15109
Finarcial invesmmeans
— at fair valbee through poafit oc Jass 08,872 225,154 IBD5T 26,524 m,015 B112
— at amertised coat 471% 778,238 &5 67072 181,186 384,840 13159
— at fair vakue through atber
comprekenuive income 1.80% 510,346 4529 42830 THEIT 188337 743
— desigpated at fiir valoe chrough oecher
comprebeniive income 7 7 — — — —
Ochers 126,090 124,08 LT m — —
Total assets 6,05, T14 I%.B18  1ATABIL  LEOAH  LEM,158 51063
Liabilites
Becrowing from cmmal banks 1859% 285,430 — 68,350 118,080 — —
Depeasits From banks and nea-hask
finandal instingians Hm ML 4151 MIE)  IM4GE0 1 -
Pheenenys fram hasks and pao-bank
financil imtiturtian 145% 115358 M1 B3R5 1M - H
Financial labiides ar fair value chraugh
pafit oc b Wl a1 - —_ —_ —_
Financial aseeis sald under pspurchas
agramenn LM% 120,15 35 1T 2490 — —
Dlepeasits From cusamers LBM%: 39611 NM0 LEI5EBS B7.223 imEm0 a
Debe securidies ismed 452% 52483 4155 98,144 M7 %, 260 106,950
Oehers 6205 14E L3l — - —
Total Uabilites 5613628 13,307 3,514 L3TESL 471,160 1070165
Libetest abe gup £3086 60511 (LO4TATI) (2779 1IMLE ST
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For the pear ended 31 December 2018
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61 Financial risk management (Continued)

(b) Market risk (Continued)

Taterest mte dsk (Continped)
31 Devenber 2017
Krarage Between Rerveen
imierest raie Ko imermit Less than  thoee moarihs wmeand  Mare dun
(e (1] Taal baring chree mamchs  and oo pex foepears  fveymn
Anpets
Cash and balasoes wich ceniral banks L.56% e300 3JA10 440 = — —
Dleparics with banks and xan-bank
firancil instinotians 10% 12435 = 120,240 4110 = =
Plaements with and baans 40 barks and
ran-bank Anancial inminsioas 1.0 172069 = 738 14741 = =
Finandal ames held under cesale apreements 2.6% J482 — 26 - - -
g fied a1 seceivabi % S Ban 13664 36330 141352 47,83
Leams and advances 1o awscamer: Note fif)] 461% I065.984 R I ) AT 00 O 14,156
[nvermmene: [Nee Jiif)] EF L6321 113,28 138729 n72n IBE 345 15377
Oithers 477 L7307 hEE L6333 = =
Tootal mets A7 701 JEFH JHAIM LIRIW  L4mgR 2% 4l6
Lishilides
Bamawing fron. cenmal harks 1.17% 21740 = 41,500 196,100 = —
Deeparics from banks and xan-bank
firancil institutians 1% M 1 ERAR 1717E ] -
Placemenis fram barks and nen-hank
firancial instittians LEM% )] — in440 LAk = 32
Finandal amets seld ander repurchase
EgrEnem 1.51% 134,500 — 121677 1283 — —
Dieparics from curiomens L5 LA0RAM A0 LEERSH Sa3311 M133 7
Dbt mcaricies iuued 417% 1,44 — 195,063 LS ] 116,351 J0ME
Ohikers 168474 LE3TE 17 1514 — —
Total Liabllitlss 56525 LELLEE  JEFROGE  LOLEPLD 158297 36587
[ckerest rate gap qlz4% LERSSE  (LI3LEAY 9527  Lomgss 135429
Moax
[ H] Frangw Intaree ra cap d cha ratlp af ‘ez 3 wversge norat besdng usenllabdides durng che year.
[TE] Farlcans ind sivincm 1o cumomars, du “La than thre manchs™ cesgery included cverdoe e of all Far Lmf kanc)

af FAMB4L1E) milion m o 31 Decenber 1018 (ar e ¥| Diecornber 3117: FABAY 60 milban).

iy 1 luded cha fi | wrmee ai Fulr valus theaugh peeflc ar lom, wvallable-Far-mle | wrrars, bald ¥ and
Imensmants In. amsclates and jeint vanone
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61 Financial risk management (Cantinned)

(b} Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group uses sensichity analysis to measure the potential effece of changes in interest raves on the Group’s
net interest income. The following table ses forth the resules of the Group’s interest rate sensitivity analysis as
at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

31 Diecember 2018 31 December 2017
Oreher Oreher
Met Interest comprehenshve Met interest  comprehenshre
lncome koo me Income Imcome
+100 basls points (11,435) (1,409) (5,32 ) (1,229)
-100 basis points 11,435 1409 G328 1,229

This sensitivity analysis is based on a static interest rate risk profile of the Group’s non-derbvative assets and
liabilities and certain assumptions as discussed below. The analysis measures anly the impact of changes in interest
rates within one year, showing how annualised interest income would have been affected by repricing of the
Group’s non-derivative assets and liabilities within the one-year pedod. The analysis is based on the following
assumptions: (1) all assets and Habilities that reprice or mature within the three months bracket, and the afer
three months but within one year bracket are both reprice or mature at the beginning of the respective periods,
(i} it does not reflect the potential impact of unparalleled yield curve movements, and (iif) there are no other
changes to the portfolio, all positions will be retained and rolled over upon maturity. The analysis does not take
Into account the effect of rsk management measures taken by management. Due to the assumptions adopted,
actual changes in the Group’s net interest income and other comp rehensive income resulting from increases or
decreases in intersst rates may differ from the results of this sensitivige analysis.

Currency ok

Currency sk arises from the potentlal change of exchange rates that cause a loss to the on-balance sheet and
off-balance sheet business of the Group. The Group measures its currency risk with foreign currency exposures,
and manages its currency risk by spotr and forward foreign exchange transactions and matching its foreign
currency demominated assets with corresponding liabilities in the same currency, as well as using derbvative
financial instruments, mainly forelgn exchange mwaps, to manage its exposure
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61 Financial risk management (Continued)
(b) Market risk {Continusd)
Courren cy sisk { Cas thamed)
The exposures at the reporting date were as follows:

31 December 2018
BME UsD HED Orhets Total
(RMB (RMB (RMB
equivalent]  equivalent]  equivalent)
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 525,321 12,668 535 184 538,708
Dieposits with banks ind non-bank
financial institutions 64,670 13,757 1420 B.297 99,153
Placements with and Joans w banks and
noo-bank financial institutions 123,262 41,291 90137 TATO 176,160
Financial assets held under resale
ApTELMIENLS 9,832 958 — — 10,7580
Loans and advances to customers 3,263,386 12573 109,773 19,918 3,515,650
Financial irvesemients
— at fair value through profit or lass 187,997 15,146 1,719 — 308,872
— at amortised cost TTE.749 TARY — — TTE 138
— at fair value through ocher
camprebensive income 4219.671 50,76 13970 5839 510,346
— designared ar fair value through
other comprehensive income 2,%i0 155 1z —_ LT
Olchers 121,762 L858 515 355 126,050
Total assets 5,603,599 74661 149,300 38763 6,066,714
Liabilicles
Barrowings from central banks 2H0.430 —_ —_ —_ 2R6,4%0
Dieposits from banks and non-bank
financial institutions TiT.TB% 582 131 1,762 TRLI6E
Placements from banks and non-bank
financial institutions 101,094 14,139 125 — 115,358
Financial liabdlities at fir value through
profit or loss — G2 — — 262
Financial amets sold under repurchase
ApTEemENLs 12,097 Z18 —_ —_ 120,315
Dieposits from custamers 3,283,244 205993 138,905 21,469 3,449,611
Diebe securities issued 531,768 L7115 —_ —_ 551483
Others 93,020 34526 TH25 L334 106,205
Total liabilicies 5,193,442 45,235 146,786 15,165 5,61 3,628
Met on-balunce sheet positian 410548 15,426 1514 13,598 45 3,086
Credit commitments 1,004,799 05,187 12,862 7359 1120, 207
Derivatives (Mate (i)) 33795 (38.861) 11,205 (14,261) 1,878
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61 Financial risk management (Cantinned)
(b) Market risk {Continued)

Currency rsk (Cont in ned)
31 Diecember 2017
RMB usD HED Oithers Total
(RMB (EMEB (RMB
equivalent]  equivalent]  equiwalent)
Asseis
Cash and balances with central banks 551,528 15,956 G50 166 H68,300
Dieposits wich banks and non-bank.
Financial institations B3,703 25,650 8411 6,588 124,350
Placements with and loans to banks and
non-bank finuncial iostitutions 133,686 28,35 6,703 3314 172,069
Financial assets held under resale
igreemenis 54,626 — — — 54,626
[nvestments classified as receivables 531,118 — — — 531,118
Loans and advances to custamers 2BR0,ERT 106,687 103,638 14,772 5,105,584
[nvesements 846,739 46,739 18,587 4,336 916,521
Oichers 154,761 1,904 1,618 1,440 204,723
Total assets 5,282,068 225,292 139,707 a0 524 5,677,691
Liabilities
Borrowings from central banks 237,600 — — — 237,600
Dleposits fram banks and non-bank
Financial institations TERLGI0 15,103 e 12,865 798,007
Placements from banks and noo-bank
financial institurions 55,913 10,411 253 18 77,395
Financial assets sold under repunchase
igreemens 134,384 118 — — 134,500
Dleposits fram customers 3053731 201,668 128314 23,903 5,407,636
Dlebst securicies issued 421,420 18,122 o2 — 441,244
Otthers 159,456 1,966 3381 5873 168,676
Total Liakiilitles 4,845,214 248,386 132,999 40,659 5,205,258
Met on-balance sheet position 438,854 {23.,094) &, 70R {10,035) 412,433
Credit commitments 038,064 117615 20,124 18,951 1,004,754
Derivatives (Note (1)) [20,790) 5,158 11,489 7.332 17,389
Mot
0§ Dokt ooposss e ot ootien] xo o o i anfi v meonfultred a8 Er et e K rmee]

farign sxchanpe resp and curmency cpticn.
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61 Financial risk management (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
Courrency dsk { Con tin ned)

The Group uses sensithvity analysis to measure the potentlal effect of changes in forsign cumency exchange
rates on the Group’s profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The following twble sets forth, as ar 31
Diecember 2018 and 31 December 2017, the results of the Growup’s foreign exchangs rate sensitivity analysis.

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Orcher Orther
Profit comprehensive Profit  comprehensive
before tax lncome beefiore tax income
5% appreciation 562 (1) 582 i
p 1 d.:pmclnﬂnn (582 1 I:SEE}I (ﬁ:l

This sensitivity analysis is based on a static forelgn exchange exposure profile of assets and liabilities and certain
assumptions as follows: (i) the foreign exchange sensitivity is the gain and loss recognised as a result of 500 basis
point Auctuation in the foreign currency exchange rates against RMB ar the reporting date, (ii) the exchange
rates against RMB for all forelgn currencles change in the same direction simultanecusly and does not take
into account the correlation effect of changes in different foreign currencies, and (i) the forelgn exchange
exposures calculated include both spot foreizn exchange exposures, forelgn exchange derivative instruments,
and; all positicns will be retained and rolled over upon maturity. The analysis does not take into account the
effect of risk management measures taken by management. Due to the assumptions adopred, actual changes in
the Group’s profit and other comprehenshve income resulting from increases or decreases in foreign exchange
rates may differ from the results of this sensitivity analysis. Precious metal is included in foreign currency for
the purpose of this sensitivity analysis.

() liquidi ty risk

Liquidity risk arises when the Group, in meeting the demand of liabilities due and other payment obligations
as well as the needs of business expansion, is unable to sufficienty, timely or cost-effectively acquire fands. The
Group’s liquidity risk arises mainly from the mismaich of assets to liabilities and customers may concentrate
their withdrawals.

The Group has implemented overall liquidity dsk management on the entity level. The headquarters has the

responsibility for developing the entire Group’s lquidity risk policies, stategies, and implements centralised

management of liquidity risk on the entity level. The d omestic and foreign affiliates develop their owm liquidicy

policies and procedures within the Group’s liquidity strategy management framework, based on the requirements

of relevant regulatory bodies.

The Group manages liquidity risk by setting varlous indicators and operational limits according to the overall

paosition of the Group's assets and liabilitles, with referencing to market condition. The Goup holds assets

with high liquidity to meet unexpected and material demand for payments in the ordinary couse of business.

The tools that the Group uses to measure and monitor liquidity risk mainly inchade

—  Liquidity gap analysis;

—  Ligquidity indicators (including but not limited to regulated and internal managed indicators, such as
liquidity cowverage matio, net stable funding matio, loan-to-deposit ratio, liquidity ratic, liquidity gap rate,
excess reserves rate) monltoring;

—  Scenario analysis;

— Stress testing.
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61 Financial risk management (Cantinned)
ic) Liquidity risk {Continned)

O this basis, the Group establishes regular reporting mechanisms for liquidity sk to report the latest situation
of liquidity risk to the senior management on a timey basis.

Analysis of the remaining contractual maturty of assets and liabilicies:

41 Dleeinher 1018
Betweni [
Repmible Wb thee it el Motz Todoed
ob el itk wd ot par e peats e ey ezl Tool
Loty
Cinh el badaers with cominl husk Ly - L - - L ]
D wi ik md consbrk
Sracd rivsiar CA B un - - - s
Thowenis wik el liams o backs
ad cann ok finandl Pt - L 4 - - - 17660
Finsoil st held woder earke
ey - (U ] - - - - U]
Lo s adhamcs o commmeny
[z i y BT LT w10 LIS ] L]
Finuodl v
— i e fhongh it
wrlen - L] Hin BT BLI§ LI ] TRET2
— it amowised et - 53 1L i mm A b i
— i fir e g e
xaprebenche incere L] T TS5 i o M §L03%
— Arpased i e v
elbercocprimshe - - - - - um amr
Othen Wiy 17,32 1 =151 1] 11085 L2610
Toial wet ML N a7 LN 15T AT (BET 7L GEETIE
Lishilides
Barsing foo e hoks ] G815 ngn - - - BiAW
Drpai fom bk snd s bk
nancil insioons HIASTE Al it 171 - - TR
Phoewenis frocn haaks i cosback
Sl brsnsions - B 1B - H - U538
Fiuuocil ke i Bir e
ok prakt or e w6l - - - - - w1
il sl ey
speenn - Ly L - - - 20§
Depits o cwsmapery 15l T L it ] - Gl
Db s il - bt wm L LA - L)
Ctbens an L&47T 1T 4] 41y 1151 106,275
Toial lublides LHLETE L¥LS LYWEIE fy il L3417 1151 RART ]
bt boig pa sl (1,08400) Lakit] [ThEN) 1ITi0% L1552 BELIES 50
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61 Financial risk management (Continued)

ic) Liguidity risk {Continned)
Analysis of the remaining contractual maturity of assets and liabilitles: (Continued)

31 Teceraber 217
Beoren. Bervem
Tl Wibn  dverssh uezd M Tk
m e 1 msoiks ol e Frve pears e pam (B iy Tod

Aoty
Carh are] hdarers with vl habs hid 11 1#] - - W L
Depeits with ks s oo husk

S iestiions LD fumn L) = = = (LY, ]
e witk 1nd loors oo backs

el oon-bank fnancid inscimorion L] W M - - - gl
Firaneial weets beld wadr 1ol

gremm - Hexd - - - - Mz
Irvetments il a1 receiglle it 1318 L4 (12 (5 1] - g
Launs s svanees 40 cosmners

K am HEH b Wi LI Lt 088
P LI Wi 4T A 14 e L
Deben ;1A ATEM i Rt T L T
Toial ussety 1.5 Lo 5n L1 105 LLBEIL L85 STTAL
Lisblitles
Bomviogs o ot bl = am Bl - - - ]
D Foca hmle ol bk

Finsncial iostirwions HslE Fi T § - - T
Pz o baoks and meo huske

Famci st — nia w1 - B - T
Finarrid aves rall e i

igrenenis = LLETT 124] = = = 1%
Depesin frn oriecas 1RE21E L7 L] yJE) LYW 7 = RATE
Dbt smckieriened = (L. 1] =] 145 £ = H
Ddbens a7 A5k LAY 4 10 b4 6T
Teal liblitie 1L50 LYWL LKL LU =i 131 faEiak
[Bhott e pesitinn (LALIH HERN) it 1URIR LLIIH EIT4E 1145
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61 Financial risk management (Cantinned)
ic) Liquidity risk {Continned)

The tables below present the cash flows of the Group of financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flown

3 Deceicher 1116
Bewes Betwess.
| PR Wikh  thee imiihe weand Mhote thn Teduted
lermind Joids wd obe pat e prats B yests Beezll] Toal
Nubderimitre b o
Ay
Cah wred belancrs with coninl husly (L] Lix 1] - - LER ] AR
Dt with honbs wd eobark.
nancil inviocions 750 i EE] - - - L2 45%
Thorwents wilk o liams o backs
aad can i Frandl it - LHi3 T | - - - Ly
Fiuuogil et held moder earke
el - o7 - - - - (U]
Lot s adhomcrs o cosmens (&) R LA 1,157, 18 Liw0 wm A 5T
Finuddl ivvemnn
— ae it ke thagh ook
o len - e &m 8,104 KK AT g
— i amowised et - B aLn 1837 151 LAl AT
— i Eir ke thrach o
ek inanz bl 378 it 1} i Mg 1181 (15
— b i i ke thech
albercomprrbemcha inee - - - - - i 1
Dtken i 17,381 13 T B 1m L6360
Totd ety M58 L] LTI T LA3i AL TR
Libilkdes
Yarvving fom el bk n 1] e - - - BT
Dt Fom huskr snd cmn buck
L T W7 4 Ly - - 17540
Thoewenis frocn hanks i cosback
nancil invicions - P W - H - Lkes
Fiuuocil ke i Bir e
v ek o ol - - - - - %l
Fiaanialamets od emcer reparchse
e - 11 L] 15 - - LN
Digaiss bom commen 186 T BTLM Amar L - NTEE
Dbt secricis el - o] N L 166 LI - Lt
Dthen a1m (L5 16T 133 44 1141 110, 25
Toial lubies 0 LB BT LTELIH LT JLE% ] 1151 &ML
ot g pu ki .23 05 ] (15 14030 1AL %84 L SIEsH
Deiatine cath I
Dirivatin: finaneial insoument mied
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61 Financial risk management (Continued)

ic) Liguidity risk {Continned)

The tables below present the cash flows of the Grm.l.p of financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounis
disclosed in the table are the contraciual undiscounted cash Aow (Continued).

31 Toceraber 2017
Reowsa Bupremn
epaule Witk Theerash Oned Maethin Tkskeed
i el e monil o e pr Frve pears e pam L] Tud

Kandertnitre cul Bew
ety
Carh are] hdarers with el habs his i | = - i i
Depasit i busks src oo husk

fumcil iewtirtions A 1% LEY] - - - 4R
Pameom wit 10d loars oo backs
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Firanial weets beld wadr 1ol

gremm - bk - - - - i
Irvetments il a1 receiglle ] (b 4] i o wan - o
Latns s o 4+ ooy W3z o] 14 1,017 Limdn Bl Ehatnd
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61 Financial risk management (Cantinned)
ic) Liquidity risk {Continned)

Credit Commitments include bank ACCEpAnCes, credit card commitments, Fuarantees, loan commitment and
letters of credit. The tables below summarise the amounts of credit commitments by remaining contractual

31 December 2018
Less than
1 year 1-5 years Oher 5 yeats Total
Bank acceprancess 393.851 — — 393,851
Credit card commitments 427 6B 6,909 — 434,590
Guarantess B3.905 68,354 6,554 158,813
Loan commitments 7033 15,578 17,418 40,029
Letter of credit D06 FE 2,290 — 92,924
Total 1,003, 10 23,131 23,972 1,120,207
31 December 2017
Less than
1 year 1-5 years  Ower 5 years Toal
Bank acceptancess 427490 7l — 427,561
Credit card commitments 310.315 — — 310,315
Guarantees 113.575 81.171 1000 195,746
Loan commirments B, GO0 2,172 — BB.772
Letter of credit 18,718 24,784 28,858 72360
Tatal 956,698 10&,198 29,858 1,094,754
Natae

[1H] Fer curh ard balancer with comirsl banks, the urdaied periad snosnt oepeesnced. exiocery dapoatc emees fands and Fhcsl deposlo malnnined

with cha FEOIC. For placanants with and keans ta banka and neo-bank i ! loans and =d ] and
tha wndwied paricd smoune copemeed. tha baudscee beng lopaloed o sverdus far meon than ane mead. Equity Imesomenes ware sles mpecimd
urder undwced pariod.

111} Tha babnoer of barr and advances oo curiomen which were orerdes within om menih but noe mpsiesd ace Incladad In epayable co demand

] Invesments incoded the Anancisd asets s Er valus thraugh prafit or lar, seailble-for-sde Anandal wses, e bald-ee-mairiey e
Fer irvenmme, the remalning mrm co munty d1d not capramne the Group's nonded helding paricd.
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61 Financial risk management (Continued)

id) Operational risk

Operaticnal risk refers to the risk of loss arising from inapprop rate or problematic internal procedures, personnel,
IT systems, or external events, including legal risk, but excluding strategy risk and reputational rsk.

The Group manages operational risk through a control-based emvironment by esablishing a sound mechanism
of operational risk management in crder to identify, assess, monitor, control, mitigate and report operational
risks. The framework covers all business fanctions ranging from finance, credit, accounting, settlement, savings,

treasury, intermediary business, computer applications and management, special assets resolution and legal
affairs. Key controls inchude

— by establishing a matrx authorisation management system of the whale group, carrying out the annoual
unified authorisation work, and strictly restricting the institutions and personne at all levels to carry out
business activities within the scope of authordty granted, the management requirements of prohibiting the
overstepping of authority to engage in business activities were further clarified at the institutional level;

—  through consistent legal responsibilicy framework, taking strict disciplinary actions against non-compliance
in order to ensure mu.ul'n.Hth.;

— promoting operational risk management culiure throughout the crganisation; building a team of operational
risk management professionals. Through formal training and performance appraisal system in mising risk

MARAFEMENt AWArEnEss;

—  strengthening cash and account management in accordance with the relevant policies and procedures,
intensifying the monitoring of suspicious transactions. Enswre the staff are well-equipped wich the necessary
knowledge and basic skills on anti-money laundering through continuous training;

—  backup systems and disaster recovery plans covering all the major activities, especially backoffice operations
in arder to minimise any unforeseen intermuption. Insurance cover is armnged to mitlgate potential losses
associated with certain dismptive events.

In addition to the above, the Group improves its operational sk management information systems on an
ongoing basis to efficiently identify, evaluate, monitor, contm] and report its lewel of openational rsk. The
Group’s management information system has the functicnalities of recording and capruring lost data and events
of operational risk to further support operational risk control and sefassessment, as well as monitoring of leey
sk indicators.

62 Capital Adequacy Ratio

Capital adequacy matio reflects the Group’s openational and risk management capability and it is the core of capital
management. The Group’s capital management objectives are to meet the legal and regulatory requirements, and to
prudently determine the capital adequacy ratio under realistic exposures with reference to the capital adequacy ratio
levels of leading global banks and the Group’s operating situations.

The Group considers its strategic development plans, business expansion plans and rsk variables in conducting its
scenario analysis, stress testings and other measures to forecast, plan and manage capital adequacy ratio.

The Group’s management monitors the Group’s and the Bank’s capital adequacy regularly based on regulatio ns lssued
by the CBIRC. The required information is filed with the CBIRC by the Group and the Bank semi-annually and
quarterly, respectively.

From 1 January 2013, the Group commenced the computation of Its capital adequacy ratics in accordance with the
Regulation Governing Capital of Commencial Banks (Provisional) and other relevant regulaticns promulgated by the

CBIRC in the year of 2012, The requirements pursuant to these regulations may have certain differences comparing
to those applicable in Hong Kong and other jurisdictions.
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62 Capital Adequacy Ratio (Continued)

CBIRC demands that co mmercial banks shall meet the capital adequacy requirements set out in the *Capital Management
Measures for Commercial Banks (Triali”® by the end of 2018, Systematically important banks are required to meet
the minimum core Tier-Oine capital adequacy ratio, Tier-One capital adequacy ratio and capital adequacy ratie of
B50%, 9.50% and 11.500%. Nnmmzm‘tlﬂﬂy important bank are mq_'l.dmd to mest the minimum core Tler-Oine
capital adequacy ratio, Tier-Chne capital adequacy ratio and capital adequacy ratlo of 7.50%, 8 .50% and 10.50%. In
additlon, overseas subsidiaries and branches are directly regulated by the respective local banking regulatcrs and the
requitements of capital adequacy ratios differ by country. During the year, the Group has complied in full with all ies
externally impased capital requirements.

The capital adequacy ratics calculated in accordance with Regulation Geowvemning Capital of Commercial Banks
{Provisional). According to the requirements, for credit risk, the capital requirement was measured wsing the weighting
method. The market risk was measured by adopting the standardised approach and the openational risk was measured
by using the basic indicator approach.

Relevant requirements promulgated by the CBIRC are listed as below.

31 Decednber 2018 31 December 2017

Cote Tler-Ohne capltal adequacy tatlo B.62% BL49%
Tlet-One capltal adequacy ratle a.43% 9.34%
Caplial adequacy mile 12.47% 11.65%
Components of capital base
Caore Tier-One capital:
Share l:n.pl'hﬂ] 48,935 4R.035
Crualified portion of capital reserve 8,977 SBATT
Crther comprehensive income 5,269 (11, 784)
Surplus reserve 34,450 31.183
Genenl reserve T4,255 74251
Retained earnings 179,820 163,121
Qualified portion of non-controlling interests 4,472 3872
Total core Tier-One capital 406,128 F68.555
Care Tier-One capital deductions:
Goodwill (net of related deferred tax Habilicy) (B96) (B49)
Crther intangible assets other than land use dght (net of reated
deferred tax liabilicy) (1.B78) (1.139)

Cowe Tier-One Capital investments made in financial insticutions
over which the Group has control but are outside the regulatory
comsolidation scope —_ —

Met core Tier-One capital 403,354 366,567
Crther Tier-Oine capital (Mote (1)) 37,768 6811
Tier-One capital 441,122 403 378
Ther-Two capital:
Qualified portion of Tier-Two capital instruments issued and
share premium 104,515 50 842
Surplus allowance for lean impairment ITliz 37,235
Cualified portion of non-controlling interests 63 1.346
Met capital base 583,393 502821
Taial rllln-wdd:.‘bﬂd assets 4,677,713 4 317502
MNom:
1] n e 31 Diecembear 2013, than Group’s arber T -Ore capies] Inchuded prafarenca sharer bmued by tha Bunl: (Moo 49} and non-caniralling temrees [Boom
24].
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63 Fair value

Fair value estimates are penerally subjective in nature, and are made as of a specific point in time based on the
characteristics of the financial instruments and relevant market information. The Group uses the following hiearchy
for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1: quoted prices {(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at
the measurement date. This level includes listed equity instruments and debt instruments on exchanges
and exchange-traded derhratives.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 are observable for assets or liabilities, either directly

or indirectly. A majority of the debt securitles classified as level 2 are Renminbi bonds. The fair values
of these bonds are determined based on the evaluation resules prowided by China Central Diepasttory 82
Clearing Corporate Limited. This level also includes partial bills rediscounting and forfeiting in loans
and advances, as well as a majority of ower-the-counter derbvative contracts. Forelgn exchange forward
and swaps, [nterest rate swap, and foreign exchange options wse discount cash Aow evaluation method
and the evaluation medel of which includes Foreard Pricing Model, Swap Model and Option Pricing
Madel. Bills rediscounting and forfeiting use discount cash flow evaluation method to estimate fair value
Iupul' parametens are sournced from the Gpcn market such as El-unm.berg and Reuters.

Lewvel 3: inputs for assets or liabilities are based on unobservable parameters. This level includes equity imvestments
and debt instruments with one or more than one significant unobservable parameters. Management
determine the fair value through inquirdng from counterparties or using the waluation techniques. The
muodel incorporate unobserable parameters such as discount rate and market price volarilities.

The fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

— If traded in active markets, fair values of financial assets and financial lHabilities with standard t=rms and conditions
are determined with reference to quoted market bid prices and ask prices, respectively;

— If mot traded in active markets, fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in acoordance
with generally accepted pricing models or discounted cash How analysis using prices from observable curmrent
market transactions for similar instruments. If there were no avallable observable current market transactions
prices for similar instruments, quoted prices from counterparty is used for the valuation, and management
performs analysis on these prices. Discounted cash fow analysis using the applicable yield curve for the duration
of the instruments is used for derivatives other than options, and option pricing models are used for option
derbvathres,

The Group has established an independent valuation process for financial assets and financial Habilities. The Pinancial
Market Diepartment, the Financial Institution Department, and the Investment Bank Department are responsible for the
fair valuation of financial assets and financial liabilities. The Risk Management Department performs an independent
review of the valuation methodologies, inputs, assumptions and valuation resulis. The Operations Department records
the accounting for these tems according to the result generated from the valuation process and accounting policies.
The Finance and Accounting Department prepares the disclosure of the financial assets and financial liabilities, based
on the independently reviewed valuation.

The Group’s valuation policies and procedures for different types of financial instruments are approved by the Risk
Management Committee. Any change to the valuation policies, or the related procedures, must be reporied to the Risk
Management Committes for approval before they are implemented.

Far the year ended 31 December 2018, there was no significant change in the valuation technigues or inputs used to
determine fair value measurements.
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63  Fair value iCantinued)

{a) Financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair valoe

Financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value of the Group include cash and balances with central
banks, deposits with banks and mon-bank financial institutions, placements with and loans o banks and non-
bank fmancial institutions, Anancial assets held under resal= aFreements, loans and advances to customers ab
amortised cost, financial investments ar amortised cost, held-to- maturity imvestments, imvestments classified as
receivables, borrowings from central banks, deposits fram banks and non-bank financial institutions, placements
from banks and non-bank financial institutions, financial assets sold under repurchase agreements, deposits from
customers and debt securities lssued.

Except for the items shown in the tables below, the maturity dates of aforesaid financial assets and liabilitles are
within a year or are mainly Acating interest rates, as a result, their carying amounts are approximately equal

to their fair value.
Cartylng walues Falt values
3l December 31 December 31 December 3] Dlecember
2018 2017 2018 2017
Financlal assets:
Financial investment
— at amortised cost T7R,138 — TR.TTY —
Held-to-maturity investments — 216,586 — 212,530
[nvesemenits classified as receivables — F31,118 —_ 533,659
Financlal liabilities:
Dbt securities issued
— certificates of depesit (not for trading
purpase) issued 1813 2,849 1,752 2,849
— debrt securities issued 81,091 94,571 B0,625 94,151
— subordinated bonds issued 126,269 73,728 12,04 1 76,246
— certificates of interbank deposit issed 341,310 270,006 335,475 265,071
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63  Fair value (Continued)
{a) Financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value (Continned)
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities abowve at fair value hierarchy is as follows:

31 Decembet 2018
Level 1 Level 2 Leve 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial ivestment
— at amorised cost 2,109 501,850 174, 7RO TTBT7Y
Financial labilicles:
Diebt securities issued
— certificates of deposit (not for trading
purpase) issued — 1,752 — 1.752
— debit securities issued — B0,625 j— B0,625
— subardinated bonds imued 5442 120,399 —_ 126,041
— certificates of intechank deposit issued — 335475 — 335475

31 December 20017

Level 1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Total
Hnanclal assets:
Held-to-maturity investments B9y 211,633 —_ 212,530
Investments classified as recetvables — 92,967 440,702 533,600
Hihanclal Habilities
Drebt securities issued
— certificates of deposit {not for trading
purpose) issued — 2,549 — 2,540
— debit securities issued — 94,131 — 94,131
— subordinated bonds lssued 553 TO71S — T, 246
— certificates of interbank deposit issuesd — 25,071 — 25,071
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63  Fair value iCantinued)

(b} Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair valoe

Lewel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Mote (1)) Mote (1) (Note (1))
As at 31 December 2018
Recurring fair value measurements
Assets
Loans and advances to customers at fair value
through other comprehensive income
— loans — 137 — 137
— discounted bills — 96,383 — 6,383
Financial imvestments at fair value through
profit or loss
— debit securities 1815 62,319 6,786 71920
— imvestment funds 4879 178,451 5,846 189,176
— certificates of deposit — 16,713 — 16,713
— wealth management produces —_ —_ 11é 116
— equity instruments F — 3921 4,461
— trust imvestment p]n.n.l — — i, 4R Fh 486
Financial imvestments at fair value through
other comprehenshve income
— debe securities o, 500 421,783 4,726 491,015
— ceriificates of d:pnllt b2 11,982 — 12644
Financial investments designated at fair value
through other comprehenshve income
— equity instruments 95 — 2,412 2,707
Drerivative financlal assets
— interest rave derbrathves B 6,008 — 6,106
— currency derivatives — 14,825 1 4,26
— precious metals derivatives J— 1,048 J— 1,048
— credic derivatives —_ 11 —_ 11
Total financlal assets measured at falr value 73.705 B19,750 S0, 294 943,749
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities ar fair value through
profit or loss
— short position in debe securities 2 — — D52
Drerivative financial liabilities
— interest rare derivatives 1z 5,962 —_ 5974
— currency dervatives — 24,500 1 24,501
— precious metals derivatives — L1770 — L1170
— commodity derivatives — 1 — 1
Total financial lHabilitles measured at falr
value 974 31633 1 31,608
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63 Fair value (Continued)

{b) Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value (Continned)

Level 1 Leve 2 Level 3 Tatal
Motz (1)) (Moce i) Mae= (i)

As at 31 December 2017

Recurring fair value measurements
Assers
Financlal assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Held for trading financial assets
— debt securities 3,480 35,248 - A8,72B
— Investment funds — 2,000 1 2,001
— certificates of interbank d.cpuﬂl‘ 177 19,223 - 19,400
Financlal assets designed at fair value through
profic or loss
— debit securities 198 5577 — 5773
Dlerivative financial assets
— interest rate derivatives — 2,352 1 2,553
— cumency derhvatives — 62,030 — 62,030
— precious metals dervatives — BGE — B
Available-for-sale financial assets
— debt securities 48,908 420,925 12 469,843
— Investment funds 189 119,25 7o 119,518
— certificates of deposit 104 40,843 — 40,047
— wealth management products — el e 265
— equity investments ?'d‘i —_ —_ ?‘i‘i
Toral finandal assets measured at fair value 53,798 708,551 B4 TE2.433
Liabilieles
Dlertvarive financial Habilities
— Interest rate derivatives —_ 2,311 1 2,312
— cumrency derhvatives — 62,368 — 62,368
— precious metals derbvatives — 257 — 257
Toal finandal llabllitles measured at falr
value — 54,936 1 64,937
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63  Fair value iCantinued)

{b) Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair valoe (Continned)
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64 Related parties

{a) Relationship of related parties

i The Group is controlled by CITIC Corporation Limited (incorporated in mainland China), which
owns 65.37% of the Bank’s shares. The ultimate parent of the Group is CITIC Group (incorporated in
mainland China).

(i)  Related parties of the Group include subsidiaries, joint vemtures and associates of CITIC Corporation
Limited and CITIC Group. The Bank entered into banking transactions with its subsidiaries at arm’s
length in the ordinary course of business. These transactions are diminated on consolidation.

The Bank issued 2,147,469, 539 shares to CNT'C through private placement on 31 Diecember 201 5, representing
4. 39% shares of the Bank A non-executive director designated by CHTC was appointed on 17 March 2016, and
the appointment was appoved by the CBIRC on 24 June 2016. CHTC is thereafter regarded as the Group's
related party as it has significant influence upon the Bank.

In February 2015, Xinhu Fhongbao Co., Led. acquired 2,202.579.000 H shares of the Bank through its whally
owned subsidiary, representing 4.68% shares of the Bank. A no n-executhve director designated by Xinhu Zhonghao
Caow, Led. was appointed on 17 March 2016, and the appointment was approved by the CBRC on 16 Movember
2016, Xinhu Zhonghbao Co., Lid. is thereafter regarded as the Group’s related parcy, as it has significant influence
upon the Bank. On 29 Movember 201 &, Xinhu ZJ:.Dngbnﬂ Ca., Lid., increased its :hud:n]d]ug o 2,320, 177,000
H shares of the Bank through its wholly cwned subsidiary, representing 4.74% shares of the Bank. In October
2017, Xinhu Zhonghao Co., Led. increased its shareholding to 2,446,265,000 H shares of the Bank through
its wholly cwned subsidiary, representing 4.999% shares of the Bank.

Paly Group acquired 27,216,400 A shares of the Bank through the secondary market, representing 0.06% shares
of the Bank. A non-executive director designated by Poly Group was appointed and sent to the bank on 25 May
2018, Poly Group is thereafter regarded as the Group”s related party as it has significant influence upon the Bank.

ib) Related party transactions

Dhuring the relevant years, the Group entered into transactions with related parties in the ordinary course of its
banking businesses including lending, assets transfer {i.e. issuance of asset-backed securities in the form of public
placement), wealth management, investment, deposit, settlement and clearing. off-balance sheet transactions,
and purchase, sale and leases of property. These banking transactions were conducted under normal commencial
terms and conditions and priced at the rlevant market rates prevailing at the time of each transaction.

In addition, transactions during the relevant year and the comesponding balances cutstanding at the reporting
dates are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2018

Ultimate holding Othet major
company ated equlty holdets Assoclates and
affillates Nowe il Jolat ventares
Profit and loss

Intersst income LY 4 63

Fee and commission income and
other operating income 1,240 2 —
Interest expense [445) {BED) {17
Net trading lass (32 — —
Other service fees (1,398) — —
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64 Related parties (Contimed)

(b} Related party wransactions (Continued)
Year ended 31 Diecember 2017

Ultimate holding Other major
company and equity holders Mssociates and
affiliates Moe (1) jolnt venturess
Profit and loss
Interest income 337 4i5 —
Fee and commission income and
oither operating income 1,573 — &
Interest expense (597) (407} (21}
Met trading gain 9 — 11
Oither service fees (240) — —
31 December 2016
Ultimate holding Orther major
company and equlty holdets Assoclates and
affillates Note () Jolnt ventures
Asnets
Sross loans and advances to customers 1056445 14,363 —
Less: allowance for impairment losses on
loans and advances (258) (417) —_
Loans and advances to customers (net) 10,367 13,946 —
Dieposits with banks and non-bank
financial institutions — — 5364
Investment in financial assets
— at fair value through profic or loss 310 — —
— ot amortissd cost 4,258 4,318 —
Placements with and loans to banks and
non-bank Ffinancial instiourions 1,547 — —
Dherivative financial assets (] — —
Investments in assoclates and joint
VeEntures — — 3,881
Oither assets 10,9451 — —
Liabilities
Drepasits from banks and non-bank
financial institutions 25,710 178 1,201
Drerivative financial liabilities 24 — —
Dleposits from customers 37496 41,756 17
Placements from banks and non-bank
financial institutions 2,503 — —
Oither liabilities 1,222 — —
Off_balance sheet Items
Guarantees and letcers of credic 1,528 452 —
Ampl:n.ni:a T2 — —
Entrusted funds 45,729 6641 —
Entrusted loans 18,514 12,540 —
Funds mised from inwvestors of
non-principle guaranteed wealth
management products TOT — —
(Suarantess received 52 986 9,638 —
Mominal amount of derbrathnes T.a50 — —
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64 Related parties (Contimucd)

ib) Related party transactions {Continued)
31 December 2017

Ultimate holding Other major
company and equity holders Assoclates and
affiliates Naote (i) jolnt ventures
Assers
Gross loans and adwance:s to customers 16,556 B7S —
Less: collectively assessed allowance
for impairment losses (172} (12} —
Loans and advances to customers {net) 16,384 BA3 —
Dleposits with banks and non-bank
financial institations — — 7000
Placements with and loans to banks and
non-bank financial institutions 418 — —
Drervarive financial assets 14 —_ —
Intersst receivables 123 1 —
Avrallable for sale financial asset 390 — —
Investment in asociates and joint wentwres — — 2,341
Oither assets 1,104 — —
Liabilieles
Dleposits from banks and non-bank
financial instlutions 16,205 178 Db
Placements from banks and non-bank
financial instliutions 2. 800 — —
Drerivative financial Habilities [} — L
Dleposits from customers 69,094 17.362 75
Interest payable 107 1 1
Orther liabilicies T2 — —
Off_balance sheet lte=ms
Guarantees and lettes of credit 1879 13 —5
Bank acceptances Bl8 190 —
Entrusted funds 7095 1,500 —
Entrusted loan 2,130 o445 —
Funds raised from imvestoms of
non-principle puaranteed wealth
management pmdu-ctl 498 — 450
Guarantess recebved T.793 BAT —
Mominal amount of derbratives 1.710 — —
]
0 Otbar muyer squity boldan Inchuds CNTC, Kicho Zhongban Co., Lid. end Poly Gooup.
Tha dlcleasd cap d chow er balancm whan they wers canridersd aa calsced. parden of dw Group durng th mbrvane

pericds The betwasn the mibridarie of CHTCPaly Gracg and the Graup ae nat aigeificant 1o 3916,
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64 Related parties (Contimed)

i) Key management personnel and their close family members and related companies
Key management personnel are those persons who have the authority and responsibility for planning, directing

and controlling the activities of the Group, divectly or indirectly, including directors, supervisors and executhre
officers.

The Group entered into banking transactions with key management personnel and their close family members
and those companies controlled or jointly contmolled by them in the normal counse of business. Other than those
disclosed below, there was no materlal transactions and balances berween the Group and these individuals, their
close family members or those companies controlled or jointly controlled by them.

The aggregate amount of redlevant loans cutstanding as at 31 December 2018 to directors, supervisors and
executive officers amounted to RMBE0.40 million l::u at 31 December 2017: RMBA.37 n:||.'||.i|:||:|::|.

The compensation paid or payable to key management for employee services is shown below:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 20018 31 December 2017

RMB 000 REMEB000

Salaries and other emoluments 11,751 13495
Dhiscretio nary bonuses 24,141 20,134
Fetirement schemes concribucions 2,693 2 B850
Toal 38,585 36,489

id) Supplementary defined contribution plan

The Group has established a supplementary defined contribution plan for i qualified employees which is
administered by CITIC Group (Mote 42(H)).

{g) Transactions with state-owned entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic regime currently predominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the
PRC government through its government authorities, agencies, affiliations and other organisations {collectively
referred to as “state-owned entities”).

Transactions with state-owned entitles, including CHTC's indirect subsidiaries and Poly Group’s indivect
subsidiaries, include but are not limited to the following:

—  lending and deposit taking;

—  taking and placing of inter-bank balances;

— dertvative transactions;

—  entrusted lending and other custody services;

— insurance and securities agency, and other intermediany services;

—  mle, purchase, underwriting and redemption of bonds issued by state-cwned entities;

—  purchase, sale and leases of property and other assets; and

—  rendering and recebring of utilitles and other services.

These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of the Group's banking business on terms similar to
those that would have been entered inta with non-state-owned entities. The Group has also established its pricing
strategy and approval processes for major products and services, such as loans, deposits and commission income.

The pricing strategy and approval processes do not depend on whether the customers are state-owned entities
or not. The Directors are of opinion that none of these transactions are matedal related party transactions that

require separate disclosure.
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For the pear ended 31 December 2018
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65 Structured entities

{2) Unconseclidated structured entities sponsored and managed by third parties

The Group imwests in unconsolidated structured entities which are sponsored and managed by other entities
for investment return, and records trading gains or losses and interest income thersfrom. These unconso lidaved
structured entities primarily include wealth management products, trust investment plans, imvestment management
products, investment funds and asset-backed securities.

The following table sets out an analysis of the carrying amounts of interests held by the Group asat 31 December
2018 in the structured entities sponsored by third party instioutions, as well as an analysis of the line items in
the consolidated statement of financlal position under which relevant assets are recognised:

31 December 2018
Cartying anount
Flrancial
Financal Iovestimnents
lovestiments wtfalt vahe
at falk value Finaichl  through ather
thioagh profit  Livestments at Comprehensive Madmom loss
ot lss  umortdsed cost Incaime Total exposile
Wealih management product of ccler banks 116 — — 116 116
[ 2 producs managed by
sECIKities companies — 116,502 — 128500 128,500
Turst management plans 26,486 151,582 - 178,068 178,068
Asset-backed = curides 1289 30,86 6134 103,129 103,119
[eresmment funds 189,176 —_ —_ 188,176 189,174
Total 117067 419930 61,99 692991 598,991
31 December 2017
Camying amaunt
Financial assec
at fair vale Heldeee  Amilable for [nvestments
through profic maturiy  sale Finanal dassified as Masimum los
o loas iresments -0 receviables Tonl ExpoTE
Wealih management products
ismed h:r hanks —_ —_ 16 135020 133,046 139,46
[rresmment management
products managed by
SECIKities companies —_ —_ —_ 2iE247 64,47 268247
Trust investment plans = = = 1267 126,794 126,74
Asseibacked e curities —_ M2 16,877 —_ 51111 51111
[eresmment funds 2001 — 113,518 — 121,519 121,519
Toial 2,001 234 136,421 34061 06717 T0e717

The maximum exposures to sk in the above wealth management products, trust investment plans, imvestment
management products, investment funds and asset-backed securities managed by securities companies and trust
imvestment funds are the carrylng value of the assets held by the Group at the reporting date. The maximum
exposures to risk in the asset-backed securities are the amortised cost or fair value of the assets held by the
Group ar the reporting date In accordance with the line ivems under which these assets are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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65 Stmctured entities {Continued)

(b Unconsolidated stroctured entities sponsored and managed by the Group

Unconsalidated structured entities sponsored and managed by the Group mainly include non-principal guaranteed
wealth management products. The wealth management products invest in a range of primarily fived-rate assets,
most typically money market instruments, debt securities and loan assets. As the manager of these wealth
management products, the Group invests, on behalf of s customers, in assets as described in the imvestment
plan related to each weealth management product and receives fee and commission income

As ar 31 December 2018, the total assets invested by these outstanding non-principal guaranteed wealth
management pmd.u.ctl issned 'b}r the Gmup amounted to BME 1,058,907 million {31 Diecember 2017:
EMEL,132.676 million).

Dhuring the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s interest in these weal th management products included
fee and commisslon income of RMB2,628 million (2{! 17: RMB5, 536 mﬂlhn:l; interest income of RMB2.271
million {2017: RMB2,258 million) and interest expense of RMB&20 million (2017 RME1.613 million).

As ar 31 December 2018, the placements and financlal assets held under resale agreements from the Goup
with these wealth management producis sponscred by the Group amounted to BMB&3.500 million (31
Diecember 20171 RME70,488 million), while the placements from these wealth management products to the
Gmup amountsd to FMB44 505 million I:51 December 2017: RMB25 901 m.iuhn). DurLu,g the yEar ended
31 December 2018, the amount of maximum exposure of the placements and financial assets held under resale
agreements from the Group with these wealth management products sponsored by the Group was RMBGE, 144
millicn {31 December 2017: RMBE72,372 million), and the amount of maximum exposure of the placements
from these wealth management products to the Group was EMBE 13,435 million (31 December 2017: RMB 44,233
million). These transactions were conducted under normal business terms and conditions.

As ot 31 Decemnber 2018, assets of these wealth management pmdu.:l: amounting to RMB198.892 million (3 1
Diecember 2017: EMB202,167 million) were invested in investments in which certain subsidiaries and associates
of the CITIC Group acted as trustees.

() Principal guarantesd wealth management products s]:lonsnrcd and managcd 1:-}" the Group

Principal guarantesd wealth management products sponsored and managed by the Group represent produces
to which the Group has guaranteed the investor's principal imvestment, regardless of their actual performance.
Investments made by these products and the corresponding liabilities to the imeestors of these products are
presented in the respective financial assets and financial liabilities ivems in accordance with the Group’s accounting
pelicies based on the nature of the assets and liabilities.

66 Transfers of financial assets

The Group entered into transactions which imvobred transfers of financial assets including securitisation transactions,
structured transfers on assets usufruct, transfers of loans including non-performing loans, and financial assets sold
under repurchase agreements.

These transactions were entered into in the normal course of business by which recognised financial assets were transferred
to third parties or structured entities. Transfers of assets may ghee dse to full or partlal de-recognition of the financial
assets concerned. On the other hand, where transferred assets do not qualify for derecognition as the Group has
retained substantially all the dsks and rewards of these assets, the Group continues to recognise the transferred assets.

Deetails of the financial assets sold under repurchase agreements are set forth in Mote 40. Details of securdtisation
transactions, structured transfers on assets usufruct and loan transfer transactions conducted by the Group for the year

ended 31 December 2018 I:DI:n]J}r EMB227 518 millicn lfj.lnﬂ.r ended 31 Drecember 2017: RMB175.501 mi]lh:.u.:l are
set forth below.
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Structured entities (Continned)

Securitisation transactions and structured transfers on assers usufruct

The Group enters Into securitisation transactions by which it transfers loans to structured entities which lssue asset-
backed securities to imvestons. The Group assessed among other facton, whether or not to derecognise the transferred
assets by evaluating the extent to which it retains the risks and rewards of the assets and whether it has relinquished
its controls over these assets based on the criteria as detailed in Mote 4(c) and Mote 5

Dhuring the year ended 31 December 201 8, the Group entered into securithsation transactions and structured transfers
on assets usufruct backed by financial assets transferred with beok value before impairment of RMB192,6685 million
f_fﬂ.l: ended 31 Diecember 2017: 127271 m.iuban). FEME7.197 million of this balance l:'}rﬂ.l: ended 31 December 2017:
BMB865 million) was in respect of performing loans and the Group concluded that it had continuing involvement in
these assets. T]:.:Gmp also mmgnllﬂd ather assets and other liabilicies of BEMB&97 million I:jr:n.r ended 31 December
2017: RME79 million) arising from such continuing involvement. The remaining balance of the loans transferred were
qualified for full de-recognition.

Loan transfers

Dhuring the year ended 31 December 201 8, the Group also through other types of transactions transferred loans of baok
value before impalrment of RMB 34,853 million {du.d.u.E 'ﬂ!.!}l‘ﬂ.l:GE 2017: RMB4g, 330 n:il]ll.u.u.:l, of which EMB34.853
millicn represented pon-performing loans (during the year of 2017: RMB38.733 millicn). The Group carried out
assessment based on the criterla as detailed in Mote 4{c) and Mote 5(iv) and concluded that these transferred assets
qualified for full de-recognition.

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial Habilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consclidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liabilicy simultanecusly.

As at 31 December 2018, the amount of the financial assets and financial liabilities subject to enforceable master netting
armangements or similar agres=ments are not matedal to the Group.

2018 Ansuel Report

380/410

315

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

Chapter 10 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear ended 31 December 2008
{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi pmless otharmise stated)

68 Statements of financial position and changes in equity of the Bank

Statement of financial position
31 Decednber 2018 31 December 2017

Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 533393 564,105
Dq:!ndl: with banks and non-bank francial institutons TR T58 102,139
Precicus metals 4,988 3,348
Placemenis with and loans to banks and non-bank financial

institutions 144, 364 149511
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss — 500976
Drerivative financlal assets 26,571 61,795
Financial assets held under resale agreements 10, 790 54 526
I nterest recetvables — 31674
Loans and advances o customers 3,285,963 2 BE6 A8
Financial investments

— at fair value through profic or loss 293,542 —

— ot amoartised cost TI.883 —

— at fair value through other comprehensive income 449, 350 —

— deslgnated at fair value through other comprehensive income 2,242 —
HAvailable-for-sale financial assets — ST0E23
Hdd,-tu-.n:n.h:l.rll]r Investmenis — 216,586
Iovestments classified as recebrables — 531,118
Investments In subsidiadies and joint ventures 25,008 23, 445
Pmoperty, plant and equipment 20,956 20,594
Intangible assets 1,301 1,135
Dreferred tax assets 22,458 214505
Orther asests 33,108 51,249
Total assets 5,710,675 3,359,214
Liabilities
Borrowings from central banks 2R, 350 237 500
Dieposits from banks and non-bank financial institutions TR, TER 790,259
Placements from banks and non-bank financial insticutions T1,482 34 088
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or lass 962 —
Drerivative financial liabilities 25,784 61,236
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 120,095 134,384
Dq:!udr: from customers 3.397.318 3,181 070
Accrued staff casts 2,508 BA24
Taxes payahle 4,086 8,153
Interest payable — 38,395
Provisions 4,044 Ta&
Dheb securities lssusd 541,053 430,176
Orther Habilities 44,800 38,131
Total labiltes 5,289,150 4,071,212
Equliy
Share capital 48,935 48935
Preference shares 4,955 34955
Capital reserve 61,359 51,359
Crther comprehensive income 5,167 (9,782)
Surplus reserve 34,450 1,183
Genenl reserve 73370 73370
Retained earnings 163,289 147 982
Total equity 421,525 FEREO0Z
Total Dabilites and squite 5,710,675 5,359,214
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68 Statements of financial position and changes in equity of the Bank (Cantinned)

Statement of changes in equity

Othet
Slre  Preference Caphil  comprehensies Sutple Genenal Letned
apind shain raeve Lncaine lestre reebre sty Towl equliy
Loz 31 Decreber 2017 18235 M 133 L e 31183 b S 1T S T
Changes in sccountie polcy - - - ki (58] - (B 50
Moz | amnary 2018 18435 HEH 33 (531) W Tian 1350 e
i Bt i - - - - - - T faer
i) Ocker camperhereive woame - - - 10471 - - - ladr1
Tl campeehensive incoo: - - - 10471 - — 57 ShAlE
[y Pl appmpiacions
— Appropristioes i1 suphas seme - - - - 4206 - k) -
— Dhividkend dinribtion iv anfiary
shaboklen o th busk - - - - - - (17 {12mm)
— Dhividend disribution iv priemsce
sharcbekn o the busk - - - - - - am) 1330)
Loz 51 December 2013 18235 HEH 133 ST His TIEn 163,268 135
Cher
Haw  Prfmsz Cipitd  compehensim: Sunphs Cererd Feuutned
ayinl dure reene income e meene wmigs  Toal ey
daz ] Jansary 17 o905 ] 61,174 ] 153 TaI L4557 T
{1 Bt ot - - - - = = BI% nI%
) Odes ool o — — — ol — — L
Taral camprehensive income - - - {0 - - % Wil
[y Profic approprarons
— Approprivtioes 4 suphs reeme N - - - 1N — (.5 —
— Diividied disikutivn io afioay
shanboklen of the bask = = = = - - {10521 [La5a)
— Diividied disrikution 1o preferesce
shanboklen of the bask = — = = - - LA L5586
Asz 31 Deceber 217 295 ] 6,354 1789 155 T 147,561 po
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69 Benefits and interests of directors and supervisors

{a) Directors and supervisors’ emoluments
The remuneration of the Bank’s director and superdisor is set out below:

Pnrﬁeymrcnddal December 20018:

Trwokonrirn pald o et i st of weivion e dieectu arapetrn o e G
Eimol et ald ot
rrtlle b iegped of
Mrmics  Enplemis sl otbarativios Iy
adlefls  oothetbn  mpectofaopthy  conubiwith e
Deedoaaty  Poasy okd  oedees Reslwer soegde

Fame B Sy b deee  (eefll] beokse  sloprde ofinfrkeleg Tad
TP RlPoo  BMEw  DNEm P Bl TE 1T
Formire dirciin
Li Qg Be - - - - - - - - -
Faoy Heyig - ] 7] - m ] - - 156
Nk e utw divectaty
(i Comgiog Mo | - " m - W ] - - ]
Hi Fong e - - - - - - - - -
Wi Lindip o ] - - - _ _ _ _ _ _
It o i dincn
Helse 2] - - - - - - - w
Chen Lib 1] - - - - - - - ]
Qa ] - - - - - - - m
Ting [ 8 - - - - - - - i
laperiats
LinCheng - L i - n - - Logk
Tog Chruggiog Ko | - - - - - - - -
Wiy Yinlasg ] - - - - - - - m
Yy w - - - - - - - m
Deg Wi 2] - - - - - - - mw
Clerg Pk - oo - ] m - - MNB
s Fom - Wy - m 1 - - M
Tong Yy - m oMy - n m - -
Fotmet Diecata st S v
sl 06
Chusg Tueuriog Ko [ - - - - - - - - -
Ho T Mo ) 15 - - - - - - - -
Vo Ky e ) 15 - - - - - - - 1
Wiog Linichony e i - - - - - - - bH]
Tho Caaning Mo 4 - - - - - - - - -
fun Diheng - o Lt - m n - - S
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69 Benefits and interests of directors and supervisors (Contimsed)

(a) Directors and supervisors emoluments (Continued)
Far the year ended 31 Diecember 2017
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69 Benefits and interests of directors and supervisors (Continued)

{a) Directors and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued)

ny Mrr. L Qangping, Mr. Cao Gucqlng, M. Huong Fang, MeWan Liming, and Mr. Dang Changqing d1d noc moebvs any oTwe af cha foar
dimcizes e dalepaesd by CTTIC Limibied. xnd CITIC Greup ("pannt campaie”]. Thak smeclunani wees pald by che growp. Tha cchar tes
! and thae sp arw dalaguind rurp Iy by Yicho Zhangtan Co., Led, CHTC and Poly Gmoup and provids smdcs o bodh tha
purenit compuny and the bank. Thelr smel I am nce dbclamd dus i the Aflcalty oo diffarsnstats che servces pravided by che
faur direcicrn and the mipsceber.

111} Mr. Chanp Thermip rmigred In Jnoury, 2008,
1] Mr. Sho Tang reaigrad in Fabunry, 1013,

[1L/] Mlr Cwes Guoglang maigrasd In March, 20LE.

v Blre. Wu Xlanqing, Mr. Wang Linzhang, snd Mr. Tho Gacming maigred n Ssprembar, 2008,

) M. Sun Desbun resigred tn Feiury, 2013,

[} Mr. Tho Xisahuang ceigred tn Marck, 2017,

[l Mrr Wen Shoping and Mr. Ma Haging reigned In Sqpomkar, 2017

(k) Orther benefits and interests

Mo direct or indirect retirement benefits and termination benefits were paid to divectors as at 31 December
2018 (as ar December 2017: Mil).

Far the ymar ended 31 Dlecember 2018 and 31 December 2017, the balance of loans and advances from the
Group to Directors, Supervisors or certain controlled body corporates and connected entities of the Directors
or Supervisors was not significant.

Mo slgnificant transactions, armngements and contracts in relation to the Group's business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a materal interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subslsted at the end of the year or at any time during the year 2018 (2017: Mil).

70 Events after the reporting period

{a) On 4 March 2019, the Bank issued a toral of 400,000,000 A share convertible corporate bonds ("A Share
Convertible Bonds™), with a nominal value of RMB100 each and am aggregate value amounting to BEMB40
billion. The A Share Comvertlble Bonds was issued at nominal value and the initial conversion price shall be
BME7.45 per share. The A Share Convertible Bonds have a term of six years from the date of the issuance,
which commences from 4 March 2019 and ends on 3 March 2025,

(k)  On 26 March 2019, a public lssuance of perpetual capital securties with no more than BME40 billion or
equivalent foreign currency in China and forelgn markets is approved by the Board of Directors. As ar the
report date, the relevant issuance is subject to the approval from regulators.

320 China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
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100
2018 2018 2018 2018 10 2018 11 2018 12
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited (the “Bank™) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 181 to 320, which comprise;

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018;

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSSs’) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsihilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements asawhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit mattersidentified in our audit are summarised as follows:
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Measurement of expected credit losses for loans and advances to customers and financial investments

Consolidation of structured entities  Non-principal guaranteed wealth management products
De-recognition of financia assets
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Measurement of expected credit |osses for |oans and advances to customers and financial investments

Refer to Note 4(c), Note 5(i), Note 25 and Note 26 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Asat 31 December 2018, the Group’s gross loans
and advances to customers amounted to
RMB3,616.75 billion, and a loss allowance of
RMB101.10 billion was recognized in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position; the
Group's gross financial investments was
RMB1,291.95 hillion, and aloss allowance of
RMB4.41 billion was recognized in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position.

The balances of loss allowances for the loans and
advances to customers and financial investments
represent the management’ s best estimates at the
balance sheet date of expected credit losses (“ECL")
under International Financial Reporting Standard 9:
Financial Instruments expected credit losses models.

We evaluated and tested the design and operational
effectiveness of the internal controls relating to the
measurement of ECL for loans and advances to customers,
and financia investments, primarily including:

(1) Governance over ECL models, including the
selection, approval and application of modelling
methodology; and the internal controls relating to the on-
going monitoring and optimization of the models;

(2) Interna controlsrelating to significant management
judgments and assumptions, including the review and
approval of model selections, parameters estimation,
identification of significant increase in credit risk, defaults
or credit-impaired loans, and forward-looking
measurement;

(©)
of key inputs used by the models;

Internal controls over the accuracy and completeness

(4) Internal controls relating to estimated future cash
flows and calculations of present values of such cash
flows for corporate loans and advances and financial
investments in stage 3;

(5) Internal controls over the information systems for
model -based measurement.

403/410



Key Audit Matter

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Measurement of expected credit |osses for |oans and advances to customers and financial investments (continued)

The management assesses whether the credit risk of
loans and advances to customers and financial
investments have increased significantly since their
initial recognition, and apply athree-stage
impairment model to calculate their ECL. For
corporate loans and advances and financial
investments classified into stages 1 and 2, and all
personal loans, the management assesses |oss
alowance using the risk parameter modelling
approach that incorporates key parameters, including
probability of default, loss given default, exposure at
default and discount rates. For corporate loans and
advances and financial investments in stage 3, the
management assesses |0ss allowance by estimating
the cash flows from the loans.

The measurement models of ECL involves
significant management judgments and assumptions,
primarily including the following:

(1) Criteriafor determining whether or not there
was asignificant increase in credit risk, or a default
or impairment loss was incurred;

The substantive procedures we preformed primarily
included:

We reviewed the modelling methodologies for ECL
measurement, and assessed the reasonabl eness of the
models selection, key parameters estimation, significant
judgements and assumptionsin relation to the models. We
examined the coding for model measurement on asample
basis, to test whether or not the measurement models
reflect the modelling methodol ogies documented by the
management.

We selected samples, in consideration of the financial
information and non-financia information of the
borrowers, relevant external evidence and other factors, to
assess the appropriateness of the management’s
identification of significant increase in credit risk, defaults
and credit-impaired loans.

For forward-looking measurement, we reviewed the
management’s model analysis of their selection of
economic indicators, economic scenarios and weightings
employed, assessed the reasonableness of the prediction of
economic indicators and performed sensitivity analysis of
economic indicators, economic scenarios and weightings.

404/410



Key Audit Matter

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Measurement of expected credit |osses for |oans and advances to customers and financial investments (continued)

(2) Economic indicators for forward-looking
measurement, and the application of economic
scenarios and weightings,

(3) The estimated future cash flows for corporate
loans and advances and financial investments in
stage 3.

The Group established governance processes and
controls for the measurement of ECL.

For measuring ECL , the management adopted
complex models, employed numerous parameters
and data inputs, and applied significant
management judgments and assumptions. In
addition, the exposures of the loans and advances
to customers and financial investments, the loss
allowance and provision accrued involve
significant amounts. In view of these reasons, we
identified this as akey audit matter.

We examined magjor data inputs to the ECL models on
selected samples, including historical data and data at the
measurement date, to assess their accuracy and
completeness. We also performed walk-through testing and
reconciliation of the transmission of major data inputs
between the models measurement engines and the
information systems, to verify their accuracy and
completeness.

For corporate |oans and advances and financia investments
in stage 3, we examined, on a sample basis, forecasted
future cash flows prepared by the Group based on financial
information of borrowers and guarantors, latest collateral
valuations and other available information together with
discount rates in supporting the computation of loss
allowance.

Based on our procedures performed, in the context of the
inherent uncertainties associated with measurement of ECL
for loans and advances to customers, and financia
investments, the models, key parameters, significant
judgements and assumptions adopted by management and
the measurement results were considered acceptable.

405/410



Key Audit Matter

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Consolidation of Structured Entities  Non-principal Guaranteed Wealth Management Products

Refer to Note 4(a), Note 5(vii) and Note 65 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Asat 31 December 2018, unconsolidated structured
entities included non-principal guaranteed wealth
management products (“WMPS") issued and
managed by the Group.

Management’ s decision on whether or not to
consolidate structured entities was based on an
assessment of the Group’s power, itsvariable
returns and the ability to exercise its power to
influence the variable returns from these structured
entities.

We focused on the consolidation assessment and
judgment made by management involving the
structured entities for non-principal guaranteed
WM Ps during our audit, as whether or not to
consolidate these entities involved significant
judgment.

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of management’s relevant controls over the
consolidation of structured entities for non-principal
guaranteed WM Ps. These controls primarily included the
review and approval of the contractual terms, the resultsin
variable return calculations, and the consolidation
assessment conclusions for these structured entities.

We selected samples of structured entities for non-
principal guaranteed WMPs and performed the following
tests:

assessed the Group’ s contractual rights and
obligationsin light of the transaction structures, and
evaluated the Group’'s power over the structured entities;

performed independent analysis and tests on the
variable returns from the structured entities, including but
not limited to commission income and asset management
fees earned, retention of residual income, and, if any,
liquidity and other support provided to the structured
entities;

assessed whether the Group acted as a principal or an
agent through analysis of the scope of the Group’s
decision-making authority, its remuneration entitlement,
other interests the Group held, and the rights held by other
parties.

Based on the procedures performed above, we found
management’ s judgment relating to the consolidation of
structured entities for non-principal guaranteed WMPs
acceptable.
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Key Audit Matter

De-recognition of Financia Assets

Refer to Note 4(c), Note 5(vi) and Note 66 to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group entered into transactions which involved
transfers of financial assets including those
through securitisation and loan transfers.

Management analysed the Group’s contractual
rights and obligations in connection with such
transfers, and assessed the extent to which the
associated risks and rewards of ownership were
transferred by using models to determine whether
the de-recognition criteria were met. Where
necessary, the Group assessed whether it had
relinquished its control over the transferred
financial assets to determine whether the de-
recognition criteria were met.

The de-recognition assessment relating to the
transfer of financial assetsinvolved significant
judgment from management, and as such, we
focused our audit on the de-recognition of these
financial assets.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the relevant controls over transfers of
financial assets, including the review and approva of the
structure designs and contractual terms of the transactions,
the approval of models for testing the transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership and the key parameters and
assumptions used in the models, as well asthereview and
approval of management’s assessment results.

We selected samples and read through transaction
agreements to assess the contractual rights and obligations
of the Group, and whether the Group transferred the rights
to receive contractual cash flows from the financial assets
or the transfer qualified for the “pass through” of those
cash flows, to independent third parties.

We also assessed the appropriateness of the models, the
parameters and assumptions, the discount rates, and the
variability factors. We also tested the mathematical
accuracy of the calculations.

For financial assets where the Group neither retained nor
transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards
associated with their ownership, we analysed whether the
Group had relinquished its controls over these financial
assets, and if the Group had a continuing involvement in
these transferred financial assets.

Based on the procedures performed above, we found

management’ s assessment over de-recognition of
transferred financial assets acceptable.
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Other Information

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financia
Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give atrue and
fair view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financia statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financia reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financia Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as awhole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as abody, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsihility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but isnot a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HK SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
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fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’
sinternal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statementsor, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin interna control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these mattersin our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’ s report is Chan Kwong Tak.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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